Welcome to the 95th Annual San Benito County Fair Thu. Oct 4 through Sun. Oct 7, 2018

Horse Show Events Fri. Sep 28 through Sun. Sep 30, 2018
Entertainment – Exhibits – Fine Foods – Something for Everyone!
Information – Call (831) 628-3421 or visit our website at www.SanBenitoCountyFair.com

SAN BENITO COUNTY FAIR WILL OPEN AT 3:00 P.M. THU. Oct 4, 2018 BOLADO PARK EVENT CENTER – TRES PINOS

DAILY FAIR ADMISSIONS & PARKING

Adults \$10 Seniors 62 & over \$7 Children 6 to 11 . . \$5 5 and under Free Parking \$5

Tickets available at the gate or www.SanBenitoCountyFair.com

Thu......Kids' Day, Children 12 & under Free All Day Fri.....Seniors Day, Adults 62 & over, \$5 admission Sat.....Military Appreciation Day, Free admission with military I.D. (active duty or veteran) Sun......Community Fiesta Day

DISCOUNTED FAIR ADMISSION SEASON PASSES

Good for entry on Thu, Fri, Sat and Sun.

Pre-Sale Family Fun Pack - \$25.00 admits 2 adults, 2 children (6 to 11) and parking for one day (\$36.00 value).

Pre-Sale Carnival Passes - \$18.00 allows for either an unlimited ride wristband on any one day, or a book of tickets usable any day.

Pre-Sale is available at the Fair Office, Online at www.SanBenitoCountyFair.com, Ace Hardware, Chamber of Commerce, Postal Graphics, True Value Hardware & Ranchers Feed.

PRE-SALE tickets will only be available until 3:00 p.m. on Wed. Oct 3, 2018.

JUNIOR LIVESTOCK AUCTION SALE 9 A.M, SAT. Oct 6, 2018

Entertainment & Carnival Rides each Day

Main Stage Concert Thu. 7:30 P.M. (included with admission)

Motocross/Quad Wars/4x4 Diesel Truck Pulls Fri. 7 P.M. (tickets available at grandstand)

Truck & Tractor Super Pulls Sat. 6 P.M. (tickets available at grandstand)

Monster Truck rides both Fri. & Sat. (\$)

Monster Truck fides both Fil. & Sat. (5)

BACK THIS YEAR: DOG OBEDIENCE ON THU. Oct 4

Volunteers Needed – See last page to apply.

ONLINE ENTRIES REQUIRED FOR LIVESTOCK, POULTRY, 4-H & FFA STILL DEPTS.

For these departments, online entry closes at midnight, Thu, Sep 6, 2018.

The Entry Office will be available on Fri, Sep 7 until 10:00 A.M. to resolve required online entry issues. Don't wait until the last minute, as there will be a fee of \$25.00 charged for this assistance.

FOR ALL OTHER DEPARTMENTS ONLINE ENTRIES WILL BE AVAILABLE FRI Sep 7, 2018.

Save yourself the effort of filling out entry forms. Use our online entry system. Pay for your entries with a credit card. No standing in line. Receive email confirmation of all your entries. Online entries open on Aug 7, 2018. Special attention should be given to the filling out of entry forms. Be sure that your name, address and city are clear on each form filed. Whenever signatures on affidavits are necessary, be sure they are supplied. Check your department, division and class numbers carefully with the Exhibitor Handbook before listing them on the entry form. Wrong department, division or class numbers appearing on entry forms can lead to disqualification if not corrected in time.

Separate entry forms must be used for each separate department. Only one <u>department number</u> on the <u>same</u> <u>entry form</u>. When in doubt, do not hesitate to check with the Fair Entry office (628-3421) to make sure that your entry is correct.

WALK-IN ENTRIES WILL BE ACCEPTED MON. THROUGH FRI. 9:00 A.M. TO 5:00 P.M. AT THE ENTRY OFFICE AT BOLADO PARK FROM TUESDAY, Aug 7, 2018 THROUGH FRIDAY, Sep 7, 2018.

ABSOLUTELY NO ENTRIES WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THE DATES & TIMES STATED ABOVE. UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE POSTMARKS WILL BE ACCEPTED – NO METERED MARKS ACCEPTED.

ENTRIES WITHOUT ENTRY FEES ENCLOSED WILL NOT BE PROCESSED. MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO: SAN BENITO COUNTY FAIR.

MAIL ENTRIES TO SAN BENITO COUNTY FAIR P.O. BOX 780, TRES PINOS, CA 95075

PASSES AND CREDENTIAL WRISTBANDS AVAILABLE TO LIVESTOCK EXHIBITORS ONLY.

All livestock and poultry exhibitors MUST submit \$10.00 for an exhibitor's wristband when submitting their entry. No replacement wristbands will be issued. **ABSOLUTELY NO DUPLICATE PASSES WILL BE ISSUED FOR ANY REASON. WRISTBANDS MUST BE WORN ON WRIST TO BE VALID.** Parking passes required for all livestock & poultry exhibitors. Wristbands and parking passes are needed for Cooped-In Rabbit exhibitors.

Livestock Exhibitor's camping is \$150.00 per site for the Run of the Fair. Maximum of 8 campers per site. Tents are allowed without additional charge on your assigned site. Campers under 21 years old must be accompanied by parent/guardian or an adult 21 years old or older. Copies of Motorhome/Trailer insurance and driver's license required. All Camping will be in the upper picnic area. ALL campers will be issued camping wristbands. Admission paid wristbands (Fair or Heritage Society) will also be required to enter the fairgrounds from the campground.

All Livestock Exhibitors must enter and exit through designated gates and park in specific designated areas. Failure to abide by this ruling may cause forfeiture of all awards and monies.

SUPPORT YOUR LOCAL FAIR

Abundant opportunities are available to individuals and businesses interested in supporting the San Benito County Fair. **Volunteers Needed** – Those interested in volunteering during and/or prior to the fair, please see the last page for a volunteer application. Volunteers are the lifeblood of a successful fair and we welcome your assistance.

SPONSOR OR DONATE

The fair's sustainability is due in great part to the partnership of individuals, families and businesses who 1) sponsor the fair or 2) specific events or 3) contribute funds to underwrite the various award programs. Recognition and business marketing options accompany these opportunities. In-kind contributions of needed resources are also greatly appreciated. Please email sponsorship@sanbenitocountyfair.com or call the fair office for information on becoming a fair partner, (831) 628-3421.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Welcome to the 2018 San Benito County Fair. **Gear Up for the Fair** during our 95th year! Our Fair is presented to our guests and exhibitors with a huge thank you to our business sponsors, individual contributors, and countless community partners. This year the Fair continues to add new, exciting features, while preserving our favorite Fair-time traditions. Join us to exhibit your best work, ride a carnival ride or to relax and enjoy some tasty foods and good music. We sincerely appreciate your support in the presentation of this exciting Celebration of our community and our culture!

Nicholas Peters, President Jennifer Coile, Vice-President Anne Hall, Stan Pura, Ron Rodrigues, Paul Rovella Dara Tobias, Fair Manager & C.E.O.

DEPARTMENT CHAIRS

AGRICULTURE & HORTICULTURE	Allison Skow, Elena Hernandez, Amanda Hernandez
ART	Stephanie Skow and the Hollister Art League
	Diane Clarkson
FLORICULTURE	Michelle Leonard, Jeanette Bilardi Leonard
FFA STILL EXHIBITS	Kelly Bianchi
4-H STILL EXHIBITS	Dolores Lashley, Jenny Gomer
OPEN JUNIORS	
Junior Baked Goods	Emily Skow
Junior Clothing & Textiles	Irene Towler
Junior Crafts	tbd
Junior Preserved Foods	Janice Alosi, Susan Calleri
HOME ECONOMICS	
	Elaine Littlejohn, Pat Skow
	Irene Towler
Crafts	Janice Alosi, Susan Calleri
Homemade Beer & Wine	Janice Alosi, Gregg Bonturi
Commercial Wine	Janice Alosi, Susan Calleri
Preserved Foods	Janice Alosi
HORSE SHOW DEPARTMENT	
4-H/FFA and Open Horse Show	t.b.d.
Cutting	Tony Agredano
Junior Rodeo	Wyatt Bourdet, plus more
Ranch Rodeo	Ken Griffin, J W Brewen
Stock Horse	Alethea Prewett, Bret Bonfantini
	Amanda Chiado
LIVESTOCK DEPARTMENT	
Livestock Superintendent	Sonia Falaschi
Beef Carcass Contest	Hollister FFA
Junior Market Beef	Becky Doty, Mark Lema
Junior Dairy Cattle	Becky Doty, Mark Lema
Junior Goats	Bryan Colman, Justin Wilkinson
Junior Livestock Auction	Mark Tobias
Junior Sheep	Kristine Hudson, Katy Dorrance
	Joseph Huntley, John Garner
Poultry	Donald Barger
Rabbits	Charla Allen
	Joe Martin
Lamb Lead	Kristine Hudson & Katy Dorrance
Pee Wee Showmanship Bolado P	ark Event Center Youth Ambassador Program / Kori Hitchcock
	Lindsay Daigle, Anthony & Jonathon
	Robb Lee

TABLE OF CONTENTS

MPORTANT ENTRY INFORMATION	
OARD OF DIRECTORS	3
DEPARTMENT CHAIRS	3
ABLE OF CONTENTS	
TILL DEPARTMENTS RECEIVING & JUDGING SCHEDULE	
IVESTOCK JUDGING SCHEDULE	
OOG, HORSE & RABBIT SHOW SCHEDULE	
CALIFORNIA FAIRS STATE RULES	
OCAL RULES AND REGULATIONS	
MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR	
MESSAGE FROM THE SECRETARY, CDF&A	8
DEPT. 10 - FEATURE BOOTHS	8
DEPT. 15 - AGRICULTURE & HORTICULTURE	9
DEPT, 20 - FLORICULTURE	
DEPT. 25 - BAKED GOODS, CONFECTIONS	
DEPT. 26 - OPEN JUNIOR BAKED GOODS	
DEPT. 30 - ADULT PRESERVED FOODS	
DEPT. 31 - OPEN JUNIOR PRESERVED FOODS	
DEPT. 32 - HOMEMADE BEER & WINE	
DEPT. 33 - COMMERCIAL WINE	
DEPT. 35 - CLOTHING AND TEXTILES	
DEPT. 36 - OPEN JUNIOR CLOTHING AND TEXTILES	30
DEPT. 40 - ADULT CRAFTS	31
DEPT. 41 - OPEN JUNIOR CRAFTS	34
DEPT. 42 - LITERARY ARTS	
DEPT. 45 - FINE ARTS	
DEPT. 46 - SCHOOL CLASSROOM UNFRAMED ART	
DEPT. 47 - PHOTOGRAPHY	
DEPT. 50 - 4-H STILL EXHIBITS	
DEPT. 51 - FFA STILL EXHIBITS	
DEPT. 55 - SENIOR DOG OBEDIENCE	51
DEPT. 56 - 4-H DOG OBEDIENCE	51
IORSE SHOW DEPARTMENT	52
ACKPOT TEAM ROPING	52
CUTTING SHOW	
CALF BRANDING	
DEPT. 61 - STOCK HORSE SHOW	
DEPT. 62 - RANCH RODEO	
DEPT. 64 – 4-H/FFA AND OPEN HORSE SHOW	
DEPT. 65 THRU 68 JUNIOR RODEO	
DEPT. 65 – PEE WEE JUNIOR RODEO	59
DEPT. 66 – PEE WEE JUNIOR RODEO	59
DEPT. 67 – JUNIOR RODEO	59
DEPT. 68 - JUNIOR RODEO	
UNIOR LIVESTOCK DEPARTMENT	
-H/FFA SHOWMANSHIP	
UNIOR LIVESTOCK AUCTION RULES	
DEPT. 70 - ADULT POULTRY	
DEPT. 71 - JUNIOR POULTRY	
DEPT. 72 - JUNIOR RABBITS	
DEPT. 73 - JUNIOR MARKET GOATS	71
DEPT. 74 - JUNIOR DAIRY GOATS	73
DEPT. 75 - JUNIOR MARKET SHEEP	
DEPT. 76 - JUNIOR BREEDING SHEEP	
DEPT. 77 - JUNIOR SWINE	
DEPT. 78 - JUNIOR MARKET BEEF	
DEPT. 79 - JUNIOR DAIRY CATTLE	
DEPT. 80 - ROUND ROBIN	
DEPT. 81 - LAMB LEAD	
DEPT. 82 - PEE WEE SHOWMANSHIP	82
DEPT. 83 - CHALLENGER SHOWMANSHIP	
/EI 1. 05 - CHALLENGER 5110 WHAN51111	04

STILL DEPARTMENTS RECEIVING & JUDGING SCHEDULE

DEPARTMENT	RECEIVE	JUDGED	DEPARTMENT	RECEIVE	<u>JUDGED</u>
FEATURE BOOTHS	In place by 8:00 p.m. Wed, Oct 3	Thu. Oct 4	ADULT CRAFTS	Sun. Sep 30 12:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Mon, Oct 1
AGRICULTURE HORTICULTURE	Wed, Oct 3 1:00 to 4:00 p.m.	Thu. Oct 4	JUNIOR CRAFTS	Sun Sep 30 12:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Wed, Oct 3
PUMPKIN CONTEST	Wed, Oct 3 6:00 to 7:00 p.m.	At weigh in Wed, Oct 3	LITERARY ARTS	Tue Oct 2 4:00 p.m. to 8:00 pm	Wed, Oct 3
4-H & FFA VEGETABLE JUDGING CONTEST	N.A.	Fri, Oct 5 5:00 p.m.	FINE ARTS	Sun Sep 30 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 pm	Wed Oct 3
FLORICULTURE	Wed, Oct 3 3:00 to 7:00 p.m.	Thu. Oct 4, 9:30 a.m.	OPEN JUNIOR UNFRAMED ART	Sat Sep 29 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 pm	Not judged
ADULT BAKED GOODS	Tues, Oct 2 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. Wed, Oct 3 8:00 to 10:00 a.m.	Wed. Oct 3 10:30 a.m.	SCHOOL CLASSROOM UNFRAMED ART	Sat Sep 29 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 pm	Not judged
JUNIOR BAKED GOODS	Tues, Oct 2 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. Wed, Oct 3 8:00 to 10:00 a.m.	Wed. Oct 3 10:00 a.m.	PHOTOGRAPHY	Sat, Sep 29 and Sun, Sep 30 11:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Wed Oct 3 At 10:00 a.m.
ADULT PRESERVES	Sun, Sep 30 12:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Mon, Oct 1	4-H FEATURE EXHIBIT BOOTHS	Complete by Sun, Sep 30 at 8:00 p.m.	Mon, Oct 1 10:00 a.m.
JUNIOR PRESERVES	Sun, Sep 30 12:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Mon, Oct 1	4-H STILL/CLOTHING PRESERVES/ETC.	Sat, Sep 29 and Sun, Sep 30 10:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Mon, Oct 1 10:00 a.m.
HOMEMADE BEER & WINE	Sun, Sep 30 12:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Tue, Oct 2	4-H PLANT SCIENCE, FOOD & NUTRITION	Sat, Sep 29 and Sun, Sep 30 10:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Mon Oct 1 10:00 a.m.
COMMERCIAL WINE	Sun, Sep 30 12:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Tues, Oct 2	FFA STILL EXHIBITS	Sat, Sep 29 and Sun, Sep 30 10:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Mon, Oct 1 10:00 a.m.
ADULT CLOTHING & TEXTILES	Sun, Sep 30 12:00 to 4:00 p.m.	Mon, Oct 1 & Tues, Oct 2	FFA FLORICULTURE	Sat, Sep 29 and Sun, Sep 30 10:00 to 3:00 p.m.	Mon, Oct 1 10:00 a.m.
JUNIOR CLOTHING & TEXTILES	Sun, Sep 30 12:00 to 4:00 p.m.	Tues, Oct 2 9:00 a.m.			

MON, Oct 8, 4:00 P.M. until 7:00 P.M. RELEASE TIME FOR ALL EXHIBITS

Exhibits not picked up at that time may be picked up in the Entry Office, Mon. through Fri, 9:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. Entries not claimed by Wed, Oct 31st at 4:30 p.m. will be disposed of.

LIVESTOCK JUDGING SCHEDULE

TUE.	WED.	THU.	FRI.	SAT.	SUN.
Oct 2	Oct 3	Oct 4	Oct 5	Oct 6	Oct 7
LIVESTOCK GATES	6:00 to 7:30 a.m.	6:00 to 7:30 a.m.	6:00 to 7:30 a.m.	6:00 to 7:30 a.m.	6:00 to 7:30 a.m.
OPEN AT 6:00 A.M.	Feeding & Pen	Feeding & Pen	Feeding & Pen	Feeding & Pen	Feeding & Pen
	Cleaning	Cleaning	Cleaning	Cleaning	Cleaning
Passes are required for					
Livestock Gate Entry	9:00 a.m.	8:00 a.m.	9:00 a.m.	9:00 a.m.	9:00 a.m.
	Sheep Judging	Swine Judging	Beef Judging	Jr. Livestock Auction	Round Robin
8:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.	FFA Feeder	FFA Feeder	FFA Feeder	(Main Show Ring)	(Main Show Ring and
Livestock must be	FFA Market	FFA Market	FFA Market		Small Show Ring)
Brought on to fair-	FFA Showmanship	FFA Showmanship	FFA Showmanship		
Grounds by 3:30 pm	4-H Feeder	4-H Feeder	4-H Feeder		followed by
Market Swine	4-H Market	4-H Market	4-H Market		Cattlewomen's Junior
Market Sheep	4-H Showmanship	4-H Showmanship	4-H Showmanship		Livestock Judging
Market Beef	Club/Chapter Groups	Club/Chapter Groups	Club/Chapter Groups		Contest
Market Goats	Breeding Show	Breeding Show	Breeders Showcase		(Main Show Ring)
	Breeders Showcase	Breeders Showcase	Steers		
1:00 to 7:00 p.m.	(Main Show Ring)	(Main Show Ring)	Breeding Show		followed by
Swine Weigh-In			Breeders Showcase		Awards Presentation
	1:00 p.m.		Heifers		FFA & 4-H
4:00 to 7:00 p.m.	Market Goat Judging		Dairy Cattle Judging		(Main Show Ring)
Beef, Sheep & Market	FFA Market Goats		FFA Showmanship		
Goat Weigh-In	FFA Showmanship		4-H Showmanship		12:00 p.m.
	4-H Market Goats		Club/Chapter Groups		Pee Wee
By 7:00 p.m.	4-H Showmanship		(Main Show Ring)		Showmanship
Breeding Beef, Swine,	Club/Chapter Groups				(Small Show Ring)
Sheep, Dairy Cattle,	Breeding Show		10:00 a.m.		Pre-Entry Required
Goats & Meat Does in	Breeders Showcase		Poultry Judging		
place.	Dairy Goat Judging		Adult Poultry		2:00 p.m.
	4-H Showmanship		Junior Poultry		Challenger
Original Papers due in	FFA Showmanship		Poultry Showmanship		Showmanship
Livestock Office.	(Main Show Ring)		(Poultry Building)		(Small Show Ring)
					Pre-Entry Required
MANDATORY	4:00 to 7:00 p.m.		6:00 p.m.		
MEETING	Poultry & Market		Lamb Lead Contest		
IMMEDIATELY	Rabbits in place		(Small Show Ring)		
FOLLOWING					
WEIGH-IN	7:00 p.m.				SUN. NIGHT
* All animals must be in	Poultry Judging				See Livestock Local
place by 3:30 p.m. on	Junior Market Poultry				Rule 7, Page 58
Tue. If you are not in	(Poultry Building)				Livestock & Tack
place by 3:30 p.m., you					Release
will be last to weigh in.					
Animals will not be					ANIMALS TO BE
weighed off the trailer.					FED AND WATERED

DOG, HORSE & RABBIT SHOW SCHEDULE

FRI. Sep 28	SAT. Sep 29	SUN. Sep 30	SUN. Sep 30	THU. Oct 4	SUN. Oct 7
12:00 p.m. Cutting (Grandstand) 3:00 p.m. Stock Horse (Grandstand)	8:00 a.m. Junior Rodeo Pee Wee Rodeo Dummy Steer Roping (Grandstand) 2:00 p.m. Jackpot Roping Signup	9:00 a.m. Ranch Rodeo (Grandstand) 9:00 a.m. 4-H/FFA and Open Horse Show (Grandstand)	9:00 a.m. One Day Carry Rabbit Show Junior Rabbit Rabbit Showmanship (Main Show Ring)	5:00 p.m. Dog Obedience Show Senior Show 4-H/Junior Show (Dog Show Arena near the U Barn)	9:00 a.m. Calf Branding (Grandstand)
	After Junior Rodeo Jackpot Roping (Grandstand)				

LIVESTOCK GATES OPEN AT 6:00 A.M.

California Fairs State Rules

Please read the latest copy of the California State Rules at the San Benito County Fair website:

http://www.sanbenitocountyfair.com/docs/2018-State-Rules.pdf

Local Rules and Regulations

- 1. Exhibitors are expected to familiarize themselves with these rules and to abide by them. All departments in the 2018 San Benito County Fair are open to residents and producers of the 33rd District Agricultural Association (San Benito County). In case of non-residents, producers means bona fide property owners in San Benito County during 2018, the status of which will be determined by the management of the Association through inspection of the county tax records. Also, producers must regularly grow or raise the produce exhibited in San Benito County; if not, their land must be part of that owned or operated in San Benito County. All decisions will be final. Some departments have opened their entries to a wider area. Please check each department to see if other counties are eligible.
- **2. CLOSING DATE FOR ENTRIES:** Entries in ALL departments must be in our office no later than 6:00 p.m. Sep 7, 2018. Postmarks will be accepted. No metered mail accepted. Make all checks payable to the 33rd District Agricultural Association (33rd DAA) A \$20 fee will be charged on any returned check. **NO refunds will be made.** On-line entries accepted until midnight Sep 6, 2018.
- **3. JUDGING OF EXHIBITS:** Will occur between Fri, Sep 28 and Sun, Oct 3, 2018. See judging schedule on page 5 and in individual departments. American System of Judging: each work judged in competition with other entries in its class unless otherwise stated. Danish System of Judging: based upon established standards of quality for each type of product; each exhibit is judged according to how well it meets that standard rather than how it compares with other exhibits.
- **4. DAMAGE TO STOCK:** The Board of Directors will use every precaution in their power for the safe preservation of all articles and stock on exhibition, but will not be accountable for loss or damage, whatever may be the cause or the extent of damage done. Exhibitors must give attention to their articles or animals during the Fair and at the close of the exhibition.
- **5. PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS:** Checks will be issued for premiums as soon as possible after the close of the Fair.
- **6. UNDELIVERED PREMIUMS FORFEITED:** All premiums awarded by the Association will be mailed to the address given on entry form. Undeliverable premiums will be forfeited to the State of California.
- **7. UNCLAIMED AWARDS:** After 30 days, any unclaimed exhibits or awards become the property of the 33rd District Agricultural Association and may be disposed of.
- **8. REJECTION OF EXHIBITS:** The Association reserves the right to reject any exhibit improperly entered, or when the ownership is in doubt, or <u>if required entry fees are lacking</u>, or if not properly conditioned for the show.
- **9. REMOVAL OF EXHIBIT:** No exhibit will be removed before the date and time stated in the rules for each department as provided in State Rule II-14 and Auction Sales Rules. (Early removal will result in forfeiting any premiums due to the exhibitor. This rule will be rigidly enforced.) **Due to the possibility of loss, ribbons may not be placed on display.** Ribbons and premium checks will be available in the department when you pick up your exhibits.

- **10.** NO DOGS, except Service Dogs or dogs entered in Dog Obedience classes on day of show only, are allowed on the fairgrounds. No exceptions.
- **11. CAMPING:** Will be in the upper picnic area. Minors must be accompanied by parent/guardian. No underage drinking allowed. Proof of insurance presented with reservation. See Page 1.
- 12. FINAL CLOSING: The Fair will close Exhibits to visitors at 7:00 P.M. ON SUN, Oct 7, 2018.
- SAN BENITO COUNTY 4-H **PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS:** Membership in the University of California San Benito County 4-H Program is open to all children in Kindergarten through 19 years of age without regard to race, religion, sex or physical handicap who reside within San Benito County school district boundaries and/or are legally in attendance at a San Benito County school. Youth residing in a county other than San Benito must have the approval of the 4-H Youth Development Advisor from their home county and the San Benito County 4-H Youth Development Advisor and the community club leader of the club he/she seeks to join. Families enrolled in a San Benito 4-H club prior to this policy being implemented, will be allowed to continue participating in the program as long as they have the approval of the 4-H Youth Development of both counties annually. MUST BE 9 YEARS OLD OR IN THE 4th GRADE BY JAN 1, 2018 AND ENROLLED IN ALL PROJECTS BY JAN. 1, 2018 TO PARTICIPATE IN THE FAIR.
- **14. FRAUDULENT ENTRIES:** If after the judges have made their awards, the Association finds that an exhibitor has improperly and falsely entered any exhibit, said exhibitor will forfeit all rights to all premiums that may have been awarded him/her in all departments of the Fair.
- **15. CANCELLED ENTRIES:** Exhibitors canceling their entries in Livestock or Horse Show for any reason after the official date for the closing of the entries, excepting written verification by a qualified veterinarian, shall forfeit their entry fees. Veterinary certificates must state the date of inspection and the nature of disqualification and must be filed in the fairgrounds office at least 24 hours prior to the start of the Fair. This rule will be rigidly enforced.
- **16.** Leader/Advisor Signature Procedure: Due to the online entry program our process to obtain 4-H leader and FFA advisor signatures is as follows: after entry closing date a list of all online entries (livestock and non-livestock) for each club and chapter will be emailed to the 4-H Community Leader/FFA Advisor/Grange Leader. There will be an email for each leader/advisor asking to certify that all entries are valid projects and eligible to exhibit at the 2018 fair. This signed sheet MUST be emailed, faxed or postmarked by Oct 1, 2018 (no metered mail).
- 17. **STILL EXHIBIT RULE:** Attention all 4-H and FFA exhibitors entering exhibits in any MARKET class. Each 4-H & FFA Market Exhibitor is required to enter and deliver at least one entry in either the 4-H (Dept. 50) or the FFA (Dept. 51) Still Exhibits Department. All entries must have been made, collected, grown or prepared within one year of the opening date of the 2018 fair. **4-H EDUCATIONAL POSTERS AND FFA EDUCATIONAL POSTERS DO NOT SATISFY THIS RULE.** The still exhibits must be received on Sat, Sep 22 or Sun, Sep 23, 10:00 p.m. through 3:00 p.m. at the Youth Exhibits Hall. FAILURE TO DELIVER THE REQUIRED ENTRY WILL RESULT IN DISQUALIFICATION OF ALL MARKET ENTRIES IN THIS YEARS FAIR. Animals will be sent home. No exceptions. All other rules stated in the exhibitor handbook apply.

Message from the Governor

On behalf of the state of California, I am pleased to welcome you to the 2018 season of California's agricultural fairs.

The vibrant fair culture of livestock competitions, educational exhibits, exhilarating carnival rides, live performances, and local community events is important to California. Fair exhibits and activities at the fairgrounds provide a crucial link to the agricultural community and the California farmers and ranchers that are part of this tradition.

Each unique fair conveys a distinctive aspect of California's heritage and values by displaying the local livestock, crops, artwork, baked goods, and crafts year-round. As a fair exhibitor, citizens rely on your expertise to showcase the resources that California provides to the nation and the world. Thank you for your participation and for playing a vital role in California's agricultural community.

Sincerely, Edmund G. Brown Jr. Governor

Message from the Secretary, CDF&A

In the best of years, California's fairgrounds are alight with not just fairs but festivals, gatherings and events of every stripe. From the simplest reception to the grandest gala, our facilities are central to our agricultural and multi-cultural communities.

Alas, in some of our communities, 2017 was not "the best of years." Fires, in particular, were a focal point this past season and will remain so for many months as we recover and rebuild. As it turns out, though, our fairgrounds and our fair employees were just as central to their communities through these trying times as they are otherwise.

From Santa Rosa to Southern California, families fled, and rescuers responded to a series of fires that was, in many respects, unprecedented. At one point, 17 of our California fairgrounds simultaneously served as emergency shelters, fire camps or both. Evacuees included approximately 2,000 people and 1,700 animals including all manner of livestock and pets – even a tortoise.

Our fairs mean so much more to their communities than just a celebratory week or two or three, once a year. Through our fairs and our fairgrounds, our agricultural communities have an opportunity to put our best foot forward. In my travels this year, both to annual fairs and through neighborhoods ravaged by wildfire, I've seen that firsthand.

In the best of years, we would close with a sense of satisfaction and an optimistic look ahead at the exhibits and events to come. This year, though, we first must feel the weight of lives lost and a harvest marred by flame and ash. But we also remember the essential role that our fairgrounds, our workers and our farmers and ranchers have played in response and rescue and recovery. As you look ahead to the 2018 fair season, please accept my thanks for your service this past year, and for your continued readiness.

Yours truly,
Karen Ross
Secretary
California Department of Food & Agriculture

Dept. 10 - Feature Booths

Entry Fees & Forms Due by Fri, Sep 7, 2018

Rules and Regulations:

1. Please contact Susan Ross at 831-628-3421 to reserve your space in the Pavilion. You must also complete a Junior / Adult Entry Form and submit it to the Fair Entry Office OR enter online.

- 2. Feature booth must be completed by Wed, Oct 3, 2018 at 8:00 PM. Feature Booths **MAY NOT** be taken down before 6:00 p.m. Sun, Oct 7, 2018.
- 3. Feature Exhibit Booths shall be limited to one entry by or for a county, community, organization or non-commercial entry in this department. Space will be 10' wide by 10' deep.
- 4. Federal, state and governmental agencies CANNOT enter in this department.
- 5. Staffing booths is not allowed.
- 6. Nailing or Stapling into the wood walls or floor is NOT ALLOWED. The use of "Command" strips is O.K.
- 7. Total entries in the department are not to exceed the first 8 entries. All other entries will be returned to the exhibitor.

8. EXHIBITS MUST BE MAINTAINED FOR THE DURATION OF THE FAIR.

9. IMPORTANT: READ LOCAL RULE #4.

American System of Judging

NOTE: Judges shall give preference to booths using natural materials in decorations and backgrounds.

PREMIUMS OFFERED

1st: \$75.00 2nd: \$50.00 3rd: \$25.00

Award to First Place

DIVISION 100: FEATURE EXHIBIT BOOTHS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)\$20.00

Feature Exhibit Booths should inform the public about San Benito County. Display the advantages and the diversity of the agricultural products grown in the county in such a manner as to inform the public of the value, desirability and interest to the consumer, producer and community OR to inform the public by depicting cultural, economic aspects of the county, or the interdependency of the rural and urban communities. Advertising, religious or political themes are not acceptable.

Class:

1. Feature Exhibit Booth

Dept. 15 - Agriculture & Horticulture

Co-Chair: Allison Skow (209) 678-0948 Co-Chair: Elena Hernandez (831) 245-7550 Co-Chair: Amanda Hernandez (831) 265-1440

Important Dates and Times

Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018

Receiving: Wed, Oct 3, 2018 from 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. on the Patio Pumpkin Receiving: Wed, Oct 3, 2018 from 6 p.m. to 7 p.m. only Judging: Thu, Oct 4, 2018 at 8:00 a.m. Auction: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 4:00 p.m. on the Patio

Use Junior / Adult Form

Exhibitor limited to one (1) entry in each class except in All Other Variety classes where one (1) entry for each specified variety is allowed, but not if the variety is already listed for that department.

Only ONE department per form

American System of Judging

NO ENTRY FEE unless otherwise noted.

No Ribbons or Premiums awarded unless otherwise noted.

Rules and Regulations:

1. All exhibits entered in this department must have been grown by exhibitor.

2. ALL EXHIBITS TO BECOME PROPERTY OF FAIR (except Scare Crows & Junior Agriculture). In lieu of an Entry Fee in this department, all exhibit become the property of the Fair at the time of entering. They will be sold at Auction on Sun. afternoon beginning at 4:00 P.M. and the money derived will be applied to the expense of staging the Fair and scholarships.

- 3. JUDGING: Judges may reserve the right to award second, third or no Premiums if, in their judgment, the exhibit is not meritorious of a higher award.
- 4. Products not properly labeled with Division & Class will not be accepted into show.
- 5. Terms: "Mature" means having reached that stage of ripeness which will insure the completion of the ripening process to a degree which will insure palatability, after the removal of the product from the tree, plant or vine.
- 6. "Overripe" means having an advanced state of maturity which causes the product to be undesirable for human consumption in a fresh state.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

AGRICULTURE

DIVISION 100 PUMPKIN CONTEST

Entry Fees: Class 1 - Adults \$10.00 Entry Fees: Class 2 - Juniors \$5.00 Entry Fees: Class 3 - Youth \$5.00

Division Open to San Benito, Monterey and Santa Cruz Counties.

Only one entry per exhibitor. Pumpkins will be weighed in on the patio on Oct 3, 2018 from 6 to 7 p.m. only.

Pumpkins become the property of the fair & will be sold at auction.

Winners will be announced on the patio Thu, Oct 4 at 6:00 p.m.

PREMIUMS OFFERED CLASS 1 - Adults

1st: \$1000.00 2nd: \$300.00

PREMIUMS OFFERED CLASS 2 - Juniors 1st: \$100.00 2nd: \$75.00 3rd: \$50.00 **PREMIUMS OFFERED CLASS 3 - Youth** 1st: \$100.00 2nd: \$75.00 3rd: \$50.00

Class:

- 1. Heaviest Pumpkin: Adults 19 years old and older
- 2. Heaviest Pumpkin: Juniors High School
- 3. Heaviest Pumpkin: Youth 8th grade and below

4-H & FFA Vegetable Judging Contest

Sponsors: Christensen & Giannini, LLC

Mark & Lisa Wright

DIVISION 101 VEGETABLE JUDGING CONTEST

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

- 1. Contest to be held on Friday, Oct 5 at 5:00 p.m. on the Ag-Hort Patio
- 2. Sign up in the Ag-Hort Patio by Friday, Oct 5 at 2:00 p.m.
- 3. The 2017-2018 FFA California Curricular Code will serve as the official study guide.
- 4. There is no limit to the number of contestants that may enter from any one team or club.
- 5. Individual members may compete, even if there are less than 3 individuals from any one team or club.
- 6. The highest 3 scores from each club/chapter team will be used to calculate team honors.
- 7. 4-H members will be divided into 2 categories (Sr. 9th grade & above; Jr. – 8th grade and below) for individual score honors.
- 8. There will be no oral reasons given.
- 9. Official placing and I.D. answers will be given at the end of the
- 10. Ties will be broken by Tie Breakers in the I.D. section.
- 11. Winners will be announced at the Ag-Hort Produce Auction on Sunday, Oct 7 at 4:00 p.m.

Awards:

- 1. 4-H & FFA High Team Award & 3 Blue Ribbons
- 2. 4-H & FFA Senior High Individual Award & Blue Ribbons
- 3. 4-H Junior High Individual Award & Blue Ribbon
- 4. 4-H & FFA 2nd Place Overall Ribbon 5. 4-H & FFA 3rd Place Overall Ribbon

GRAIN

DIVISION 102 SMALL GRAIN

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Bulk: one pint in open container

- 1. Barley (all varieties judged together)
- 2. Oats (all varieties judged together)
- 3. Wheat (all varieties judged together)

DRY BEANS

DIVISION 103 DRY BEANS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Bulk: one pint in open container

- 1. Black Eyed Peas
- 2. Fava Beans
- 3. Kidney Beans, Red
- 4. Lima Beans, Large
- 5. Lima Beans, Baby
- 6. Pink Beans
- 7. Pinto Beans
- 8. White Beans, Large
- 9. White Beans, Small
- 10. All Other Varieties, Specify

FIELD, GARDEN & FLOWER SEED

DIVISION 104 FIELD, GARDEN & FLOWER SEED

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

1/4 cup in open container

Class:

1. Cantaloupe Seed

2. Corn, White Pop

3. Corn, Yellow Pop

4. Corn, Ornamental

5. Cucumber Seed

6. Gopher Purge Seed

7. Honeydew Seed

8. Pumpkin Seed

9. Squash Seed

10. Sudan Seed

11. Sunflower Seed

12. Tomato Seed

13. Watermelon Seed

14. Flower Seeds, All Other, Specify

15. Seeds, All Other, Specify

VEGETABLES

DIVISION 105 FRUIT & POD VEGETABLES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

Note: Unless otherwise stated, the type of vegetable desired for exhibit will be the uniform commercial grade rather than overgrown. Each class indicates how many specimens required.

Non-Commercial Only - Paper Plate Display

Class:

1. Beans, Lima, green - 12 pods

2. Beans, snap, green - 12 pods

3. Beans, snap, wax - 12 pods

4. Beans, Kentucky Wonder- 12 pods

5. Beans, All Other Varieties, Specify – 12 pods

6. Eggplant - 3

7. Peppers, Bell, green - 4

8. Peppers, Bell, red - 4 9. Peppers, Bell, yellow - 4

10. Peppers, Chili, long green - 5

11. Peppers, Chili, long red - 5

12. Peppers, Chili, short green - 10

13. Peppers, Chili, short red – 10

14. Peppers, Habanero - 5

15. Peppers, Round - 5

16. Peppers, All Other Varieties, Specify - 10

17. Tomatoes, Beef Steak - 5

18. Tomatoes, Cherry type - 12

19. Tomatoes, Heirloom - 5

20. Tomatoes, Mech. Harvesting - 5

21. Tomatoes, Roma - 5

22. Tomatoes, Round Table, red - 5

23. Tomatoes, Round Table, pink or green - 5

24. Tomatoes, Tomatillos - 10

25. Tomatoes, All Other Varieties, Specify - 5

26. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 106 LEAFY & STEM VEGETABLES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

Non-Commercial Only - Paper Plate Display

Class:

1. Artichokes - 3

2. Broccoli - 1 bunch

3. Cabbage, green - 1 head

4. Cabbage, red - 1 head

5. Cauliflower - 1 head

6. Chard, Swiss - 1 bunch

7. Corn, ornamental- 5 ears

8. Corn, sweet - 5 ears

9. Lettuce - 1 head

10. Spinach, New Zealand - 1 bunch

11. Sunflower heads - 2 heads

12. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 107 ROOT, BULB & TUBER VEGETABLES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Paper Plate Display

Class:

1. Beets, garden - 1 bunch (5)

2. Carrots, long type - 1 bunch (5)

3. Carrots, short type - 1 bunch (5)

4. Garlic - 6

5. Onions, globe, red - 5

6. Onions, globe, white - 5

7. Onions, globe, yellow - 5

8. Onions, flat - 5

9. Onions, green - 1 bunch (8)

10. Onions, torpedo - 5

11. Potatoes, all varieties - 5

12. Radishes, all varieties- 1 bunch (10)

13. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 108 VINE CROPS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Paper Plate Display

1. Cucumber, green - 3

2. Cucumber, lemon - 3

3. Cucumber, pickle - 5

4. Flowers, edible - 5

5. Gourds, ornamental - 5

6. Herbs, fresh - 5

7. Melons, Cantaloupes - 1

8. Melons, Casabas - 1

9. Melons, Crenshaw - 1

10. Pumpkins, Pie - 2

11. Pumpkins, Munchkin - 1

12. Pumpkins, Carving - 1

13. Pumpkins, All Other Varieties, Specify

14. Radicchio - 5

15. Squash, Banana - 5

16. Squash, butternut, mature - 2

17. Squash, crooked neck mature - 2

18. Squash, crooked neck yellow - 5 19. Squash, spaghetti - 2

20. Squash, summer, scallop - 5

21. Squash, summer, zucchini - 5

22. Squash, summer, All Other Varieties, Specify -5

23. Squash, turban - 2

24. Squash, zucchini, mature - 2

25. Squash, other varieties, mature - 2

26. Watermelons, long - 1

27. Watermelons, round – 1

28. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 109 STRAWBERRIES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

Non-Commercial Only - Paper Plate Display - (5)

Class:

1. Chandler

2. Commander

3. Diamonte

4. Pajaro

5. Seascape

6. Selva

7. Sheehy

8. Swede

9. Camarosa 10. All Other Varieties, Specify

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

entry of fice. San Benito County Fair.com

DIVISION 110 BERRIES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Paper Plate Display - (5)

Class:

1. Raspberries

2. Blackberries

3. All Other Berries, Specify (not Strawberries)

<u>DIVISION 111 CONVENTIONALLY GROWN LUG PACK</u> OR CRATE DISPLAYS

DIVISION 112 ORGANIC LUG PACK OR CRATE DISPLAYS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Standard package accepted Commercial standard display containers; False Bottoms permitted.

Class:

1. Beets

2. Bell Peppers, green

3. Bell Peppers, red

4. Bell Peppers, yellow

5. Bok Choy

6. Bok Choy, Baby

7. Broccolette

8. Broccoli

9. Cabbage, Chinese (Napa)

10. Cabbage, Green

11. Cabbage, Red

12. Cabbage, Savory

13. Carrots, Bunch, Colored

14. Carrots, Bunch, Long

15. Carrots, Bunch, Short16. Cauliflower, naked

17. Cauliflower, Romanesco

18. Cauliflower, wrapped

19. Celery

20. Celery, hearts

21. Celery, wrapped

22. Chard, Green 23. Chard, Red

24. Chard, Swiss

25. Chili Peppers, Habanero

26. Chili Peppers, long green

27. Chili Peppers, short green

28. Chili Peppers, yellow

29. Cilantro

30. Corn, Ornamental

31. Corn, Sweet, white

32. Corn. Sweet, vellow

33. Corn, Sweet, All Other Varieties, Specify

34. Cucumbers, green

35. Escarole

36. Garlic

37. Fennel

38. Gourd, Ornamental

39. Kale, Oriental

40. Leeks

41. Lettuce, Butter

42. Lettuce, Butter, Red

43. Lettuce, Endive

44. Lettuce, head

45. Lettuce, head, wrapped

46. Lettuce, leaf, green

47. Lettuce, leaf, red

48. Lettuce, Romaine

49. Lettuce, Romaine, hearts

50. Lettuce, Romaine, Red

51. Lettuce, spring mix

52. Lettuce & Greens All Other Varieties, Specify

53. Melons, Cantaloupe

54. Melons, Casabas

55. Melons, Honeydew

56. Melons, Persian

57. Melons, Syrah

58. Melons, All Other Varieties, Specify

59. Onions, Cipollini

60. Onions, pearl

61. Onions, red

62. Onions, white

63. Onions, yellow

64. Parsley

65. Potatoes, sweet

66. Potatoes, yellow

67. Pumpkins, carving

68. Pumpkins, munchkin

69. Pumpkins, pie

70. Pumpkins, All Other Varieties, Specify

71. Radicchio

72. Radishes

73. Shallots

74. Spinach, baby

75. Spinach, bunched

76. Squash, Acorn

77. Squash, buttercup

78. Squash, butternut

79. Squash, crooked neck

80. Squash, Kobacha

81. Squash, scallop

82. Squash, spaghetti

83. Squash, summer

84. Squash, table green

85. Squash, zucchini

86. Squash, All Other Varieties, Specify

87. Tomatoes, green and pink

88. Tomatoes, processing

89. Tomatoes, red 90. Turnip, greens

91. Turnips

92. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 113 CONVENTIONALLY GROWN SALAD

PRODUCTS

DIVISION 114 ORGANIC SALAD PRODUCTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Class:

1. Asian

2. Baby Lettuce

3. Baby Romaine

4. Baby Spinach

5. Caesar

6. European

7. Fresh Herb 8. Garden

9. Italian

10. Mixed Baby Greens

11. Romaine

12. Savory Spinach

13. Spinach

14. Spring Mix

15. All Other Varieties, Specify DIVISION 115 CONVENTIONAL GROWN STRAWBERRY FLAT DIVISION 116 ORGANIC STRAWBERRY FLAT

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) Non

Standard package accepted. Commercial standard display containers; False Bottoms permitted.

Class:

1. Chandler

2. Commander

3. Diamonte

4. Pajaro

5. Seascape

6. Selva7. Sheehy

8. Swede

Camarosa
 All Other Varieties, Specify

<u>DIVISION 117 CONVENTIONALLY GROWN BERRY BASKET</u> <u>DIVISION 118 ORGANIC BERRY FLAT</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Standard package accepted. Commercial standard display containers; False Bottoms permitted.

Class:

- 1. Raspberries
- 2. Blackberries
- 3. All Other Berries, Specify (not Strawberries)

HORTICULTURE

Rules and Regulations:

1. Plate to contain five (5) specimens

DECIDUOUS FRUITS

DIVISION 120 APPLES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) Non-

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Class:

- 1. Delicious
- 2. Delicious, golden
- 3. Delicious, double red & sports
- 4. Granny Smith
- 5. Gravenstein
- 6. Fuii
- 7. Newtown Pippin
- 8. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 121 APRICOTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Class:

- 1. Blenheim
- 2. Hernskirk
- 3. Moorpark
- 4. Tilton

DIVISION 122 FIGS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Class:

- 1. Black
- 2.White

DIVISION 123 GRAPES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Three (3) Bunches

Class:

- 1. Chardonnay
- 2. Chenin Blanc
- 3. Concord, Eastern
- 4. Gewurztraminer
- 5. Italian
- 6. Merlot
- 7. Mission
- 8. Muscats, all varieties judged together
- 9. Palomino (Golden Chasselas)
- 10. Riesling, white type, small
- 11. Rose of Peru
- 12. Thompson Seedless
- 13. Zinfandel
- 14. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 124 NECTARINES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only-Plate Display-(5)

Class:

1. All varieties judged together

DIVISION 125 PEACHES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Class

1. Freestones, all varieties judged together

2. Cling, all varieties judged together

DIVISION 126 PEARS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Class:

- 1. Asian
- 2. Bartlett
- 3. Doyenne du Comice
- 4. Seckel
- 5. Winter Nellis
- 6. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 127 PERSIMMONS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Class:

- 1. Fuvu
- 2. Hachiya

DIVISION 128 PLUMS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Class:

1. All varieties judged together

DIVISION 129 PRUNES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Class:

- 1. French
- 2. Imperial
- 3. Sugar
- 4. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 130 QUINCE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Class:

1. All varieties judged together

STANDARD PACKAGE

Standard package, accepted

Commercial standard display container

False bottoms permitted.

<u>DIVISION 131 CONVENTIONALLY GROWN APPLES</u> <u>DIVISION 132 ORGANIC APPLES</u>

Entry Fees: Division 131-132 per entry per class None

Standard package

Class:

- 1. Bellflower, yellow
- 2. Delicious, common
- 3. Delicious, golden
- 4. Delicious, double red & sports
- 5. Fuji
- 6. Granny Smith
- 7. Newtown Pippin, yellow
- 8. McIntosh
- 9. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 133 CONVENTIONALLY GROWN APRICOTS

DIVISION 134 ORGANIC APRICOTS

Entry Fees: Division 133-134 per entry per class None

Standard package

Class:

- 1. Blenheim
- 2. All Other Varieties, Specify

SUB-TROPICAL FRUITS

DIVISION 135 SUB-TROPICAL FRUITS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display

Class:

- 1. Avocados, Hass 3
- $2.\ Grape fruit,\ all\ varieties\ -\ 2$
- 3. Lemons, Eureka 5
- 4. Lemons, Meyer 5
- 5. Limes 5
- 6. Oranges, Navel 5
- 7. Oranges, Valencia 5
- 8. Pomegranates, all varieties 5
- 9. All Other Varieties 3, Specify

NUTS

<u>DIVISION 136 WALNUTS – CONVENTIONALLY GROWN</u> DIVISION 137 WALNUTS- ORGANIC

Entry Fees: Division 136-137 per entry per class None

Commercial grades, one pound

Class:

- 1. Ashley
- 2. Blackline Resistant
- Chandler
- 4. Chico
- 5. Eureka
- 6. Forde
- 7. Franquette
- 8. Gillet
- 9. Hartley
- 10. Howard
- 11. Livermore12. Lompoc
- 12. Lompo
- 13. Mayette 14. Nugget
- 15. Payne
- 16. Pedro
- 17. Seer
- 18. Sexton
- 19. Tehama

- 22. 64-5723. All Other Varieties, Specify
- 23. All Other Varieties, Specify

DIVISION 138 WALNUTS/LUG
Entry Fees: (per entry per class)
None

Lug Display

20. Tulare

21. Vina

Class:

- 1. Walnuts (shelled)
- 2. Walnuts (in shell)

<u>DIVISION 139 NUTS OTHER THAN WALNUTS –</u> CONVENTIONALLY GROWN

DIVISION 140 NUTS OTHER THAN WALNUTS- ORGANIC

Entry Fees: Division 139-140 per entry per class None

Commercial grades, one pound

Class:

- 1. Almonds
- 2. Pecans
- 3. Pistachios
- 4. All Other Varieties, Specify

DRIED FRUIT

DIVISION 141 DRIED FRUITS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Non-Commercial Only - Plate Display Plate to contain one pound

Class:

- 1. Apricots, Blenheim or Royal
- 2. Pears, Bartlett
- 3. Peaches, Cling
- 4. Prunes, French
- 5. Prunes, Imperial
- 6. Prunes, Sugar7. All Other Varieties, Specify

<u>DIVISION 142 CONVENTIONALLY GROWN DRIED FRUITS</u> <u>DIVISION 143 ORGANIC DRIED FRUITS</u>

Entry Fees: Division 142-143 per entry per class None

Lug Display

- 1. Apricots, all varieties
- 2. Nectarines, all varieties
- 3. Peaches, all varieties
- 4. Pears, all varieties5. Prunes, all varieties

COMMERCIAL GIFT PACKS

Gift Packs will be sold at the Auction on Sun. Oct 7.

Proceeds to go to the Ag-Hort Department of the County Fair. Products must be produced and/or grown in San Benito County and packaged in any type of container (baskets, tins, crates, boxes, etc.). Class 5 is an exception.

PREMIUMS OFFERED PER CLASS 1st: \$65.00 2nd: \$40.00 3rd: \$25.00

DIVISION 144 COMMERCIAL GIFT PACKS - PROFESSIONAL

Professional is an individual or Company that makes, sells and markets a product.)

<u>DIVISION 145 COMMERCIAL GIFT PACKS - NON-</u>PROFESSIONAL

Non-Professional is an individual or Company that does not make, sell or market a product.)

Entry Fees: Divisions 144-145 per entry per class \$3.00

Class:

- 1. Fruit and/or Nuts and/or Candy
- 2. Preserves, Jams, Jellies, Spreads & Syrups
- Wines
- 4. Combination
- 5. 50% San Benito County/50% Other

AG ART

Exhibitor limited to two (2) entries in each class DIVISION 150 AG ART

Open to anyone 19 years and older

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

PREMIUMS OFFERED PER CLASS: 1st: \$15.00 2nd: \$10.00 3rd: \$5.00

Division Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Material can be purchased or grown.
- 2. Must be grown in San Benito County.
- 3. To be sold at produce auction.
- 4. Use products such as garlic, peppers, Indian corn, miniature pumpkins, fruit, nuts, etc.

Class:

- 1. String, Specify
- 2. Braid 2 rows, Specify
- 3. Wreath, Specify

DIVISION 151 VEGGIE ART

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Rules and Regulations:

1. Limited to One Entry per Class.

- 2. Veggies may be purchased or grown.
- 3. Must be 50% veggie.
- 4. Deliver to Patio Area
- 5. If not picked up after Sun. Auction, exhibits will be discarded.

Class

- 1. Use your imagination, Adults
- 2. Use your imagination, 6 and under
- 3. Use your imagination, 7-12 years
- 4. Use your imagination, 13-18 years
- 5. Fair theme, Adults
- 6. Fair theme, 6 and under
- 7. Fair theme, 7 12 years
- 8. Fair theme, 13 18 years

DIVISION 152 SCARE CROW CONTEST

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Limited to One Entry per Class.
- 2. Open to School Classes, Youth Groups, Families and Individuals.
- 3. All entries will be judged together.
- 4. Must be no more than 6 feet tall and 4 feet wide.
- 5. Must contain a pumpkin as part of the design.
- 6. Must be able to stand on its own.
- 7. Deliver to Patio Area
- 8. Release/Pickup Sun. immediately after produce auction. If not picked Fair is not responsible.

Class

- 1. Scare Crow, Individuals 19 years old and older
- 2. Scare Crow, Individuals 18 years old and younger
- 3. Scare Crow, Family Group
- 4. Scare Crow, School Class or Youth Group

JUNIOR AGRICULTURE

Open to anyone 18 years old and younger

Danish System of Judging

No Premiums - Ribbons only, will be mailed by Oct 31st, 2018

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

DIVISION 160 JUNIOR AGRICULTURE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

Paper Plate Display

May enter up to 15 different exhibits, only one per each type; each exhibit must be listed separately on entry form by species and type (i.e. beans/snap, green; tomatoes/Pearson; lettuce/leaf, etc.).

Class:

1. Any Variety, Specify

Dept. 20 - Floriculture

Chairs: Michelle Leonard & Jeanette Bilardi Leonard

Important Dates and Times
Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving: Wed, Oct 3, 2018
from 3 p.m.-7 p.m. in the Heritage Room
Judging: Thu, Oct 4, 2018 starting at 9:30 a.m.
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Use Junior / Adult Form

Each exhibitor is limited to one (1) entry in each class unless specified otherwise.

Only ONE department per form

American System of Judging

Sweepstakes- Prizes and Awards as specified below

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. NO SPECTATORS DURING JUDGING!
- 2. This department is open to all flowers and plants grown in San Benito County by non-commercial growers. All flowers and plants must have been grown by exhibitor except in divisions for arrangements. Persons wishing to enter any plants or flowers will do so by filling out an entry form. Exhibitor must name variety of flower or plant on entry form.
- 3. It is the exhibitor's responsibility to have the right card with the right entry. Management is not responsible for errors.
- 4. Judges may reserve the right to award 1st, 2nd, 3rd or no place if, in their judgment, the exhibitor is not meritorious of a higher award.
- 5. Exhibits must be adequately and correctly labeled.
- 6. Glass bottles will be supplied by the department for the display of cut flowers.
- 7. Sweepstakes will be awarded as specified below:
- a. First award, 5 points; Second award, 3 points; Third award, 1 point
- b. A minimum of 3 separate exhibitors have achieved a combined point total of 30 points
- c. To receive sweepstakes awards, an exhibitor must have a minimum of ten points.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

<u>DIVISION 100 DAHLIAS</u> <u>DIVISION 101 GIANT DAHLIAS</u> DIVISION 102 DAHLIAS/SPIDER VARIETY

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

One (1) stem unless specified

Class:

- 1. White
- 2. Yellow
- 3. Orange
- 4. Pink5. Purple
- 6. Bi-colored or variegated
- 7. Lavender
- 8. Red
- 9. Any other color, stems (1)
- 10. Any 3 colors, (1 stem each)

DIVISION 103 ROSES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

One (1) stem unless specified;

Class:

MINIATURE

- 1. White
- 2. Yellow
- 3. Orange
- 4. Pink
- 5. Red
- 6. Bi-color
- 7. Mixed colors (3 stems)

FLORIBUNDA

- 8. White
- 9. Yellow
- 10. Orange
- 11. Pink
- 12. Red
- 13. Bi-color
- 14. Display, mixed colors (3 stems)

HYBRID TEA

- 15. White
- 16. Yellow
- 17. Orange
- 18. Pink
- 19. Red
- 20. Bi-color
- 21. Display, mixed colors (3 stems)

OTHER

- 22. White
- 23. Yellow
- 24. Orange
- 25. Pink
- 26. Red
- 27. Bi-color
- 28. Display, mixed colors (3 stems)

DIVISION 104 GERANIUMS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

One (1) stem unless specified

Class:

- 1. White
- 2. Pink
- 3. Salmon
- 4. Red
- 5. Bi-colored
- 6. Any 3 colors, (1 stem each)

DIVISION 105 GARDENERS CHOICE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Any cut flowers in your garden that cannot be entered in any other division

May enter two (2) entries per class

Class:

- 1. Specify one stem
- 2. Specify three stems
- 3. Specify one stem
- 4. Specify one stem

DIVISION 100 through DIVISION 105 - SWEEPSTAKES DONATED AWARDS: 1st, 2nd and 3rd Place

DIVISION 106 FRESH FLOWER ARRANGEMENTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

All fresh materials unless specified. No planters. Mats and accessories are optional. Extra foliage permitted unless specified otherwise.

Class:

- 1. Andrea Ames (arrangement in pottery container)
- 2. Betty Boop (red & white flowers)
- 3. Darling Clementine (yellow & orange flowers)
- 4. Santa Fe (Western design container or accessories)
- 5. Jungle Book (any flowers, extra greenery)
- 6. I Thee Wed (bridal table arrangement)
- 7. Halloween
- 8. Wind in the Willows (any flowers, use willows as extra greenery)
- 9. Proud to be an American (exhibitors choice, use your imagination)
- 10. Milk Man's Here (use milk bottle as container or accessory)
- 11. South Pacific (use tropical flowers)
- 12. Coffee Time (use yellow flowers in a cup or mug)
- 13. Deja Vu (old container or old accessories)
- 14. Reach for the Stars (exhibitors choice, use your imagination)
- 15. Little but Lovely (not over 5 1/2 inches in any direction)
- 16. Go Team (any flowers, use accessories depicting a favorite team)
- 17. Grandma's Kitchen (use kitchen items as container)
- 18. Solitaire (single flower with foliage)
- 19. Wine Country (use wine bottle as container)
- 20. Wildest Dream (arrangement in basket with 3 variety of flowers)
- 21. Sugar and Spice (use fresh spices and/or herbs)
- 22. Holiday, any
- 23. Fair theme
- 24. Hollister Biker Rally (any flowers with biker or Harley theme)
- 25. Any other theme, specify

DIVISION 106 - SWEEPSTAKES DONATED

AWARDS: 1st, 2nd and 3rd Place

DIVISION 107 DRY ARRANGEMENTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

No fresh or artificial flowers or plants unless specified. Mat and accessories are optional.

Class:

- 1. A Touch of Glass (arrangement within a glass container)
- 2. Country Roads (use roadside "treasures" as container or accessory)
- 3. Little Buckaroo (use a child's boot as container or accessory)
- 4. Little Triumphs (not over 5 1/2 inches in any direction)
- 5. A Stitch in Time (sewing notion/notions as accessories)
- 6. Book Title, specify
- 7. San Benito Hidden Beauty (use dry native growth)
- 8. Staff of Life (use grains, barley, wheat, etc.)
- 9. Indian in the Cupboard (fall colors)
- 10. Holiday Inn (Christmas arrangement)
- 11. The Man in My Life (arrangement indicating a man's hobby)
- 12. The Golden Horde (use yellow and/or gold dry flowers)
- 13. Lights Out! (an arrangement using candles)
- 14. What's Your Pleasure (wreath, MUST be ready to hang)
- 15. Cold Nights (arrangement in a brass container)
- 16. It's the Rage! (wall hanging other than a wreath, MUST be ready to hang)
- 17. Fair Theme
- 18. Any other theme, specify

DIVISION 107 - SWEEPSTAKES DONATED

AWARDS: 1st, 2nd and 3rd Place

DIVISION 108 GREEN HOUSE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

All potted plants in this division to be checked in and out by the Department Chair with claim check. Please bring hanging plants on hangers. Flowering plants MUST be in bloom.

DONATED AWARDS: 1st, 2nd and 3rd Place

Class:

TRUE CACTUS

1. Any variety, cactus

FERNS

- 2. Boston
- 3. Rabbit's Foot/Hare's Foot
- 4. Asparagus
- 5. Maiden Hair
- 6. Combo Planter, 2 or more species
- 7. Any other variety, ferns

IVY

- 8. Green Leaf
- 9. Variegated
- 10. Any other variety, ivy

SUCCULENTS

- 11. Aloe
- 12. Hen and Chickens
- 13. Jade Plant, any variety
- 14. Burros Trail
- 15. String of Pearls
- 16. String of Hearts
- 17. Topsy Turvey
- 18. Flapjack
- 19. Carrion plant
- 20 Baby Toes
- 21. Silver Dollar
- 22. Elephant Bush
- 23. Hobbit Jade
- 24. Watch Chain

UPRIGHT PLANTS

- 25. Pothos, green leaf
- 26. Pothos, variegated leaf
- 27. Dish Garden
- 28. Any other variety, upright

HANGING PLANTS

- 29. Creeping Charley
- 30. Philodendron, large leaf
- 31. Philodendron, small leaf
- 32. Spider
- 33. Wandering Jew, Purple
- 34. Wandering Jew, Green
- 35. Any other variety, hanging

FLOWERING PLANTS

- 36. Begonia
- 37. Geraniums
- 38. Impatiens
- 39. Martha Washington
- 40. Any other variety, flowering

DIVISION 108 - SWEEPSTAKES DONATED

AWARDS: 1st, 2nd and 3rd Place

DIVISION 109 ORCHIDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Orchids must be in exhibitor's possession for a minimum of 90 days prior to the San Benito County Fair. All varieties judged together.

- 1. White
- 2. Pink
- 3. Lavender
- 4. Yellow

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

entryoffice.SanBenitoCountyFair.com

DIVISION 110 MANTELS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Limited to first four (4) entries received

Mantle design to incorporate floral arrangement with flowers as specified. Dimensions of mantels furnished: 68" long and 12" wide, off-white color. Accessories (pictures, candles, etc.) permitted.

Originality and conformance 30%

Harmony of color, texture & container 30%

Design (balance & proportion) 25%

Condition of material 15%

Total Score 100%

Class:

- 1. Holiday Fresh
- 2. Old Days Fresh/Dry
- 3. Any other Specify Fresh

JUNIOR FLORICULTURE & HORTICULTURE

Open to residents of San Benito County

Age Limit: 18 Years old and younger

Use Junior / Adult Form

Limit of one (1) entry per exhibitor per class

Danish System of Judging

Only ONE department per form

1st, 2nd, & 3rd place awards for overall Juniors in Divisions 111 and 112 are donated by Premiere Cinema and Sally & Shorty Silva.

Refer to Adult Department Floriculture Div. for rules & regulations.

Floriculture - Horticulture Scorecard

MARKET QUALITY 40% Maturity and fullness, flower condition and color, foliage condition and color.

HEALTH AND CONDITION 35% Insect and disease damage, fertility needs, environmental/mechanical damage.

UNIFORMITY 25% General symmetry and shape stems and framework, foliage growth.

DIVISION 111 JUNIOR ORNAMENTAL PLANTS

DONATED AWARDS: 1st, 2nd and 3rd Place

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

All containers are to be clean prior to entry receiving.

Exhibitors are to provide hangers for hanging basket displays.

Class:

- 1. Flowering Plant, gal. container
- 2. Foliage Plant, upright, indoor
- 3. Foliage Plant, upright, outdoor
- 4. Hanging Plant
- 5. Cacti True cactus only
- 6. Jade
- 7. Any other succulent
- 8. Dish Garden

DIVISION 112 JUNIOR FLORICULTURE

DONATED AWARDS: 1st, 2nd and 3rd Place

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Class:

- 1. At the Zoo (create an animal using dry materials, fruits & vegetables)
- 2. Nursery Rhyme Theme (using fresh flowers and foliage)
- 3. Mini (fresh flowers not over 5 1/2" tall or wide)
- 4. Fair Theme (fresh flowers)
- 5. Basket Bouquet (<u>fresh</u> flower arrangement in a basket)
- 6. Dry Miniature (not over 5" tall or wide)
- 7. Book Title Theme (using dry materials)
- 8. Fair Theme (dry Arrangement)

DIVISION 111 through DIVISION 112 - SWEEPSTAKES

DONATED AWARDS: 1st, 2nd and 3rd Place

Dept. 25 - Baked Goods, Confections

Co-Chair: Elaine Littlejohn (831) 801-7137 Co-Chair: Pat Skow (831) 801-7160

Important Dates and Times
Entry Forms Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 6-8 p.m.
AND Wed, Oct 3, 2018 8-10 a.m.
Receiving will be in the Pavilion Home Arts Dept.

Judging: Wed, Oct 3, 2018 starting at 10:30 a.m.
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Open to all residents of San Benito County

Use Junior / Adult Form

Limited to One (1) entry per class

Only ONE department per form

American System of Judging

AWARDS OFFERED

Best of Fair - \$25 Award or Gift Certificate Best of Show - \$20 Awards - See Divisions

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All entries in this department must be home prepared by the exhibitor. No pre-packaged mixes (i.e. cake mix) or ready-made ingredients (i.e. canned frosting) are allowed except in Division 106, Tricks with a Mix. No business or commercial entries will be accepted.
- 2. All items will be re-plated for display with exception of the Decorated Divisions, and where the item baked is in its container (pie, cheesecake, quiche, tart, etc.). All returnable items must be labeled with name and phone number on the bottom of the container. Unclaimed dishes will be taken to the Fair Office at the close of the fair.
- 3. Entries must be in correct category. Judges' decision to transfer is final
- 4. All entries must be delivered to the Home Arts Department during correct receiving times.
- 5. If no Best of Show is awarded in a Division, a Special Award may be determined by the chairperson(s) in its place, from amongst all other entries.
- 6. Do not submit recipes with entry forms and fees: recipe must accompany entries in Divisions 106 & 107.
- 7. All entries become the property of the San Benito County Fair with exception of Divisions 111, 112 & 113 (Decorated Divisions), which will be released at close of Fair. No release of edible food except refrigerated items. Ribbons available at release time on Mon, Oct 8, 2018, $4:00~\rm pm-7:00~p.m.$
- 8. ALL ENTRIES: please enter a description in the Description Field on the Entry Form and the Online Entry Form. For example, if you are entering a two-crust Apple Pie, select Division 109 Pies & Pastries and Class 3 for a two-crust pie. Your description may be "Apple Pie" or "Caramel Apple Pie". BE SPECIFIC.
- 9. If you have questions, please contact either of the department chairpersons listed above.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field for all entries.

DIVISION 100 YEAST BREADS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Yeast Breads

Quantities: Bread - one-half loaf; Bagels, Rolls & Doughnuts – 4 pieces. Deliver each exhibit on a heavy disposable plate in a plastic bag. Class:

- 1. Bagels, any recipe (4)
- 2. Bread, Cheese
- 3. Bread, French
- 4. Bread, Sourdough
- 5. Bread, Raisin
- 6. Bread, Herb or Seeded, specify
- 7. Bread, Rye
- 8. Bread, Machine Baked
- 9. Bread, Multi-grained
- 10. Breadsticks (6)
- 11. Doughnuts, Raised (4)
- 12. Focaccia
- 13. Rolls, White
- 14. Rolls, Any other, specify
- 15. Any other Yeast Bread not listed, specify

DIVISION 101 BAKING POWDER OR QUICK BREADS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Baking Powder or Quick Breads

Quantities: Bread – One half loaf (no mini loaves accepted); Muffins, Scones, Popovers – 4 pieces. Deliver on a heavy disposable plate in a plastic bag.

Class:

- 1. Biscuits, Plain
- 2. Biscuits, any other, specify
- 3. Bread, Apple
- 4. Bread, Banana, with or without Nuts
- 5. Bread, Corn
- 6. Bread, Pumpkin
- 7. Bread, Fruit any other (Date, etc.), specify
- 8. Bread, Nut or Seed, no Fruit
- 9. Bread, Zucchini
- 10. Bread, any other Vegetable (Carrot, etc.), specify
- 11. Gingerbread (4)
- 12. Muffins, Bran
- 13. Muffins, Corn
- 14. Muffins, Fruit
- 15. Muffins, Nut or Seed, specify
- 16. Muffins, any other, specify
- 17. Scones, plain
- 18. Scones, any other, specify
- 19. Popovers
- 20. Any other Baking Powder or Quick Bread not listed, specify

DIVISION 102 SPECIALTY BREADS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Specialty Breads

Quantities: Bread – one half Loaf; Rolls – 4 pieces; Coffee Cake – one half cake; Tea Ring or Braid – bring whole. Deliver each entry on a heavy disposable plate or tray in a plastic bag. Do not put cakes in bags. Plastic wrap may be used for oversized items.

- 1. Braids
- 2. Cinnamon Rolls
- 3. Coffee Cake, Baking Powder
- 4. Coffee Cake, Yeast
- 5. Ethnic Breads or Rolls (International)
- 6. Sweet Breads, Portuguese or Hawaiian Style
- 7. Tea Rings
- 8. Any other Specialty Bread not listed, specify

DIVISION 103 CAKES, CUPCAKES, ROLLS, ETC.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50 Award: \$20 Best of Show Cakes

Quantities: One-half cake; 6 Cupcakes; Cobbler 8x8 inch pan (or similar). Deliver each entry on a heavy disposable plate or tray in a plastic bag. Do not put cakes in bags. Plastic wrap may be used for oversized items.

Class:

- 1. Cake, Angel Food
- 2. Cake, Applesauce
- 3. Cake, Bundt style
- 4. Cake, Carrot
- 5. Cake, Chiffon
- 6. Cake, Chocolate, any type, specify
- 7. Cake, Fruit (Lemon, Banana, Prune), specify
- 8. Cake, Pumpkin
- 9. Cake, Pound or Loaf, unfrosted
- 10. Cake, Upside Down (Bring whole cake)
- 11. Cake, Spice
- 12. Cake, Yellow
- 13. Cake, any Low-Fat Recipe
- 14. Cake, any other, specify
- 15. Cupcakes, frosted, no filling
- 16. Cupcakes, frosted, with filling
- 17. Cupcakes, any other, specify
- 18. Doughnuts, Cake (6)
- 19. Petit Fours (6)
- 20. Rolled and Filled (Pumpkin Roll, etc.)
- 21. Torte, any kind (flour-less)

DIVISION 104 CHEESECAKES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Cheesecakes

One cake, 6" or larger. Do not put in bags.

Class:

- 1. Plain, no topping
- 2. Chocolate
- 3. Fruit flavored or Fruit Topping, specify
- 4. Any other

DIVISION 105 COOKIES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50 Award: \$20 Best of Show Cookies

Six pieces, not to exceed 3" in diameter. Deliver each exhibit displayed on a disposable plate in a plastic bag.

Class:

- 1. Bar
- 2. Lemon Bar
- 3. Biscotti
- 4. Brownies, plain
- 5. Brownies, combination, specify
- 6. Chocolate Chip, plain
- 7. Chocolate Chip, combination, specify
- 8. Chocolate, any other
- 9. Peanut Butter
- 10. Macaroons
- 11. Oatmeal, plain
- 12. Oatmeal, combination, specify
- 13. Snicker doodles
- 14. Ginger
- 15. Sugar
- 16. Shortbread
- 17. Refrigerated
- 18. Unbaked
- 19. Frosted or Glazed, specify
- 20. Filled
- 21. Any other, specify

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

DIVISION 106 TRICKS WITH A MIX

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Tricks with a Mix

Begin with a mix and add to it! Packaged or readymade ingredients allowed in this Division only. Recipe must accompany the baked item printed on 3"x5" recipe card for judges' review. Quantity per entry should be six pieces, one-half cake or one-half loaf, whichever applies. Deliver each exhibit displayed on a heavy disposable plate in a plastic bag. Do not put cakes in bags – use plastic wrap to cover.

Class:

- 1. Cakes, specify
- 2. Cookies, specify
- 3. Confections, specify
- 4. Breads & Quick Breads, specify
- 5. Rolls, Biscuits or muffins, specify
- 6. Cupcakes, specify
- 7. Any other, specify

DIVISION 107 BAKING WITH HONEY

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Baking with Honey

Quantities: One 8" or 9" Pie; 1 Large Tart or 4 Small Tarts; 4 Cream Puffs or Eclairs; Cobbler or Crisp 8x8 inch pan. Deliver each entry on a heavy disposable plate or tray in a plastic bag. Do not put cakes in bags – use plastic wrap to cover. Each recipe to include honey. Recipes must accompany item printed on 3" x 5" recipe cards.

Class:

- 1. Breads, Quick, any recipe, specify
- 2. Breads, Yeast, any recipe, specify
- 3. Cakes, any recipe, specify
- 4. Cookies, any recipe, specify
- 5. Muffins, any recipe, specify
- 6. Pastries, any recipe, specify7. Any other baked recipe, specify

DIVISION 108 PIES. PASTRIES. ETC.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Pies & PastriesQuantities: One 8" or 9" Pie; 1 Large Tart or 4 Small Tarts; 4 Turnovers; 4 Cream Puffs or Eclairs; Cobbler or Crisp 8x8 inch pan. <u>Please specify in description field on your Entry Form</u>. Deliver exhibits displayed on a

disposable plate in a plastic bag or cover with plastic wrap.

- 1. Pie, One Crust, specify
- 2. Pie, One Crust, Meringue or Cream, specify
- 3. Pie, Two Crust or Lattice Top, specify
- 4. Pie, Crumb Top. specify
- 5. Cream Puffs 4 pieces or 6 mini
- 6. Cobblers or Crisp, any kind, specify
- 7. Eclairs 4 pieces or 6 mini
- 8. Tarts, any kind, specify
- 9. Turnovers, any kind, specify
- 10. Quiche, any kind, specify
- 11. Any Other Pastry not listed, specify
- 12. Any Other Pie not listed, specify

DIVISION 109 CONFECTIONS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Confections

Eight pieces, approx. 1/2 pound. Deliver exhibits displayed on a disposable plate in a plastic bag.

Class:

- 1. Brittle, any type, specify
- 2. Caramels
- 3. Chocolates, Dipped
- 4. Chocolates, Molded
- 5. Divinity
- 6. Fudge, Chocolate, with nuts
- 7. Fudge, Chocolate, no nuts
- 8. Fudge, any other, specify
- 9. Marshmallows
- 10. Nuts, Chocolate, Sugared or Glazed, specify
- 11. Popcorn Balls (3)
- 12. Popcorn, Candied (Caramel, etc.)
- 13. Rocky Road
- 14. Sugar-Free Confections
- 15. Toffee
- 16. Truffles
- 17. Any other Confection not listed, specify

DIVISION 110 FAMILY CONNECTIONS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Family Connections

Items must be prepared by at least <u>one adult member with any junior family member</u> such as Grandma/Grandson, Mother/Daughter, etc. Please include names and relationship when entering. Deliver classes 1 – 4 on a heavy disposable plate. Do not put cakes in bags – use plastic wrap to cover. Pies and cheesecake should be 6" or larger. No mini loaves accepted.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter names and relationship in the Description field as well as the variety.

Class:

- 1. Cookies, 6 pieces
- 2. Cupcakes, 6 pieces
- 3. Confections, 8 pieces
- 4. Any Cake, one-half cake
- 5. Any Pie, whole pie
- 6. Any other item, specify

DIVISION 111 DECORATED COOKIES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Decorated Cookies

Entry to consist of 4 decorated cookies, decorated all the same or differently. Be creative. May be presented on a plate or tray, in a basket or other container. Container may be decorated with doilies, ribbon, etc. Judged on decoration only. Cookies will not be tasted.

Class:

- 1. Decorated Cookies, using all edible decorations
- 2. Decorated Cookies, using any mix of edible and non-edible decorations.
- 3. Decorated Cookies, Fair Theme "Gear up for the Fair"

DIVISION 112 DECORATED CAKES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Decorated Cakes

One cake. Note: Cake may be real cake, cardboard or Styrofoam, if the shape is such that could reasonably be achieved by baking. <u>Judged on decoration only.</u> Decorated cakes will be released at close of Fair. Class:

Amateur:

- 1. Cake, Special Occasion Layer, specify
- 2. Cake, Holiday
- 3. Cake, Novelty
- 4. Cake, Wedding
- 5. Cake, using the Fair Theme "Gear up for the Fair"
- 6. Cake, any other Decorated Cake, specify

Professional: Ribbon only, no premium. A professional is defined as anyone who has received remuneration for their services for decorated cakes of more than \$1000.

7. Any decorated cake

DIVISION 113 OTHER DECORATED ITEMS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Award: \$20 Best of Show Other Decorated Items

Rules

- 1. All houses must be presented on a board no larger than 18x24 inches.
- 2. Gingerbread houses in Class 2 must be home prepared and baked. Houses and all decorations must be made from natural and edible materials
- 3. All other houses, artworks, scenes, etc. may be a mix of Styrofoam, cardboard or other materials may be used to make the shapes. All surfaces must be covered with natural and/or edible material such as corn meal, crackers, candy, coffee grounds, dried or fresh fruits, rice, dried beans, vegetables, etc. Use your imagination!
- 4. Each entry will be judged on originality and workmanship.
- 5. Accessories (figurines, etc.) are acceptable and encouraged, if they are made from natural materials.
- 6. Exhibit will be released at close of Fair.

- 1. Decorated Cupcakes, six cupcakes all decorated the same or differently
- 2. Decorated Gingerbread House, original or kit, any theme
- 3. Decorated Gingerbread People, three people decorated differently
- 4. Decorated Edible House, any theme, original or kit. Your choice of all edible materials.
- 5. Decorated Sugar Mold, any theme
- 6. Decorated any items using the fair theme "Gear up for the Fair"
- 7. Any other Decorated Item(s)

Dept. 26 - Open Junior Baked Goods

Chair: Emily Skow (831) 801-5138

Important Dates and Times Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018 Receiving: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 6-8 p.m. AND Wed, Oct 3, 2018 8-10 a.m.

Receiving will be in the Pavilion Home Arts Dept. Judging: Wed, Oct 3, 2018 starting at 10 a.m. Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Age Limit: 18 years of age and younger

Use Junior / Adult Form Danish System of Judging

Awards will be given in different Divisions & Classes

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All entries in these divisions must be home prepared by the exhibitor. No pre-packaged mixes (i.e. cake mix, frosting) are allowed except in Class 12 (Tricks with a Mix) and Class 14 (Decorated Cupcakes).
- 2. Entries must be in the correct category.
- 3. All entries must be delivered to the Home Arts Department during the correct times.
- 4. Bring on disposable plate in plastic bag. (Do not put frosted cakes in bags)
- 5. Quantity needed as specified.
- 6. Do not submit recipes with entry forms and fees: <u>recipes must</u> accompany exhibit in Class 12 only.
- 7. Ribbons will be available Mon. afternoon when the exhibits are released in Home Arts Dept.
- 8. ALL ENTRIES: please enter a description in the Description Field on the Entry Form and the Online Entry Form.
- 9. If you have any questions, please contact the department chairperson listed above.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

DIVISION 120 AGE: PRESCHOOL TO 5 YEARS OLD

DIVISION 121 AGE: 6 TO 9 YEARS OLD DIVISION 122 AGE: 10 TO 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 123 AGE: 14 TO 18 YEARS OLD

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Limit of one (1) entry per exhibitor per class

- 1. Cupcakes 4 each
- 2. Frosted Cupcakes- 4 each
- 3. Frosted Cake 1/2 cake plus slice
- 4. Decorated Cake whole cake
- 5. Drop Cookies 6 each
- 6. Rolled Cookies 6 each
- 7. Bar Cookies 6 each
- 8. Biscuits or Muffins 4 each
- 9. Bread Loaf 1/2 loaf
- 10. Candy/Confections, 6ea.
- 11. Any other
- 12. Tricks with a Mix Begin with a mix and add to it! Package or readymade mix allowed in this class only! Must include recipe on 3x5 card.
- 13. "Hit the Trail" Mix Five (5) ingredients required. Display in a 1/2-pint glass jar and (1) cup in a zip lock bag.
- 14. Decorated Cupcakes These will be based on decorations only. Have Fun! Include 4 cupcakes.

Dept. 30 - Adult Preserved Foods

Chair: Janice Alosi (831) 634-0723

Important Dates and Times
Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving: Sun, Sep 30, 2018 12:00-3:00 p.m.
in the Pavilion Home Arts Dept.
Judging: Mon. Oct 1, 2018
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Open to all residents of San Benito County Residents

Use Junior / Adult Form

EXHIBITORS ARE LIMITED TO ONE ENTRY PER CLASS, EXCEPT AS NOTED IN "ANY OTHER" CLASSES

American System of Judging

Chairwoman's Choice Awards Donated by Janice Alosi

1st: \$20.00 2nd: \$15.00 3rd: \$10.00

"Apricot Preserves" Special Award in Memory of Alzora Snyder donated by the Aromas Eagles

"Best of Show" Ribbon Award

Rules and Regulations:

1. In "Any Other" classes, entries must name varieties on entry form.

2. **IMPORTANT!!** All jars MUST be labeled with exhibitor's name on bottom of jar. Label on the side of the jar to include name of product, date when product was preserved, method used to preserve item, and processing time of product. All jars must be labeled to qualify for judging. Do **NOT** use Post-It's for any type of label.

SAMPLE JAR SIDE LABEL:

Name of Product Date Preserved Method Used Processing Time

SAMPLE JAR BOTTOM LABEL: Your Name

- 3. All entries in this division must be home prepared and canned by the exhibitor within one year of the opening date of the Fair. Items which have been shown at any previous Fair are not eligible. All products considered for the cash awards, which have not otherwise been eliminated from consideration, will be opened.
- 4. STANDARD JAR: glass jar that is specifically or specially designed for canning purposes is required. The size of the container should suit the product. All jars are to have screw rings. NO MAYONNAISE, BEVERAGE OR ANY OTHER JAR. Jar must securely close after judging.
- 5. NOTE: No paraffin seals, no paraffin allowed on any entry. All canning must be in sealed jars.
- 6. The following are recommended containers: Fruits & Vegetables: Clear glass, wide or narrow mouth jar. Jellies: Clear glass, standard or sculptured, to be at least 4 ounces. Jams: Clear glass pints or half-pints, fruit jars only.
- 7. Non-acid foods such as all vegetables must be canned under pressure. Low-acid fruit, such as figs, should be made more acidic by adding lemon juice, as directed in the University Agricultural Extension Service leaflet "Home Canning of Fruits". Tomatoes and fruits (not including their juices) must be processed in a boiling water bath.
- 8. Two identical entries (rubber banded together) are required in all divisions unless otherwise noted. One jar is to be opened for judging and the other will be displayed, unopened during the remainder of the Fair. The exhibitor MUST pick up the opened jar on the day of judging, after 5:00 p.m. All jars left after Wed, Oct 10, 2018 at 12:00 noon will be discarded. **NO EXCEPTION!**
- 9. All exhibits must be cleaned and sealed. No stickers or designed / custom labels on jars. Fancy padded lids, fabric overwraps or cozies interferes with the judging process and should not be used; could result in not being judged or disqualification.

10. IMPORTANT: Read LOCAL RULE #4.

11. No frozen products or refrigerated products.

2018 Adult Premium Food Preservation Awards presented by: Jarden Home Brands



To promote the art of home canning, and to honor adults who excel at the art of home canning, Jarden Home Brands is offering first and second place adult award categories.

Judges will select the two best entries submitted by an adult in Fruit, Pickles, Soft Spreads, and Vegetable categories canned in Ball Jars and sealed with Ball Two-Piece Vacuum Caps, Collection Elite Caps or Freedom Garden Caps, or canned in Kerr Jars and sealed with Kerr Two-Piece Vacuum Caps, Collection Elite Caps or Freedom Garden Caps.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

DIVISION 130 DECORATED GIFT PACK

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

All Preserved or Dried Items must be labeled with Name of Product. Example: Wicker Basket decorated with four (4) different jams – the basket could contain several other items to carry out the theme of the Gift Pack.

Note: MUST USE HOME CANNED ITEMS ONLY AND MUST BE DONE BY EXHIBITOR; NO PROFESSIONAL HELP.

Class

- 1. Combination of Jams, Jellies, Marmalades, or Conserves (4)
- 2. Same Fruit or Vegetable, preserved 3 different ways (3)
- 3. Combination of Preserved Vegetables/Fruits that work well together (4)
- 4. Fair Theme "Gear up for the Fair" Three (3) Preserved or Dried Items

DIVISION 131 CANNED FRUITS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

- 1. Apples, plain
- 2. Apples, spiced or fancy
- 3. Applesauce, plain
- 4. Applesauce, spiced
- 5. Apricots, whole
- 6. Apricots, halves7. Berries, any type
- 8. Cherries, brandied
- 9. Cherries
- 10. Fruit Cocktail, Specify
- 11. Fruit Juice
- 12. Fruit Syrup
- 13. Grapes
- 14. Peaches, cling
- 15. Peaches, freestone
- 16. Peaches, spiced
- 17. Pears, plain
- 18. Pears, fancy or spiced
- 19. Plums
- 20. Prunes
- 21. Pie Filling, any kind
- 22. Any other fruit, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety
- 23. Any combo of 2 fruits, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety

DIVISION 132 CANNED VEGETABLES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class:

- 1. Beans, string cut
- 2. Beans, string whole
- 3. Tomato Juice
- 4. Tomatoes, stewed
- 5. Tomatoes, whole plain
- 6. Tomatoes, whole seasoned
- 7. Vegetable Juice, Specify
- 8. Any other Vegetable, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety

DIVISION 133 PICKLES & RELISHES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class:

- 1. Asparagus
- 2. Beans, green
- 3. Beets
- 4. Bell Peppers, sections
- 5. Carrots
- 6. Chili Peppers, hot
- 7. Corn Relish
- 8. Cucumber Relish
- 9. Cucumbers, bread & butter
- 10. Cucumbers, dill sliced
- 11. Cucumbers, dill whole
- 12. Cucumbers, sweet
- 12. Cucumbers, swee
- 13. Eggs
- 14. Fruit
- 15. Mixed Vegetables
- 16. Olives
- 17. Onion
- 18. Pepper Relish
- 19. Tomatoes, Green
- 20. Zucchini
- 21. Zucchini Relish
- 22. Any other vegetables, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety
- 23. Any other pickles, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety
- 24. Any other relish, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety

DIVISION 134 SAUCES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class:

- 1. Barbecue Sauce
- 2. Catsup
- 3. Chutney
- 4. Chili Sauce
- 5. Salsa, corn
- Salsa, green
- 7. Salsa, sweet
- 8. Salsa, mild 9. Salsa, hot
- 10. Salsa, any other, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety
- 11. Spaghetti Sauce
- 12. Tomato Sauce
- 13. Any other sauce, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

DIVISION 135 VINEGAR, OLIVE OIL & SALAD DRESSING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50
Glass containers: BRING TWO IDENTICAL GLASS BOT

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL GLASS BOTTLES that can be closed securely. (rubber banded together)

Class:

- 1. Mustard, Specify
- 2. Balsamic Vinegar
- 3. Fruit Vinegar
- 4. Garlic Vinegar
- 5. Herb Vinegar
- 6. Red Wine Vinegar
- 7. White Wine Vinegar
- 8. Any Other Vinegar, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety
- 9. Olive Oil
- 10. Any other Oil, specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety
- 11. Salad Dressing (Not Refrigerated)

DIVISION 136 HONEY

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class:

- 1. Floral Honey (single floral source)
- 2. Wildflower
- 3. Any Other Honey, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety

DIVISION 137 JAMS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

- 1. Apricot
- 2. Apricot and Pineapple
- 3. Blackberry
- 4. Boysenberry
- 5. Cherry
- 6. Fig
- 7. Grape
- 8. Mixed Berry, Specify
- 9. Mixed Fruit, Specify
- 10. Olallieberry11. Peach
- 12. Pear
- 13. Pineapple
- 14. Plum
- 15. Raspberry
- 16. Strawberry
- 17. Spiced Jam
- 18. Any other jam, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety
- 19. Any other Combination, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety

DIVISION 138 JELLY

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class:

- 1. Apple
- 2. Blackberry
- 3. Elderberry
- 4. Grape
- 5. Jalapeno
- 6. Lemon
- 7. Mint
- 8. Olallieberry
- 9. Pepper
- 10. Plum
- 11. Pomegranate
- 12. Quince
- 13. Rose Petal
- 14. Wine
- 15. Any other Jelly, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety
- 16. Any other Combination of Fruits, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety

DIVISION 139 PRESERVES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class

- 1. Apricot ELIGIBLE FOR THE "APRICOT SPECIAL AWARD IN MEMORY OF ALZORA SNYDER donated by the AROMAS EAGLES
- Cherry
- 3. Peach
- 4. Strawberry
- 5. Any other, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety

DIVISION 140 MARMALADES, BUTTERS, CONSERVES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class

- 1. Apple Butter
- 2. Strawberry Butter
- 3. Orange Marmalade
- 4. Ice Cream Topping
- 5. Any other Butter, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety
- 6. Any other Marmalade, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety
- 7. Any Conserve, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety

DIVISION 141 CANNED FRUITS (LOW SUGAR)

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class:

- 1. Apples, any type label
- 2. Applesauce, any type label
- 3. Apricots, any type label
- 4. Berries, any type label
- 5. Cherries, any type label
- 6. Fruit Cocktail
- 7. Peaches, any type label
- 8. Pears, any type label
- 9. Plums, any type label
- 10. Fruit Juice
- 11. Any other Fruit, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety

DIVISION 142 JAMS (LOW SUGAR)

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class:

- 1. Apricot
- 2. Apricot and Pineapple
- 3. Blackberry
- 4. Boysenberry
- 5. Cherry
- 6. Fig7. Grape
- 8. Mixed Berry, Specify
- 9. Mixed Fruit, Specify
- 10. Olallieberry
- 11. Peach
- 12. Pear
- 13. Pineapple
- 14. Plum
- 15. Raspberry
- 16. Strawberry
- 17. Spiced Jam
- 18. Any other jam, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety
- 19. Any other Combination, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety

DIVISION 143 JELLY (LOW SUGAR)

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class:

- 1. Apple
- 2. Blackberry
- 3. Elderberry
- 4. Grape
- 5. Jalapeno
- 6. Lemon
- 7. Mint
- 8. Olallieberry
- Pepper
- 10. Plum
- 11. Pomegranate
- 12. Quince
- 13. Rose Petal
- 14. Wine
- 15. Any other Jelly, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each variety
- 16. Any other Combination of Fruits, Specify, 2 allowed, label each variety

<u>DIVISION 144 MARMALADES, BUTTERS, (LOW SUGAR)</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Glass containers; BRING TWO IDENTICAL CANNING JARS. (rubber banded together)

Class:

- 1. Apple Butter
- 2. Strawberry Butter
- 3. Orange Marmalade
- 4. Any other Butter, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety
- 5. Any other Marmalade, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety

DIVISION 145 DRIED OR DEHYDRATED FOODS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Bring 6 pieces in a Pint unsealed clear glass canning jar or equivalent. MUST have a re-closeable lid.

- 1. Jerky, beef
- 2. Jerky, venison
- 3. Jerky, other, Specify
- 4. Dried Apricots
- 5. Dried Fruit, Specify
- 6. Dried Vegetable, Specify
- 7. Dried Herb Blends, Specify
- 8. Fish, Smoked, Specify9. Fruit Leather
- 10. Granola (homemade)
- 11. Trail Mix
- 12. Any other item, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each entry

Dept. 31 - Open Junior Preserved Foods

Chair: Janice Alosi (831) 634-0723 Co-Chair: Susan Calleri (831) 801-3168

> **Important Dates and Times** Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018

Receiving: Sun, Sep 30, 2018 12:00-3:00 p.m. in the Pavilion Home Arts Dept. Judging: Mon. Oct 1, 2018

Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Open to all residents of San Benito County

Use Junior / Adult Form

Exhibitors are limited to one entry per class except as noted in "Any Other" classes.

Danish System of Judging

Junior Preserved Foods Scorecards apply

Chairwoman's Choice Awards Donated by Susan Calleri **1st:** \$15.00 in each division (3)

Every Judged entry will receive \$1.00, Donated by Virgie Alosi

"Best of Show" Ribbon Award

2018 Youth Premium Food Preservation Awards presented by: Jarden Home Brands



To promote the art of home canning, and to honor youths who excel at the art of home canning, Jarden Home Brands is offering first place youth award categories.

Judges will select the best entry submitted by a

youth in Fruit, Pickles, Soft Spreads & Vegetable categories canned in Ball Jars and sealed with Ball Two-Piece Vacuum Caps, Collection Elite Caps or Freedom Garden Caps. Or, canned in Kerr Jars and sealed with Kerr Two-Piece Vacuum Caps, Collection Elite Caps or Freedom Garden Caps.

GLASS CONTAINERS; BRING TWO (2) STANDARD JARS.

All lids must be sealed with rings. NO EXCEPTIONS.

Rules and Regulations

- 1. In "Any Other" classes, entries must be label each variety on entry form and jars.
- 2. IMPORTANT: READ LOCAL RULE #4
- 3. IMPORTANT!! All jars MUST be labeled with exhibitor's name on bottom of jar. Label on the side of the jar to include name of product, date when product was preserved, method used to preserve item, and processing time of product. All jars must be labeled to qualify for judging. Do NOT use Post-It's for any type of label.

SAMPLE JAR SIDE LABEL:

Name of Product Date Preserved Method Used **Processing Time**

SAMPLE JAR BOTTOM LABEL: Your Name

- 4. All entries in this division must be home prepared and canned by the exhibitor within one year of the opening date of the fair. Items which have been shown at any previous SBC Fair not eligible
- 5. A standard glass jar that's specifically or especially designed for canning purposes is required unless otherwise noted. All jars are to have screw rings. NO MAYONNAISE, BEVERAGE OR ANY OTHER JAR. Jar must securely close after judging.

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

- 6. Two identical entries (rubber banded together) are required in all classes except the dried or dehydrated classes (see specific rules below). One jar is to be opened for judging and the other will be displayed, unopened during the remainder of the Fair.
- 7. All exhibits must be in sealed and outside of jar cleaned. No frozen products or refrigerated products.
- 8. Exhibitor MUST pick up the opened jar on the day of judging, after 5:00 p.m. All jars left after Wed, Oct 10, 2018 at 12:00 noon will be discarded. NO EXCEPTION!

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

DIVISION 150 AGE: 6 TO 9 YEARS OLD

DIVISION 151 AGE: 10 TO 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 152 AGE: 14 TO 18 YEARS OLD

Entry Fees: Division 150-152 per entry per class\$1.00

Limit of one (1) entry per exhibitor per class except where noted

Class:

Canned Fruits

- 1. Apples
- 2. Applesauce
- 3. Apricots
- 4. Berries
- 5. Peaches 6. Pears
- 7. Any other Fruit, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety

Pickles & Relishes

- 8. Cucumbers, Bread and Butter
- 9. Cucumbers, Dill
- 10. Cucumbers, Sweet
- 11. Pickled Vegetables
- 12. Mixed Vegetables
- 13. Relish, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety
- 14. Any Other Pickles, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety

Sauces and Salad Dressing

- 15. Salad Dressing -Not Refrigerated
- 16. Sauce, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety
- 17. Spaghetti Sauce
- 18. Salsa, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety

Jams

- 19. Apricot
- 20. Peach
- 21. Strawberry
- 22. Any other Jam, Specify, 2 entries allowed, label each entry Jelly

- 23. Apple
- 24. Grape
- 25. Any other Jelly, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety

Dried or Dehydrated Foods

Note: Bring 6 pieces in a Pint unsealed clear glass canning jar or equivalent. MUST have a re-closeable lid.

- 26. Jerky, Specify
- 27. Dried Apricots
- 28. Dried Fruit, Specify
- 29. Any other Items, Specify, 2 entries allowed; label each variety

Decorated Gift Pack: A container decorated with one (1) or more home canned products. Container should contain several other items to carry out the Theme. Canning of product and decorating must be done by exhibitor. No professional help.

- 30. Fair Theme "Gear up for the Fair"
- 31. Any other theme

Dept. 32 - Homemade Beer & Wine

Chair: Janice Alosi (831) 634-0723

Co-Chair: Gregg Bonturi

Important Dates and Times
Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving: Sun, Sep 30, 2018 12:00-3:00 p.m.
in the Pavilion Home Arts Dept.
Judging: Tue, Oct 2, 2018
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Open to all residents of San Benito County

Must be 21 years of age to compete

Use Junior / Adult Form

Limit of One Entry per Class per exhibitor unless otherwise stated

Chairman's Choice Awards Donated by Gregg Bonturi \$20.00 in each division (2)

"Best of Show" Ribbon Award

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Entries limited to products produced in San Benito County.
- 2. American System of Judging.
- 3. Homemade Beer will be judged using the American Home Brew Association Rules.
- 4. Two (2) 750 ml bottles of wine of equal quality and/or three (3) 12 oz. bottles of beer of equal quality is required. Plain blue, brown or green glass bottles only.
- 5. Label exhibitor's name on bottom of bottle.
- 6. Label name of product and date when product was bottled on side of bottle.
- 7. **NO** private designed/custom label anywhere on bottle, could result in not being judged and/or disqualification.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

DIVISION 160 HOMEMADE WINE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Class:

WHITE WINE

- 1. Chardonnay
- 2. Chenin Blanc
- 3. Dry White
- 4. Sauvignon Blanc
- 5. Any other white; Specify, max 2 entries

RED WINE

- 6. Burgundy
- 7. Cabernet Sauvignon
- 8. Merlot
- 9. Pinot Noir
- 10. Zinfandel
- 11. Any other red; specify, max 2 entries

BLUSH / ROSE WINE

- 12. White Zinfandel
- 13. Rose
- 14. Any Other Blush/Rose, Specify, max 2 entries

FORTIFIED WINES

- 15. Port
- 16. Sherry
- 17. Any other fortified; Specify, max 2 entries

OTHER WINES

- 18. Dessert, Red
- 19. Dessert, White
- 20. Fruit, Berry and/or Flower
- 21. Sparkling, White
- 22. Any other; Specify, max 2 entries

DIVISION 161 HOMEMADE BEER

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$

- 1. Pilsner
- 2. Porter
- 3. Stout
- 4. Dark Lager
- 5. European Amber Lager
- 6. Light Lager
- 7. American Ale
- 8. Belgian & French Ale
- 9. Belgian Strong Ale
- 10. English Brown Beer
- 11. English Pale Ale
- 12. India Pale Ale
- 13. Scottish & Irish Ale
- 14. Sour Ale
- 15. Strong Ale
- 16. Amber Hybrid Beer
- 17. Fruit Beers
- 18. German Wheat & Rye Beer
- 19. Light Hybrid Beer
- 20. Spice/Herb/Vegetable Beer
- 21. Smoke Flavored/Wood Aged Beer
- 22. Any Other Beer, specify, max. 2 entries

Dept. 33 - Commercial Wine

Chair: Janice Alosi (831) 634-0723 Co-Chair: Susan Calleri

Important Dates and Times
Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving: Sun, Sep 30, 2018 12:00-3:00 p.m.
in the Pavilion Home Arts Dept.
Judging: Tue. Oct 2, 2018

Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Open to all Commercial Wineries in San Benito County

Must be 21 years of age to compete

Use Junior / Adult Form

Limit of Five (5) Entries per Class per Winery

"Best of Show" Ribbon Award

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Entries limited to products produced in San Benito County.
- 2. American System of Judging.
- 3. Two (2) 750 ml bottles of wine of equal quality is required.
- 4. Commercial Label must appear on side of bottle.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

DIVISION 165 COMMERCIAL WINE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Class:

WHITE WINE

- 1. Chardonnay
- 2. Pinot Grigio/Pino Gris
- 3. Riesling
- 4. Viognier
- 5. White wines blended, Specify
- 6. Any other white wine; Specify

BLUSH / ROSE WINE

- 7. Blush/Rose
- 8. Zinfandel Blush
- 9. Any Other Blush/Rose, Specify

RED WINE

- 10. Cabernet Sauvignon
- 11. Syrah/Shiraz
- 12. Zinfandel Red
- 13. Petite Syrah
- 14. Merlot
- 15. Red wine blended, Specify
- 16. Any other red wine; Specify

OTHER WINES

- 17. Port Dessert wine
- 18. Any other wine; Specify

Dept. 35 - Clothing and Textiles

Chair: Irene Towler (408) 439-5568

Important Dates and Times Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018

Receiving: Sun, Sep 30, 2018, 12 p.m.-4 p.m. in Pavilion Quilt Room Judging: Mon. Oct 1, 2018 & Tue, Oct 2, 2018 Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Entries open to San Benito, Monterey, Santa Cruz, Santa Clara and Merced counties.

Use Junior / Adult Form

Entry Limit: Three (3) Entries per exhibitor per class, except where otherwise noted.

Only ONE department per entry form.

American System of Judging

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All entries in this department must have been home produced by the exhibitor within one (1) year of the opening date of last year's Fair to be eligible for premium awards. Exhibits must be adequately cleaned and pressed.
- 2. All items must be made from thread, yarn, woven fabric or commercial knit fabric as specified. No textile painting except where noted.
- 3. Commercial crafted garments will not be considered for awards.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

Chairwoman's Choice Award \$50.00

People's Choice Clothing & Home Furnishings Award BallotGift Certificate

CLOTHING

Best of Fair Apparel Award

<u>DIVISION 100 CHILDREN'S & INFANTS' APPAREL (THROUGH</u> CHILD SIZE 14)

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Class:

- 1. Costume
- 2. Sleepwear
- 3. Any other, specify

DIVISION 101 ADULT WEARING APPAREL

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Class:

- 1. Apron
- 2. Dress or Jumper
- 3. Wallet
- 4. Purse
- 5. Tote
- 6. Oversize Tote or Luggage
- 7. Accessory Bag
- 8. Costume
- 9. Costume Accessory

10. Hats

11. Any Other, specify

<u>DIVISION 102 HAND CROCHETED OR KNITTED WEARING</u> <u>APPAREL</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Class:

- 1. Scarf
- Shawl
 Purse
- 4. Sweater
- 5. Infant/Child Wearing Apparel
- 6. Adult Wearing Apparel
- 7. Hats

Page 28

8. Gloves

9. Any other, specify

DIVISION 103 MACHINE KNIT

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Class:

- 1. Sweater
- 2. Any Other, Specify

HOME FURNISHINGS/NEEDLEWORK

Best of Fair Needlework Award

Best of Fair Home Furnishings Award DIVISION 104 LINENS-NOT QUILTED

(DOILIES, GUEST OR TEA TOWELS, NAPKINS, PILLOW SHAMS, PLACEMATS (set of 4), TABLE RUNNERS, PILLOW CASES, ETC.)

DIVISION 105 PILLOWS-NOT QUILTED DIVISION 106 TREE SKIRTS-NOT QUILTED DIVISION 107 WALL HANGINGS-NOT QUILTED

Entry Fees: Divisions 104-107 per entry per class\$2.00

- 1. All wall hangings must have temporary or permanent hooks or other devices for hanging.
- 2. Quilted items must be entered in Quilts.

Class:

- 1. Counted Cross Stitch
- 2. Stamped Cross Stitch
- 3. Embroidery Kit
- 4. Needlepoint Kit
- 5. Sewn, Not Quilted

6. Any Other (except Quilts: See Quilt rule 1 below), specify

DIVISION 108 HAND CROCHETED

DIVISION 109 HAND KNITTED

Entry Fees: Division 108-109 per entry per class \$2.00

Class:

- 1. Crib approx. 45" x 60" (up to 2700 sq. in.)
- 2. Afghan approx. 72" x 90" (up to 6480 sq. in.)
- 3. Bedspread larger yet (6481 sq. in. or larger)
- 4. Toys
- 5. Rugs
- 6. Wall Hangings
- 7. Any other, specify

QUILTS

Rules and Regulations:

Entry limit: Three (3) entries per class unless otherwise stated

- 1. Quilt Definition: A quilt is a blanket or other flat entry that consists of three (3) layers: a fabric top, a fabric back and a soft material between. These layers are held together with either patterned hand stitches or patterned machine stitching that pierce all three layers.
- 2. All entries must have temporary or permanent sleeves. Finished sleeve should be five (5) inches high by width of quilt. Quilts will not be judged on sleeves. Quilts without sleeves or with inadequate sleeves may not be hung for display.
- 3. Some quilts, including king and queen size may not be hung due to space limitations.
- 4. The Department Chair reserves the right not to hang quilts that may not be in good condition, clean, free from pet hair, dirt, smoke or other odors.
- 5. To expedite the receiving process, quilts must be received folded so that the front bottom right hand corner of the quilt is on top for pinning of entry cards.
- 6. All exhibitors are encouraged to turn in a 4" x 6" card with a quilt title, name of professional quilter and a description of the quilt and/or exhibitor written in 50 words or less. These cards will not be seen by judges but will be seen by fairgoers.

Best of Show Quilt Award

Best of Fair Handwork Quilt Award

Best of Fair Appliqué Quilt Award

Best of Fair Innovative Design Quilt

Best of Fair Use of Color Ouilt

Loreen Yates Memorial Award for Best Traditional Quilt **Dorothy Harlan Quilt Award for Best Representation of**

Family, Fair and San Benito County

Judge's Choice Award

People's Choice Quilt Award Ballot

Hand Quilted

DIVISION 111 HAND QUILTED BY EXHIBITOR

Must be machined pieced and hand quilted by exhibitor.

DIVISION 112 HAND QUILTED

Must be pieced by exhibitor and hand quilted by someone other than the

DIVISION 113 HAND PIECED HAND QUILTED BY EXHIBITOR

Must be hand pieced and hand quilted by exhibitor.

Hand Appliqued

DIVISION 114 HAND APPLIQUED HAND QUILTED

Must be hand appliquéd and hand quilted by exhibitor.

DIVISION 115 HAND APPLIQUED MACHINE QUILTED

Must be hand appliquéd and machine quilted by exhibitor.

DIVISION 116 HAND APPLIQUED LONG ARM MACHINE QUILTED

Must be hand appliquéd by exhibitor and long arm machine quilted.

Machine Appliqued

DIVISION 117 MACHINE APPLIQUED HAND QUILTED

Must be machine appliquéd and hand quilted by exhibitor.

DIVISION 118 MACHINE APPLIQUED MACHINE QUILTED

Must be machine appliquéd and machine quilted by exhibitor.

DIVISION 119 MACHINE APPLIQUED LONG ARM MACHINE QUILTED

Must be machine appliquéd by exhibitor and long arm machine quilted.

Machine Quilted

DIVISION 120 MACHINE QUILTED BY EXHIBITOR

Must be machine pieced and machine quilted by exhibitor.

DIVISION 121 MACHINE QUILTED

Must be machine pieced by exhibitor and machine quilted by someone other than exhibitor.

DIVISION 122 LONG ARM MACHINE QUILTED

Must be machine pieced by exhibitor and long arm machine quilted not by computer.

DIVISION 123 LONG ARM MACHINE QUILTED BY COMPUTER

Must be machine pieced by exhibitor and long arm machine quilted by computer.

DIVISIONS 111 through 123

\$2.00

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

NOTE: Quilts MUST be measured. Multiply width x length to obtain square inches to determine class.

Class:

(up to & including 2700 sq. in.) 1. Crib – approx. 45" x 60" 2. Lap I – approx. 55" x 65" (up to & including 3750 sq. in.) 3. Lap II - approx. 60" x 80" (up to & including 4800 sq. in.) (up to & including 6480 sq. in.) 4. Twin - approx. 72" x 90" 5. Queen - approx. 90" x 108" (up to & including 9720 sq. in.) 6. King - approx. 120" x 120" (9721 sq. in. or larger) (up to & including 1296 sq. in.)

7. Wall Hanging 8. Table runner/ topper

9. Christmas tree skirt

10. Bed Runner

DIVISION 124 MY FIRST QUILT

Entry limit: One (1) entry

DIVISION 125 GROUP QUILT

Must be pieced and/or finished by more than one person.

DIVISION 126 TIED

Must be pieced and hand tied by exhibitor.

DIVISION 127 T-SHIRT QUILT

Top must be mostly consisting of T-Shirts.

DIVISIONS 124 through 127

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Not judged according to size of quilt.

Class:

- 1. Small up to & including 1296 sq. in.
- 2. Large 1297 sq. in. or larger

DIVISION 128 KITS, INNOVATIVE & ORIGINAL QUILTS

May include painted textiles.

\$2.00 Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

Not judged according to size of quilt.

Class:

- 1. Abstract
- 2. Kit
- 3. Landscape
- 4. Portraiture
- 5. Group of Small Quilts
- 6. Miniature Quilts
- 7 Quilts, Original Design
- Challenge Quilts
- Any other, specify

DIVISION 129 QUILTS – ANTIQUE, DISPLAY ONLY

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

No awards or ribbons.

Class:

1. Any antique quilt

DIVISION 130 SPECIAL FAIR CHALLENGE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Upcycle – re-purpose old clothing or textiles into new items.

- 1. Accessories
- 2. Clothing
- 3. Items for the home
- 4. Quilts
- 5. Any other, specify

Dept. 36 - Open Junior Clothing and Textiles

Chair: Irene Towler (408) 439-5568

Important Dates and Times Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018

Receiving: Sun, Sep 30, 2018, 12 p.m. - 4 p.m. in Pavilion Quilt Room Judging: Tue, Oct 2, 2018

Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Age Limit: 18 years old and younger

Use Junior / Adult Form

Limit of three (3) entries per exhibitor per class

Danish System of Judging

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Junior exhibitors may enter any Adult Clothing and Textile class not included in Junior Department. Age must be on entry form.
- 2. Each entry in these divisions shall have been made or produced by the exhibitor within one year of opening day of Fair. Entries shall be made on Junior Department entry forms provided by the Fair. The signature of a parent or guardian is required. State and Local Rules apply to all entries and scorecards for corresponding Adult and Junior Department Divisions shall be used unless otherwise provided in these divisions.
- 3. All items must be made from woven fabric.
- 4. Refer to Department 41 Open Juniors Crafts Rules #4 through #6.

Awards Presented

Best of Show awarded in each age group (6-9, 10-13 & 14-18).

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

SEWING

DIVISION 140 AGE: 6 TO 9 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 141 AGE: 10 TO 13 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 142 AGE: 14 TO 18 YEARS OLD

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Purse or Tote
- 2. Place Mats (set of 4)
- 3. Table Runner
- 4. Stuffed Animal
- 5. Apron
- 6.-Clothing
- 7. Pillow
- 8. Pillowcase
- 9. Any other, specify

QUILTS

DIVISION 143 AGE: 6 TO 9 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 144 AGE: 10 TO 13 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 145 AGE: 14 TO 18 YEARS OLD

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. My first quilt
- 2. Tied quilt
- 3. Machine pieced, and machine quilted by exhibitor
- 4. Machine pieced, and machine or long arm machine quilted

HOME DECORATIVE ACCESSORIES

DIVISION 146 AGE: 6 TO 9 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 147 AGE: 10 TO 13 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 148 AGE: 14 TO 18 YEARS OLD

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

- 1. Textile painting
- 2. Decorated throw pillow (store bought and decorated)
- 3. Knitted item
- 4. Crocheted item
- 5. Tied Blanket or Pillow (no sewing involved)
- 6. Any other, specify

Dept. 40 - Adult Crafts

Chair: Janice Alosi (831) 634-0723 Co-Chair: Susan Calleri (831) 801-3168

Important Dates and Times
Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving: Sun, Sep 30, 2018 12:00-3:00 p.m.
in the Pavilion Home Arts Dept.
Judging: Mon, Oct 1, 2018

Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Open to all residents of San Benito County

Use Junior / Adult Form

TWO (2) ENTRIES PER CLASS PER EXHIBITOR

Only ONE department per form

American System of Judging

Chairwoman's Choice Awards Donated by Janice Alosi 1st: \$20.00 2nd: \$15.00 3rd: \$10.00

"Best of Show" Ribbon Award

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All entries in this division must have been made by the exhibitor within one year of the opening date of the San Benito County Fair.
- 2. NO "Display Only" Items Allowed.
- 3. NO Refurbished Items (items made before and refurbished to look new again).
- 4. Weight of entry is not to exceed 20 pounds and size not to exceed 24" tall and 36" wide without prior approval of Chairwomen. Send email requests to Susan@SanBenitoCountyFair.com
- **5**. NOTE: Department Chair reserves the right to display Fair entries at her discretion. NO EXCEPTIONS.
- 6. ORIGINALITY IS STRESSED. No pre-worked kits, collections or kit models.
- 7. IMPORTANT: Read LOCAL RULE #4.
- $8.~\mathrm{WALL}$ HANGINGS AND PICTURES MUST BE PREPARED FOR HANGING.
- 9. Any exhibitor who has sold their hand-crafted items at any public event, by mail or on the internet must enter all their entries in the professional division. Exhibitors can NOT enter both the amateur and professional divisions.
- 10. All entries not in compliance with the rules may be disqualified. **NEW**

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

DIVISION 100 FAIR THEMED CRAFTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

2018 Theme "Gear up for the Fair"

All entries MUST have "Gears" within the craft to carry out the fair theme.

Class:

- 1. Stamping note card with Gear(s)
- 2. Scrapbook Page Gear themed
- 3. Basket Gear themed
- 4. Birdhouse Made using Gear(s)
- 5. Ceramics Make Gear(s)
- 6. Chairs Made using Gear(s)
- 7. Flower Pot Decorate with the Gear theme
- 8. Hat (dry or silk decorations) Gear themed
- 9. Leatherwork Gear themes
- 10. Stenciling Gear themed
- 11. Wind Chimes Gear themed
- 12. Wreath Gear themed
- 13. Jewelry, specify Gear themed
- 14. Metal Gear(s) Painted
- 15. Wood Gear(s) Painted
- 16. Stained Glass of Gear(s)
- 17. Woodworking Gear themed

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

- 18. Wood Carving Gear themed
- 19. Centerpiece Gear themed
- 20. Hanging Decoration Gear themed
- 21. Gear(s) Turn old vehicle Gear(s) into Yard Art
- 22. Watch Gear(s) Create Jewelry from old watch gear(s)
- 23. Any Other Craft using the Gear theme

DIVISION 101 STAMPING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Class:

- 1. Stamped Note Cards (Set of 4)
- 2. Stamped Any other, specify

DIVISION 102 SCRAPBOOKING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Create a Photo Page including Photos

Bring one (1) Single Scrapbook Page including Photos

NO Scrapbook Pages in a book, album or connected to any other page (Due to space only single page scrapbook pages will be accepted)

Class

- 1. Baby
- 2. Birthday
- 3. Christmas
- 4. Easter
- 5. Family
- 6. Halloween
- 7. Sports
- 8. Thanksgiving
- 9. Vacation
- 10. Digital Scrapbooking
- 11. Any other, specify

DIVISION 103 CRAFTS & DECORATIVE ARTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Class:

- 1. Baskets Decorated
- 2. Birdhouses Decorated
- Candles
- 4. Ceramics
- 5. Chair, under 6", Decorated
- 6. Decoupage
- 7. Dolls
- 8. Duct Tape, must be made of 80% Duct Tape
- 9. Flower Pot Decorated
- 10. Hat (Dry or Silk decorations)
- 11. Leatherwork
- 12. Resin/Plaster Crafts
- 13. Soaps (handmade)
- 14. Stenciling All Forms
- 15. Wind Chimes
- 16. Wreaths & Sprays (Dry or Silk)
- 17. Any Other, Specify

DIVISION 104 HOLIDAY DECORATION

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Class

- 1. Hanging Christmas Tree Ornament
- 2. Christmas Stockings, any method
- 3. Holiday Decoration, specify
- 4. Holiday Center Piece
- 5. Decorated Basket6. Holiday Wearable
- 7. Any Other, Specify

DIVISION 105 WEARABLE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Please describe all jewelry pieces on entry form for clearer judging.

Please bring Hair Accessories, Jewelry and other small items in a Ziploc bag or equivalent.

If you have a display stand, your items can be displayed on your stand.

- 1. Hair Accessories (Ribbons, Bows, etc.)
- 2. Jewelry Bracelet
- 3. Jewelry Brooch/Pin

- 4. Jewelry Earrings
- 5. Jewelry Necklace6. Jewelry Ring
- 7. Jewelry sets, two or more matching pieces
- 8. Jewelry Any other
- 9. Any other, specify

DIVISION 106 PAINTING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Class:

- 1. Ceramics
- 2. Functional
- 3 Glass
- 4. Metal
- 5. Silk
- 6. Tole
- 7. Wood
- 8. Any other, specify

DIVISION 107 STAINED GLASS, WOOD WORKING & WOOD CARVING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Class:

- 1. Stained Glass
- 2. Woodworking
- 3. Wood Carving
- 4. Any other, specify

DIVISION 108 WELDING & FORGING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

No Professional work allowed.

Class:

- 1. Welded Horseshoes
- 2. Welding: Any Other, Specify
- 3. Forging, Specify

DIVISION 109 RECYCLE & REPURPOSE ART

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Take something old and give it a new life as something else! Start with one item and transform it into something new!

Include a 4" x 6" photo of original item(s) along with your finished item. Be Artistic, Creative and Imaginative!

Class:

- 1. Aluminum Cans Make something using aluminum cans
- 2. Birdhouse Build a birdhouse from another item(s)
- 3. Furniture Create furniture from other items(s)
- 4. Garden Art Turn something into Garden Art
- 5. Holiday Decoration Turn a non-Holiday item into a Holiday Decoration
- 6. Jewelry Make a non-Jewelry item into Jewelry
- 7. Wind Chimes Use your imagination to make a Wind Chime
- 8. Any Other Recycled Art, Specify
- 9. Any Other Repurposed Art, Specify

DIVISION 110 MYSTERY CRAFT

\$1.50 Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

Make a craft item using at least 4 of the required items listed below. Additional craft supplies (glue, paint, paper, etc.) may be used.

Required Items: (Must use at least 4)

Bottle Cap	CD	Felt	Gear (metal/plastic)
Googly Eyes	Map	Picture Frame	Pom Pom
Rubber Band	Sand Paper	Watch	Wire

Class:

1. Mystery Craft item

DIVISION 111 USE YOUR IMAGINATION - BE CREATIVE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Measure all items to insure they are entered in the correct judging class.

Class:

- 1. Item under 12"
- 2. Item over 12" and under 20"
- 3. Item over 20"

PROFESSIONAL CRAFTS

Ribbons Only

One "Best of Show" will be awarded

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All rules for Adult Crafts apply.
- 2. Any exhibitor who has sold their hand-crafted items at any public event, by mail or on the internet must enter ALL their entries in the professional division. Exhibitors can NOT enter both the amateur and professional divisions.

DIVISION 112 FAIR THEMED CRAFTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

2018 Theme "Gear up for the Fair"

All entries MUST have a "Gear Up for the Fair" within the craft to carry out fair theme.

Class:

- 1. Stamping note card with Gear(s)
- 2. Scrapbook Page Gear themed
- 3. Basket Gear themed
- 4. Birdhouse Made using Gear(s)
- 5. Ceramics Make Gear(s)
- 6. Chairs Made using Gear(s)
- 7. Duct Tape, must be made of 80% Duct Tape
- 8. Flower Pot Decorate with the Gear theme
- 9. Hat (dry or silk decorations) Gear themed
- 10. Leatherwork Gear themes
- 11. Stenciling Gear themed
- 12. Wind Chimes Gear themed
- 13. Wreath Gear themed
- 14. Jewelry, specify Gear themed
- 15. Metal Gear(s) Painted
- 16. Wood Gear(s) Painted
- 17. Stained Glass of Gear(s)
- 18. Woodworking Gear themed
- 19. Wood Carving Gear themed
- 20. Centerpiece Gear themed
- 21. Hanging Decoration Gear themed
- 22. Gear(s) Turn old vehicle Gear(s) into Yard Art
- 23. Watch Gear(s) Create Jewelry from old watch gear(s)
- 24. Any Other Craft using the Gear theme

DIVISION 113 STAMPING & SCRAPBOOKING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Create a Photo Page including Photos

Bring one (1) scrapbook page and no scrapbook pages in a book or album.

- 1. Stamped; Any other, specify
- 2. Scrapbooking; Birthday
- 3. Scrapbooking; Holiday
- 4. Scrapbooking; Family
- 5. Scrapbooking; Sports 6. Scrapbooking; Vacation
- 7. Scrapbooking; Digital
- 8. Scrapbooking; Any other, Specify

DIVISION 114 CRAFTS & DECORATIVE ARTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Baskets- Decorated
- 2. Birdhouses Decorated
- 3. Candles
- 4. Ceramics
- 5. Decoupage
- 6. Flower Pots- Decorated
- 7. Leatherwork
- 8. Resin/Plaster Crafts
- 9. Soaps, handmade
- 10. Stenciling- All Forms
- 11. Wreaths, Hats, & Sprays
- 12. Wind Chimes
- 13. Any other, specify

DIVISION 115 HOLIDAY DECORATION

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Basket- Decorated
- 2. Christmas Stockings, any method
- 3. Hanging Christmas Tree Ornament
- 4. Holiday Center Piece
- 5. Holiday Decoration, specify
- 6. Holiday Wearable
- 7. Any other, specify

DIVISION 116 WEARABLE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Hair Accessories (Ribbons, Bows, etc.)
- 2. Jewelry Bracelet
- 3. Jewelry Brooch/Pin
- 4. Jewelry Earrings
- 5. Jewelry Necklace
- 6. Jewelry Ring
- 7. Jewelry Set, two or more matching pieces
- 8. Jewelry Any Other
- 9. Any other, Specify

DIVISION 117 PAINTING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Ceramic
- 2. Glass
- 3. Metal
- 4. Tole
- 5. Wood6. Any Other, Specify

DIVISION 118 STAINED GLASS, WOOD WORKING & WOOD

CARVING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Stained Glass
- 2. Wood Carving
- 3. Woodworking
- 4. Any Other, specify.

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

DIVISION 119 RECYCLE & REPURPOSE ART

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Take something old and give it a new life as something else! Start with one item and transform it into something new!

Include a 4" x 6" photo of original item(s) along with your finished item.

Be Artistic, Creative and Imaginative!

Class:

- 1. Aluminum Cans Make something using aluminum cans
- 2. Birdhouse Build a birdhouse from another item(s)
- 3. Furniture Create furniture from other items(s)
- 4. Garden Art Turn something into Garden Art
- 5. Holiday Decoration Turn a non-Holiday item into a Holiday Decoration
- 6. Jewelry Make a non-Jewelry item into Jewelry
- 7. Wind Chimes Use your imagination to make a Wind Chime
- 8. Any Other Recycled Art, Specify
- 9. Any Other Repurposed Art, Specify

DIVISION 120 USE YOUR IMAGINATION - BE CREATIVE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Item under 12"
- 2. Item between 12" and 20"
- 3. Item over 20"

HAND SPUN HOME ARTS

"Best of Show" Ribbon Award in Adults, Juniors, & Professionals classes.

DIVISION 121 HAND SPUN HOME ARTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

Each skein must be at least one ounce. Items must be made from hand spun yarn unless stated otherwise.

Class:

Adults

- 1. Hand-Spun Skeins singles
- 2. Hand-Spun Skeins two plies
- 3. Hand-Spun Skeins any other
- 4. Hand-Spun, hand knit or crochet
- 5. Hand-Spun, hand-woven
- 6. Felted
- 7. Hand-woven, commercial yarn
- 8. Basketry any type, need not use Hand-spun
- 9. Handmade Paper

Juniors, 18 years old and younger

- 10. Hand-Spun Skeins
- 11. Hand-Spun, hand knit or crochet
- 12. Hand-Spun, hand-woven
- 13. Felted
- 14. Hand-woven, commercial yarn

Professionals

- 15. Hand-Spun, Skeins
- 16. Hand-Spun, any other, Specify

Dept. 41 - Open Junior Crafts

Chair: t.b.d.

Volunteers Needed - please call the Fair office or submit form at back of this Exhibitor Handbook.

Important Dates and Times
Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving: Sun, Sep 30, 2018 12:00-3:00 p.m.
in the Youth Exhibits Hall
Judging: Wed, Oct 3, 2018
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

San Benito County Residents Only

Age Limit: 18 years old and younger (except for Adult Special Education Projects)

Use Junior / Adult Form

Limit two (2) entries per class unless otherwise stated

Danish System of Judging

NO PREMIUMS - RIBBONS ONLY

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. The Open Junior Department is for young people who want to enter exhibits at fairs and have no junior organization affiliation requirement.
- 2. Each entry in all Open Juniors Departments should have been made, produced, collected or raised by the exhibitor. Entries shall be made on Junior / Adult Department Entry Forms provided by the Fair. The signature of a parent or guardian is required. State and Local Rules apply to all entries and scorecards in corresponding Adult and Junior Department divisions shall be used unless otherwise provided in this division.
- 3. NOTE: Exhibitors who are enrolled in any junior organization (i.e. 4-H, FFA) are not eligible to enter articles in the Open Junior Department if they are in any way eligible as their junior organization projects and if divisions are offered in 4-H or FFA departments.
- 4. The Open Junior Department has been established to encourage the participation of youngsters who may not belong to 4-H or FFA. No one entered in this department can enter the same type of exhibit in the Adult, 4-H or FFA Department.
- 5. State Rules and Health Rules applicable to the Adult Department apply also to the Open Junior Department.
- 6. All SPECIAL AWARDS in the Open Junior Department are to be decided by the judges in each applicable division.
- 7. In all Open Junior Departments using the Danish System the following guidelines shall be used by the judges.

Quality	Score	Ribbon
Group 1: Superior	92%-100%	Blue
Group 2: Good	84%-91%	Red
Group 3: Average, Acceptable	70%-83%	White
Group 4: Poor, Undesirable	69% or less	None

Awards will be given in different Divisions & Classes

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Please state age on entry form.
- 2. The signature of a parent or guardian is required.
- 3. All entries in this division must have been made within one year of the opening day of Fair.
- 4. Originality is stressed. No pre-worked kits, collections or models.

NOTE: Wall hangings and pictures MUST be prepared for hanging.

ALL INDIVIDUAL SCHOOL ART PROJECTS MUST BE ENTERED IN DEPARTMENT 45, DIVISION 109 OPEN JR ART.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

OPEN JUNIOR TABLE SETTINGS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Limit one (1) entry per exhibitor Only ages 6 to 18 years old.
- 2. Exhibitor must furnish their own STANDARD CARD TABLE, table covering, dishes, glassware, flatware, centerpiece or table decoration. Include written menu to be placed on table. Flatware will be removed after judging. The Fair is not responsible for any loss.
- 3. No paper products can be used as part of the place setting except centerpiece.
- 4. Tables are to be set between 5:00 and 8:00 p.m. on Mon, Oct 1, 2018.
- 5. A two-person setting required.
- 6. No adult help.
- 7. A total of 10 table settings maximum.

DIVISION 120 AGE: 6 TO 9 YEARS OLD DIVISION 121 AGE: 10 TO 13 YEARS OLD

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Holiday, Specify
- 2. Any other, specify

KID'S COLLECTIONS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Collection displays shall be limited to one (1) entry per exhibitor.
- 2. This class shall be limited to 20 entries.
- 3. Display items must all belong to the individual entering the display. All collections must be appropriate for public display.
- 4. Specify collection and space required on the entry form. Examples: thimbles, cookie cutters, animals, bumper stickers, hats, nails, records, buttons, matches, etc. USE YOUR IMAGINATION!!
- 5. Exhibitor must include attractive (large print) card not to exceed 8" x 10" for judging and display. The information given on the card is considered in judging. The card should be self-standing and include the following information:
 - a. Date/history of the items or when collection was started
 - b. How items were collected
- 6. If entire collection is not displayed, state the number of items in the entire collection.

DIVISION 122 AGE: 2 TO 5 YEARS OLD DIVISION 123 AGE: 6 TO 9 YEARS OLD DIVISION 124 AGE: 10 TO 13 YEARS OLD

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

1. 1-10 items in collection, specify

2. 11-25 items in collection, specify

JUNIOR CRAFTS

DIVISION 125 AGE: 2 TO 5 YEARS OLD DIVISION 126 AGE: 6 TO 9 YEARS OLD DIVISION 127 AGE: 10 TO 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 128 AGE: 14 TO 18 YEARS OLD

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Wood Working
- 2. Holiday Decoration, specify
- 3. Jewelry
- 4. Leatherwork
- 5. Duct Tape Crafts
- 6. Handmade Garland, any material
- 7. Any Scrapbook page
- 8. Stamping
- 9. Painted Crafts
- 10. S.T.E.M. Project (Science, Technology, Engineering & Mathematics)
- 11. Use Your Imagination; must be made of recycled materials
- 12. Pinewood Derby Cars
- 13. Birdhouses
- 14. Decorated Flower Pot
- 15. Welding & Forging
- 16. Decorated Picture Frame
- 17. Use your Imagination Garden Art
- 18. Any other, Specify

OPEN JUNIOR LEGO CREATION

Rules and Regulations:

1. Must be in plastic bag or box with name on it.

DIVISION 129 AGE: 2 TO 5 YEARS OLD DIVISION 130 AGE: 6 TO 9 YEARS OLD DIVISION 131 AGE: 10 TO 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 132 AGE: 14 TO 18 YEARS OLD

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class

1. Create your own original Lego design – example: Build a town, a robot, a cat, a ship, the ideas are endless!

OPEN JUNIOR AMERICAN FLAG

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. No offensive use of language, pictures or materials.
- 2. Department Chair has the discretion to refuse any entry deemed inappropriate.

DIVISION 133 AGE: 2 TO 5 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 134 AGE: 6 TO 9 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 135 AGE: 10 TO 13 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 136 AGE: 14 TO 18 YEARS OLD

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Create your own American Flag. The flags must be red, white and blue. You can use fabric, painting on wood, bottle caps, flowers and many other materials. Imagination is key!

Class:

1. Create your own American Flag

SCHOOL CLASS PROJECTS

Exhibits will be displayed in areas to accommodate size of project. Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Open to all San Benito County School classes as divisions allow.
- 2. Class teacher and school name must be on back of exhibit.
- 3. Entries will be limited to <u>One (1) entry per classroom</u>. Entered under teacher's name only. Teacher to provide display poster with student's names.
- 4. All exhibits MUST be made in school under the supervision of the teacher.

DIVISION 137 GRADES Pre-K, K, 1 & 2

DIVISION 138 GRADES 3 & 4

DIVISION 139 GRADES 5 & 6

DIVISION 140 GRADES 7 & 8

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Class:

- 1. Mural
- 2. Quilt
- 3. Any other, Specify

SCHOOL SCIENCE FAIR PROJECTS

Limited to First 10 Entries

<u>DIVISION 141 GRADES 4</u> <u>DIVISION 142 GRADES 5 & 6</u> DIVISION 143 GRADES 7 & 8

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

1. Any Subject

CALIFORNIA MISSION PROJECT

Limited to First 5 Entries

DIVISION 144 ANY GRADE & ANY AGE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

1. Any Mission

YOUTH GROUP/SCOUT PROJECTS

Projects, Art or Community Service done as a youth group, Girl Scout Troop, Boy Scout Troop or Patrol, Cub Scout Pack or Den, including all Eagle Scout projects and Bronze, Silver or Gold Award projects.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Open to all San Benito County Youth Organizations & Scout Groups.
- Name of organization/troop/patrol/pack/den must be on the back of the exhibit. Display poster/sign with names of participants & organization to be provided.
- 3. Entries are limited to one (1) entry per youth group/troop/patrol/pack/den
- 4. Eagle Scout, Gold Award or similar award entries are to be entered under the individual's name.
- 5. Pinewood Derby cars and Wood Working projects are to be entered under Junior Crafts.

DIVISION 145 YOUTH GROUP/ORGANIZATION DIVISION 146 SCOUT TROOP/PATROL/PACK/DEN DIVISION 147 EAGLE SCOUT, GOLD AWARD or SIMILAR AWARDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Class:

- 1. Art Project
- 2. Any Subject

SPECIAL EDUCATION PROJECTS

Use Junior / Adult Form

Limit: 5 entries per person

The San Benito County Fair supports the concept that no physical or mental disability need limit the human potential to create. Disabled exhibitors who produce works unassisted may enter in individual competitions.

Rules and Regulations:

1. All entries must be signed by the exhibitor, parent and/or legal guardian.

DIVISION 148 JUNIOR SPECIAL EDUCATION PROJECT

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

18 Years old & younger

DIVISION 149 ADULT SPECIAL EDUCATION PROJECT

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

19 Years of age and older

Classes:

- 1. Arts & Crafts
- 2. Foods
- 3. Fine Arts
- 4. Any other, specify

SCHOOL CLASSROOM INDIVIDUAL PROJECTS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. The exhibitor is the school classroom teacher. Please provide a list of the students in your class by grade level. We do not want an individual entry form for each student.
- 2. Entries will be limited to forty (40) entries per classroom teacher.
- 3. Entries may be in any medium.
- 4. The student's school, teacher, grade, student name MUST be attached to each entry.
- 5. All exhibits left after 7 P.M. on Mon, Oct 8, 2018 will be left in the department at the owner's risk. If you are not able to pick up your exhibits notify the department Chair ahead of time.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Enter the name of the student on the description line. One student per line.

<u>DIVISION 150 SCHOOL CLASSROOM INDIVIDUAL</u> <u>PROJECTS</u>

Entry Fees: (per student) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Any craft item, Pre-school
- 2. Any craft item, Grades Kindergarten & $1^{\rm st}$
- 3. Any craft item, Grades 2nd & 3rd
- 4. Any craft item, Grades 4^{th} & 5^{th}
- 5. Any craft item, Grades 6th, 7th & 8th

YOUTH GROUP INDIVIDUAL PROJECTS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. The exhibitor is the youth group leader. Please provide a list of the youth in your group by age. We do not want an individual entry form for each group member.
- 2. Entries will be limited to forty (40) entries per youth group leader.
- 3. Entries may be in any medium.
- 4. The youth group, leader, member name and age MUST be attached to each entry.
- 5. All exhibits left after 7 P.M. on Mon, Oct 8, 2018 will be left in the department at the owner's risk. If you are not able to pick up your exhibits notify the department Chair ahead of time.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Enter the name of the student on the description line. One student per line.

DIVISION 151 YOUTH GROUP INDIVIDUAL PROJECTS

Entry Fees: (per group member) \$1.00

- 1. Any craft item, under four years old
- 2. Any craft item, four to five years old
- 3. Any craft item, six to nine years old
- 4. Any craft item, ten to thirteen years old
- 5. Any craft item, fourteen to seventeen years old

Dept. 42 - Literary Arts

Chair: Amanda Chiado, amandachiado@gmail.com

Important Dates and Times

Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018 Receiving: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 4:00-7:00 p.m. in the Youth Exhibits Hall Judging: by a Local Writer

Open to San Benito County Residents Only

Limit one (1) entries per class unless otherwise stated

American System of Judging

JUNIOR POETRY

DIVISION 100 JUNIOR POETRY

Open to 4 through 10 years only (as of Jan. 1, 2018).

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Theme: I Believe Rules and Regulations:

1. Poem may be up to fourteen lines.

- 2. Poem may be in any written language if English translation is provided.
- 3. Entry must be contestant's original work.
- 4. Entry should be printed in 24-point font on $8-1/2 \times 11$ paper, with minimum of 1" to 1.5" margin. Write the name of poet, age and name of school name (if applicable) on the back.
- 5. Students may also include an artistic rendering on an $8-1/2 \times 11$ sheet of paper. Write the name of poet, age and name of school (if applicable) on the back.
- 6. Grant funds may be available to cover cost of fees of students in public schools.

Awards in each class: 1st, 2nd, 3rd & two honorable mentions consisting of ribbons and poetry books

Class:

1. Poem

JUNIOR CREATIVE WRITING

DIVISION 200 FLASH FICTION

Open to age 11 through 18 years only (as of Jan. 1, 2018)

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Theme: A New World
Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Entry must consist of a single piece of fiction, non-fiction or poetry.
- 2. Entries must be 250 words or less and creatively address the theme.
- 3. Entry must be "original" and previously unpublished.
- 4. Entry should be printed in 12-point font on white $8/1-2 \times 11$ paper, with 1.5" margins and name written on the back.

Awards in each class: 1st, 2nd, 3rd & two honorable mentions consisting of ribbons and books.

Class:

1. Fiction

ADULT CREATIVE WRITING

DIVISION 300 FLASH FICTION and NONFICTION

Open to age 19 years and older (as of Jan. 1, 2018)

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Theme: It was a Strange Year

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Entry must consist of a single piece of fiction, non-fiction or poetry.
- 2. Entries must be 250 words or less and creatively address the theme.
- 3. Entry must be "original" and previously unpublished.
- 4. Entry should be printed in 12-point font on white 8.5 x 11 paper, with 1.5" margins and name written on the back.

Awards in each class: 1st, 2nd, 3rd & two honorable mentions consisting of ribbons and books.

- 1. Fiction
- 2. Non-fiction

Dept. 45 - Fine Arts

Chair: Stephanie Skow email: stephanie.skow9@gmail.com

Volunteers Needed - please email Department Chair or submit form at back of this Exhibitor Handbook.

Important Dates and Times
Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving in the Fine Arts/Photography Building
Sun, Sep 30, 2018 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.
Closed Judging: Wed, Oct 3, 2018
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.
No early pick-ups.

Entry is Open to San Benito County Residents ONLY

Use Junior / Adult Form

An exhibitor may enter a maximum of six (6) entries - two per class but no more than six entries total. This does not include any entries in Division 106 Fair Theme: "Gear up for the Fair" or Division 107 Pinnacles National Park.

Only ONE department per form

American System of Judging

Closed Door Judging

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. No work previously hung at this Fair may be entered.
- 2. Entries must have been completed within the past two years.
- 3. Wet or inadequately framed work will not be accepted. Work MUST be securely <u>WIRED FOR HANGING</u>. Canvases must be <u>FRAMED</u>. Junior Art must be suitably framed and <u>WIRED FOR HANGING</u>. NO TAPE!
- Watercolors, pastels and graphics must be framed and under glass or Plexiglas and be securely wired for hanging. NO SAW TOOTH HANGERS.
- 5. No clip frames/uniframes or in canvas frame will be accepted in any department.
- 6. MINIMUM SIZE: 8"x10" including frame. MAXIMUM SIZE: 34"x40" including frame. NO MURALS. NO EXCEPTIONS.
- 7. All entries must be adequately labeled with the exhibitor's name, address, telephone, division, class, title and medium on the back of work. If work is "For Sale", the price must also be given on the entry form and the piece of art. No commission will be charged. If not for sale, so state "NFS".
- 8. Entries must be originals (no copies). No kits.
- 9. The Art Department reserves the right to decline to display any entry found to violate these listed rules and regulations or found to be unsuitable for the family audience that the Fair attracts. The department also reserves the right to refuse a work considered too fragile to exhibit. The entry fee for such work will be refunded to the artist.

SPECIAL AWARDS:

"PEOPLES CHOICE AWARD"

\$50.00 donated by San Benito Art Council & Dan Rogers Painting

"BEST OF SHOW" (Chosen from all art work)
Ribbon and \$50.00 donated by Dan Rogers Painting

DIVISION 100 THREE-DIMENSIONAL WORK

JUNIOR AMATEUR / 12 Years & younger

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.75

Original Ceramic hand built or wheel created art projects (no kits or molds)

Awards donated by John Freiermuth and Elizabeth Talbot Awards in each class: 1st \$10.00, 2nd \$5.00, 3rd \$5.00

Class

- 1. Functional Pottery
- 2. Sculpture

DIVISION 101 THREE-DIMENSIONAL WORK

JUNIOR AMATEUR / 13 through 18 years of age

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Awards donated by John Freiermuth and Elizabeth Talbot Awards in each class: 1st \$10.00, 2nd \$5.00, 3rd \$5.00

Class

- 1. Functional Pottery
- 2. Sculpture
- 3. Animals

DIVISION 102 THREE-DIMENSIONAL WORK

AMATEUR & PROFESSIONAL / 19 Years old and older **Awards donated by John Freiermuth and Elizabeth Talbot Awards in each class:** 1st \$15.00, 2nd: \$10.00, 3rd \$5.00

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$3.00

Pottery, Sculpture, Plaster, Metal, Wood, Paper Mache

Class:

- 1. Pottery
- 2. Sculpture, Plaster, Metal, Wood, Paper Mache

DIVISION 103 PAINTINGS & DRAWINGS

AMATEUR & ADVANCED AMATEUR / 19 Years old and older

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$3.00

Awards donated by John Freiermuth and Elizabeth Talbot Awards in each class: 1st \$10.00, 2nd \$5.00, 3rd \$5.00

Class:

- 1. Oil/Acrylics, all subjects
- 2. Watercolors, all subjects
- 3. Drawings & Printmaking, all
- 4. Pastel
- 5. Mixed Medium

DIVISION 104 PAINTINGS & DRAWING

SEMI-PROFESSIONAL & PROFESSIONAL / 19 Years old and older **Awards donated by John Freiermuth and Elizabeth Talbot Awards in each class:** 1st \$15.00, 2nd \$10.00, 3rd \$5.00

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$3.0

Class:

- 1. Oil/Acrylics, all subjects
- 2. Watercolors, all subjects
- 3. Drawings & Printmaking, all
- 4. Pastel
- 5. Mixed Medium

DIVISION 105 SPECIAL, ANY MEDIUM

19 Years old and older

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$3.00

Awards presented: 1st \$15.00, 2nd \$10.00, 3rd \$5.00

- 1. San Benito County Scenery / Plein Air Painting
- 2. Floral

DIVISION 106 FAIR THEME: GEAR UP FOR THE FAIR

An exhibitor may enter a maximum of three (3) entries. These do NOT count toward the departmental six (6) entry maximum.

Any medium

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Awards presented: 1st \$15.00, 2nd \$10.00, 3rd \$5.00

Class

1. 18 years old and younger

2. 19 Years old and older

DIVISION 107 PINNACLES NATIONAL PARK

An exhibitor may enter a maximum of three (3) entries. These do NOT count toward the departmental six (6) entry maximum.

Any medium

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Awards presented: 1st \$15.00, 2nd \$10.00, 3rd \$5.00

Class:

1. 18 years old and younger

2. 19 Years old and older

<u>DIVISION 108 JUNIOR</u>

ART/PAINTING/DRAWING/PRINTMAKING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Awards donated by John Freiermuth and Elizabeth Talbot Awards in classes 1, 2 & 3: 1st \$15.00, 2nd \$10.00, 3rd \$5.00

Awards donated by Jennifer Coile and John Robrock Awards in classes 4, 5 & 6: 1st \$15.00, 2nd \$10.00, 3rd \$5.00

See Art Department Rules #1 through #7 for hanging requirements

Class:

1. All Subjects, any medium (ages 5 through 6)

2. All Subjects, any medium (ages 7 through 9)

3. All Subjects, any medium (ages 10 through 13)

4. Landscapes, any medium (ages 14 through 18)

5. Portrait / Animal, any medium (ages 14 through 18)

6. Portrait / People, any medium (ages 14 through 18)

7. Manga and Fantasy, any medium (ages 14 through 18)

8. All Subjects, any medium (ages 14 through 18)

OPEN JUNIOR UNFRAMED ART

Important Dates and Times
Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving in the Fine Arts/Photography Building
Sat, Sep 29, 2018 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.
No early pick-ups.

Rules and Regulations:

1. Age Limit: 1 through 13 years. All San Benito County Juniors are eligible to enter. Please state age on entry form.

2. Entries will be limited to one (1) entry per person.

- 3. Entries may be in any medium and must be properly matted. All entries will be mounted on construction paper only and no larger than 9" x12" including matting.
- 4. Exhibitor's name, age, address, name of work and type of medium, MUST be printed on the back of each entry.
- 5. NOTE: All exhibits left after 7 P.M. on Mon, Oct 8, 2018 will be left in the department at the owner's risk. If you are not able to pick up your exhibits notify the department Chair ahead of time.
- 6. This division is for individual entries. It is NOT for art submitted by classroom teachers on behalf of their students (see Dept. 46)

 $\begin{tabular}{ll} ONLINE\ ENTRY\ INFORMATION: \hline {\bf No\ additional\ information} \\ \underline{\bf needed.} \\ \end{tabular}$

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

DIVISION 109 OPEN JUNIOR UNFRAMED ART

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

NOT JUDGED, PARTICIPATION RIBBONS ONLY

Class

- 1. Paintings or Drawings, any medium, 1, 2, 3 and 4-year olds
- 2. Paintings or Drawings, any medium, 5 and 6-year olds
- 3. Paintings or Drawings, any medium, 7 and 8-year olds
- 4. Paintings or Drawings, any medium, 9 and 10-year olds
- 5. Paintings or Drawings, any medium, 11, 12 and 13-year olds

NOTE: Entries for 5 years old and older that wish to frame their entry may enter Division 108 above

Dept. 46 - School Classroom Unframed Art

Chair: Stephanie Skow email: stephanie.skow9@gmail.com

Important Dates and Times
Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving in the Fine Arts/Photography Building:
Sat, Sep 29, 2018 from 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.
No early pick-ups.

Use Junior / Adult Form

Grade Limit: Preschool through 8th grade. All San Benito County Classroom Teachers are eligible to enter their student's artwork, One (1) piece per student. Please state grade on entry form.

Only ONE department per form

Teachers: Be prepared to attach the Fair Tags to the individual pieces of the student's art work.

SCHOOL CLASSROOM UNFRAMED ART

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. The exhibitor is the school classroom teacher. Please provide a list of the students in your class by grade level. We do not want an individual entry form for each student.
- 2. Entries will be limited to forty (40) entries per classroom teacher.
- 3. Entries may be in any medium and must be properly matted. All entries will be mounted on construction paper only and no larger than 9" x12" including matting.
- 4. The student's school, teacher, grade, name, name of work and type of medium, MUST be printed on the back of each entry.
- 5. All exhibits left after 7 P.M. on Mon, Oct 8, 2018 will be left in the department at the owner's risk. If you are not able to pick up your exhibits notify the department Chair ahead of time.
- 6. This department is NOT for individual entries. Please use Department 45, Division 109.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Enter the name of the student on the description line. One student per line.

DIVISION 115 SCHOOL CLASSROOM ART

Entry Fees: (per student) \$1.0

NOT JUDGED, PARTICIPATION RIBBONS ONLY

- 1. Paintings or Drawings, any medium, Pre-school & T-Kinder
- 2. Paintings or Drawings, any medium, Grades Kindergarten & 1st
- 3. Paintings or Drawings, any medium, Grades 2nd & 3rd
- 4. Paintings or Drawings, any medium, Grades 4^{th} & 5^{th}
- 5. Paintings or Drawings, any medium, Grades 6th, 7th & 8th

Dept. 47 - Photography

Chair – Robb Lee (831) 524-8103. Questions accepted by text or phone. Don't wait till the last minute.

Volunteers Needed - please call Department Chair or submit form at back of this Exhibitor Handbook.

Important Dates and Times

Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018
Receiving: Sat Sep 29, 2018 and Sun Sep 30, 2018
11:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.
in the Fine Arts/Photography Building
Judging: Wed, Oct 3, 2018 @ 10:00 a.m.
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Use Junior / Adult Form

Exhibitors are limited to eight (8) entries and all must be entered in the same division. If you pay for more than eight (8) entry fees, your additional fees will not be refunded. We will only accept eight (8) entries to be judged.

Only ONE department per form. Put all your Photography entries on one form. No more than two (2) photos per class.

American System of Judging

Photography Chair (People's Choice Vote): Ribbon and \$25.00 (all divisions included)

Best in Show: Ribbon and \$25 (all divisions included)

Fair Theme: Gear up for the Fair, Ribbon and \$25 (open to all divisions)

Bob Lee Flight Award (must be about flight): Ribbon and \$25 (open to all divisions) (must be entered in class 6)

Pinnacles National Park Award (must include some recognizable feature of the park): Ribbon and \$25 (open to all divisions) (must be entered in class 6)

Awards in each class in divisions 120 through 124: 1st Place: Ribbon and \$10.00, 2nd Place: Ribbon and \$7.00, 3rd Place: Ribbon and \$5.00, Honorable Mention ribbons will be given at judge's discretion.

All premiums (award money) are provided by and depend on sponsors of the Photography Department of the San Benito County Fair. We encourage your sponsorship. Donors can call San Benito County Fair at (831) 628-3421 and designate award money for Photography Department. Sponsor's names/company names, and small logos will be posted in the Photography Department during the Fair in an appropriate manner.

Rules and Regulations:

1. Entry Labeling. No labeling/titles or names on the front of the photo or mat. Entries must be labeled on the BACK of mounting board in the upper left-hand corner as follows

Name: Address: Phone No.: Division: Class:

For Sale or NFS (Not for sale)

- **2.** No Frames, or Glass, or Acrylic. No framing or pictures under glass or acrylic will be accepted. Only matted photos of certain sizes mounted on mat board or foam core (see instructions).
- **3. Sizes for Mats:** See size guidelines for each division. Flush mounting, printing on aluminum, or canvas allowed in Advanced.

- **4. Participation:** Open to San Benito County residents only. Photos must have been taken within the last two (2) years and not previously exhibited in the San Benito County Fair. Photos must be the work of the exhibitor. Exhibitors are limited to eight (8) entries, which must be entered in the same division. For example: Joe in the Intermediate division cannot enter in the Novice or Advanced division.
- **5.** Computer changes to photos: Minimal digital adjustments (contrast, color shifting, black and white, or sepia toned images) are accepted in all divisions and classes. Major Photoshop work including special Photoshop filters only in Photo Art Class. For example: a filter or special effect that transforms a photo to look like a watercolor painting should only be entered in the photo art class (class 5). For Photo Art entries, tape an envelope on the back with 3x5s or 4x6s of the original photo(s). They will be posted beside the entry.
- **6. Pricing:** No prices should be displayed on the photo entries. Those who wish to purchase photos must contact photographer via Photography Department message list.
- **7. Questionable photos:** The Photography Department reserves the right to decline to display any entry found to violate these listed rules and regulations or found to be unsuitable for the family audience the fair attracts. Photos may be declined at Receiving or during Judging.
- **8. Damage:** The San Benito County Fair is not responsible for any loss and/or damage to an exhibit; refer to LOCAL RULE #4.

Note about Photo Sizes: This year feel free to enter photos that are wider than the standard. Store bought mats tend to be 8x10, 11x14, etc. Why not experiment with a wider or narrower photo and mat based on your artistic intuition. Look at the size constraints in your division. The hope is that these will encourage participation without costing too much.

DIVISION 120 NOVICE

(beginning photographers)

Min. Photo size 5"x7" Max Photo Height: 10" Max Mat Height: 14" Must be matted.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

DIVISION 121 INTERMEDIATE

(have taken photography classes in high school or college)

Min. Photo size 6"x8" Max Photo Height 10" Max Mat Height: 14" Must be matted.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

DIVISION 122 ADVANCED

(open to those who judge themselves to be in this division and semi-professionals)

Min. Photo size: 8"x10" Max. Photo Height 20"

Max. Mat Height: 20" (flush mounting, aluminum prints and canvas prints allowed)

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.50

JUNIOR PHOTOGRAPHY

DIVISION 123 ELEMENTARY

(young people up to 8th grade)

Min. Photo size: 5"x7" Max Photo Height: 10" Max Mat Height: 14" Must be matted.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

DIVISION 124 HIGH SCHOOL

Min. Photo size: 5"x7" Max Photo Height 10"

Max Mat Height: 14" Must be matted.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

FOR DIVISION 120 THROUGH 124:

Please choose the class that best describes your photo entry. All classes include: Color, black and white, digital, and film.

Special instructions for Photo Art, Humorous, Flashback and videos further down.

Class:

- 1: Selfies, sports photos, people doing things (2 entry max)
- 2: Animals with character (2 entry max)
- 3: Still life (static displays of objects including flowers and plants, buildings) (2 entry max)
- 4: Landscapes (land, sea, night) (2 entry max)
- 5: Photo Art: photo collage, panorama, flashback, humorous (2 entries max)
- Fair Theme, Bob Lee Flight Award entry (about flight), Pinnacles
 National Park (must include a recognizable feature of Park and will be
 judged by park ranger) (3 entry max)
- 7. Video for fun and promotion (exempt from entry max)

Photo may be re-classed at Receiving.

Matting using a windowed mat. Windowed mats can be purchased at Aaron Brothers, Michaels, Beverly's, and online. Typically, an 11x14 inch size mat will have a window for an 8x10 photo, and a 16x20 inch mat will have a window for an 11x14 inch photo.

- 1. Position the photo face up behind the window part of the mat.
- 2. Once you settle on how the photo looks through the window, tape the photo to the back of the window part of the mat.
- 3. Now use double-sided tape to adhere the window part to the back part of the mat or leave the back of the mat back off.
- Be sure to label your photo on the upper left corner when facing the back of the mat.

Matting with art-board or foam core. (more difficult to get right)

- 1. Cut the foam core to 11x14 inches or 16x20 inches depending on your division. Use a stiff plastic or metal straight edge (T-Square or metal ruler) and sharp hobby knife or similar on a nice flat cutting board instead of a paper cutter or scissors. Watch your fingers! Try to be as neat as possible. The border of mat can be 1 to two inches on all sides.
- 2. Position the photo on the cut foam core or art-board, making sure that it is in the center of the board both top to bottom and left to right. Mark the edges of the photo on the foam core lightly with a lightly penciled rectangle or dots at the 4 corners of the photo.
- 3. Place the photo on a scrap of cardboard face down and spray the back of the photo with spray glue. You could use Elmer's non-wrinkle rubber cement/or double-sided tape. There are two types of spray glue (permanent and repositionable). If permanent, you only need to spray the back of the photo. If repositionable, spray the foam core or art board as well. To do this lightly tape paper to four sides of the foam core creating a masked window to spray the glue right where the photo will be placed. Exact alignment is important.
- 4. Place the photo carefully on the art board starting at one edge. Wax paper can also be used to help position the photo; then can be pulled away to allow the photo to adhere to the mat.
- 5. Carefully erase any pencil marks.
- 6. Be sure to label your photo on the upper left corner of the back.

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

Concerns about hanging

Velcro or special hanging hooks do not need to be attached to the back when matted. Photos on aluminum or canvas should have a method for hanging suitable for the size and weight of the photo.

Special Instructions:

Photo Art: Tape an envelope to back of photo containing 3x5s or 4x6s of original photo or photos you used before it was altered. The photos will be displayed beside the photo art piece.

Panorama Photos: Try to maintain a photo height of 6 inches or more; width can vary. Mount on art board or foam core.

Humorous: Attach 3x5 card with an optional humorous caption. **Flashback:** Two photos same size side by side (early photo on left, current photo on right) or a composite of both side by side.

Movie/Video: Needs a title screen that gives the title, author, actor's names, etc. No more than two minutes in length; Mp4 Codec H264 preferred. If you don't know about formats send them anyway. Email videos to or put the video on an SD or USB stick, place in an envelope that is clearly labeled with your name, address, phone, email, division and class. Must be received on or before the receiving dates. No late entries

Dept. 50 - 4-H Still Exhibits

Co-Chair: Dolores Lashley (831) 673-2297 Co-Chair: Jenny Gomer (831) 801-8042

Important Dates and Times
Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018
Receiving: Sat Sep 29, 2018 and Sun Sep 30, 2018
10:00 to 3:00 p.m. in the Youth Exhibits Hall
Judging: Mon, Oct 1, 2018 10:00a.m.
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Each Club & Chapter are required to host building as listed. Schedule will be on a rotating schedule.

Host Club Building Assignments for 2018

10:00am – 2:00pm 2:00pm – 6:00pm	Thu, Oct 4, 2018 Ausaymas Santa Ana
6:00pm – 10:00pm	FFA
	Fri, Oct 5, 2018
10:00am – 2:00pm	Cienega
2:00pm – 6:00pm	Sunnyslope
6:00pm - 10:00pm	Bitterwater
	Sat, Oct 6, 2018
10:00am – 2:00pm	Union
2:00pm – 6:00pm	Open Junior Crafts
6:00pm - 10:00pm	Pacheco
	Sun, Oct 7, 2018
10:00am - 2:00pm	San Juan
2:00pm - 6:00pm	Paicines
2:00pm - 6:00pm	Fairview

All Junior Department Rules Apply

Open to all San Benito County 4-H members. Open to Monterey & Santa Cruz County 4-H members exhibiting market livestock, poultry or rabbits.

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

Danish System of judging

"Best of Show" Award in each Group except where noted "Best of Class" Ribbon in each Class

NOTES TO EXHIBITORS:

- 1. HIGH POINT & RESERVE HIGH POINT AWARDS will be awarded to exhibitors displaying projects in the Youth Exhibits Hall.
- 2. All entries in the following divisions must have been made, collected, grown or prepared and entered by exhibitors who were enrolled in a 4-H youth programs within one year of the opening date of Fair, except as otherwise noted. YOU MAY ENTER IN ANY DIVISION even if you are not enrolled in that project.
- 3. No article can be entered in more than one class.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field for all classes.

New Event in Ag-Hort Department:

4-H & FFA VEGETABLE JUDGING CONTEST DEPT 15 DIV 101 VEGETABLE JUDGING CONTEST

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

- 1. Contest to be held on Friday, Oct 5 at 5:00 p.m. on the Ag-Hort Patio
- 2. Sign up in the Ag-Hort Patio by Friday, Oct 5 at 2:00 p.m.
- 3. The 2017-2018 FFA California Curricular Code will serve as the official study guide.
- 4. There is no limit to the number of contestants that may enter from any one team or club.
- 5. Individual members may compete, even if there are less than 3 individuals from any one team or club.
- 6. The highest 3 scores from each club/chapter team will be used to

calculate team honors.

- 7. 4-H members will be divided into 2 categories (Sr. -9^{th} grade & above; Jr. -8^{th} grade and below) for individual score honors.
- 8. There will be no oral reasons given.
- 9. Official placing and I.D. answers will be given at the end of the contest.
- 10. Ties will be broken by Tie Breakers in the I.D. section.
- 11. Winners will be announced at the Ag-Hort Produce Auction on Sunday, Oct 7 at 4:00 p.m.

Awards:

- 1. 4-H & FFA High Team Award & 3 Blue Ribbons
- 2. 4-H & FFA Senior High Individual Award & Blue Ribbons
- 3. 4-H Junior High Individual Award & Blue Ribbon
- 4. 4-H & FFA 2nd Place Overall Ribbon 5. 4-H & FFA 3rd Place Overall – Ribbon

4-H FEATURE EXHIBIT BOOTHS

Receive Feature Booths Complete by Sun, Sep 30, 2018 at 8:00 p.m. Judging: Mon, Oct 1, 2018 10:00a.m.

No "Best of Show" in this Division.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. The feature exhibit booth provides members an opportunity to acquaint the public with a specific phase of their club programs. The booth can show what they have learned, the activities in which they have participated or the contributions of their organization to the community. Judges will insist upon a high quality of products and materials used in the exhibit. A high scoring exhibit will be artistically arranged, colorful, attractive and well-lighted.
- 2. Booths must be designed, constructed and installed by organization members.
- 3. Exhibitors must plan to replace all fruits and vegetables which deteriorate during the Fair.
- 4. Selling products through or advertising specific commodities in a 4-H booth is NOT ACCEPTABLE.
- Booths will not contain items exhibited by individuals in other divisions.
- 6. Feature Exhibit Booths shall be limited to one entry by a 4-H Club. Exhibitor name must be the 4-H Club name.

DIVISION 100 4-H FEATURE EXHIBIT BOOTHS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

ENTER IN CLUB NAME ONLY.

Class:

- 1. Project Theme
- 2. Leadership Theme
- 3. Another 4-H Theme
- 4. Citizenship Theme
- 5. Fair Theme

4-H CLOTHING

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Each entry to be listed separately and identified by name (dress, blouse, etc.). Different means unlike in material used, pattern or style. An exhibit may consist of an item judged individually, a two-piece outfit or a coordinated exhibit or from three to five items not judged elsewhere. All items must be wearable.
- 2. All clothing and textiles exhibits to be clean, pressed.
- 3. WIRE HANGERS ONLY!!! All entries covered with plastic and hung on a wire hanger before entering.
- 4. Needlework Wearable Knit or Crochet, specify

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

entryoffice.SanBenitoCountyFair.com

<u>DIVISION 101 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD</u> <u>DIVISION 102 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD</u> <u>DIVISION 103 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Single Item, specify type
- 2. Two-piece outfit, specify type
- 3. Coordinated outfit 3 to 5 garments, not entered above, specify type

DIVISION 104 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD DIVISION 105 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 106 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD AND UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

1. Needlework – i.e.: wearable knit, crochet, embroidery or no sew fleece. Coordinated outfit - 3 to 5 garments, not entered above, specify type 2. Clothing Accessory, specify type

4-H DRESS YOUR BUDDY- SEWN OUTFIT

DIVISION 110 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 111 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 112 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD AND UP

Limit: One entry per exhibitor.

Member may make or purchase a bear, doll or stuffed item.

Member must sew the entire outfit for the bear, doll or stuffed item.

Theme must be specified on the entry.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Dress Your Buddy Holiday Theme (Santa Claus, Halloween, etc.)
- 2. Dress Your Buddy Book Theme (Little Red Riding Hood, Peter Rabbit, etc.)
- 3. Dress Your Buddy Occupation Theme (Gardener, Farmer, Doctor, etc.)
- 4. Dress Your Buddy Fair Theme
- 5. Dress Your Buddy Any Other (Rodeo Queen, Rope'n Billy, etc.)

4-H DRESS YOUR BUDDY – PURCHASED OUTFIT

DIVISION 113 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 114 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 115 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD AND UP

Limit: One entry per exhibitor.

Not eligible for Best of Show Award.

Member may make or purchase a bear, doll or stuffed item. <u>You must purchase your outfit</u>. Purchased accessories are acceptable (i.e.: watering can, basket, flowers, etc.) <u>Theme must be specified on the entry.</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Dress Your Buddy Holiday Theme (Santa Claus, Halloween, etc.)
- 2. Dress Your Buddy Book Theme (Little Red Riding Hood, Peter Rabbit, etc.)
- 3. Dress Your Buddy Occupation Theme (Gardener, Farmer, Doctor, etc.)
- 4. Dress Your Buddy Fair Theme
- 5. Dress Your Buddy Any Other (Rodeo Queen, Rope'n Billy, etc.)

4-H COLLECTION DISPLAY

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Collection Display shall be limited to one entry per exhibitor
- 2. Display items must all belong to the individual entering the display. All collections must be appropriate for public display and in good taste.
- 3. Specify on the entry (i.e. thimbles, cookie cutters, animals, bumper stickers, hats, nails, records, buttons, matches, etc.). Use your imagination!
- 4. Bring a 3x5 card with a written description of why you put this collection together.

DIVISION 116 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 117 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 118 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Class:

1. Any collection, specify

4-H CREATIVE ARTS, CRAFTS & HOBBIES

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. If a member is entering an item that is pre-cut or pre-stamped, the member must attach a note stating which portion of the item completed. Members should select articles to do within their ability and will be judged on the neatness and artistry of the exhibit.
- 2. Hand stamped leather craft items will be judged separately from hand tooled items.
- 3. Artwork should be mounted on foam board or a mat and ready to display.

DIVISION 119 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 120 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 121 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Leather Craft
- 2. Picture Frame or Photo Album
- 3. Jewelry
- 4. Painted Clothing Stencil or Hand Painted
- 5. Holiday/Seasonal Decorations
- 6. Drawings & Printmaking, all subjects
- 7. Any other not listed above, Specify

4-H EDUCATIONAL POSTERS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. See LOCAL RULES & REGULATIONS, Page 7, concerning the required Still Exhibit. Failure to comply will result in DISQUALIFICATION of all Market Entries for an exhibitor. 4-H EDUCATIONAL POSTERS DO NOT SATISFY THE STILL EXHIBIT RULE
- 2. Posters or Trifold.
- 3. No advertising allowed.
- 4. Poultry & Rabbit educational posters inform the public about Poultry or Rabbits. Subject material limited to animal husbandry, health, feeds, breeding and breed types. They are to be displayed in the Poultry Building after judging.
- 5. Livestock educational posters informs the public about Beef, Dairy, Goats, Sheep or Swine. Subject material limited to animal husbandry, health, feeds, breeding and breed types. They are to be displayed in the barn area after judging.

DIVISION 122 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD DIVISION 123 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 124 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. 4-H Events or Project
- 2. Promotion of 4-H
- 3. Livestock
- 4. Poultry or Rabbits
- 5. Any Other, specify

4-H FOOD & NUTRITION

Special Awards

"Best Use of Apricots" in a Baked Good "Best Use of Chocolate" in a Baked Good Judging: Sun, Oct 1, 2018.

Rules and Regulations:

- **1. Entry must specify type of foods** by name (i.e. Bar Cookie, Drop Cookie, etc.).
- 2. FOOD THAT NEEDS REFRIGERATION MAY BE ENTERED.
- 3. Deliver each exhibit displayed on a <u>disposable plate in a plastic bag</u>. A zippered bag is preferred. Deliver one plate for display and one for tasting (including Recipe in a Jar)
- 4. Minimum quantities:

Muffins, Biscuits, Rolls, Cookies and Candies - 4 each.

Cakes - 1/4 cake plus one slice.

Breads - half loaf plus one slice.

Pies - one standard 6" or larger.

- 5. Identify with a note if baked goods are cooked in a way other than conventional, (i.e. microwave, low salt, fat or sugar free, low cholesterol).
- 6. For Decorated Cakes Only: A Styrofoam or cardboard form MUST be used provided the shape is one which could be reasonably achieved through baking. NO REAL CAKES. Royal icing is recommended.
- 7. No food will be returned.

<u>DIVISION 125 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD</u> <u>DIVISION 126 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD</u> <u>DIVISION 127 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Bread
- 2. Cakes
- 3. Candy
- 4. Cookies5. Decorated Cakes
- 6. Cupcakes
- 7. Muffins
- 8. Pies
- 9. Recipe in a Jar
- 10. Tricks with a Mix
- 11. Trail Mix / Granola

4-H FOOD PRESERVATION

Judging: Sun, Oct 1, 2018.

Rules and Regulations:

1. Entry must list type of product

2. All food preservation, packaging, and labeling must list the method of process used. Low acid foods must be canned under pressure. Dried products should be wrapped in clear plastic or sealed jars. New screw rings must be used. Jar labels should list type of product and process. Label with Canning date on bottom of jar.

- 3. Each entry to consist of two jars 1 jar to be judged and other jar for display of fruits, tomatoes, juices, vegetables, jellies, jams, pickles, etc.; jerky six strips, and dried fruit six to eight sections.
- 4. **Jam**: May contain crushed, uniformly chopped or very small fruit or pulp depending on the kind of jam. **Jelly**: Natural for fruit. Bright, not faded or discolored. Free from sediment, cloudiness, crystals, or fruit or foreign particles. Anything with vinegar solution is a pickled fruit or vegetable.
- 5. No paraffin.
- 6. Open "Judged" canned goods MUST be picked up on Tue, Oct 2, 2018 from 4:00 to 7:00 p.m.
- 7. Gift packs must be done by exhibitor consisting of homemade jams, jellies or other homemade preserved items. May include other items to carry out the theme of the gift pack

DIVISION 128 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD DIVISION 129 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 130 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.0

Class:

- 1. Canned Fruits or Vegetables
- 2. Jam
- 3. Jelly
- 4. Pickled Fruit, Vegetables or Relish
- 5. Jerk

4-H HOME ARTS

Wearable needlework item classes including no-sew fleece - please see 4-H Clothing Divisions 104 through 106.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Each entry to be listed separately and identified by name. An exhibit may consist of an item judged individually or a coordinated exhibit consisting of from three to five items not entered elsewhere. Emphasis to be on the coordination of colors, textures, patterns and shapes.
- 2. Items in this division are NON-WEARABLE or not an article of clothing. There may be knitted or crocheted, machine stitched, hand stitched, quilted, refinished, framed, drawn or woven, etc.
- 3. All pictures and plaques must be equipped for hanging.

DIVISION 131 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD DIVISION 132 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 133 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Crochet Item blanket, pillow, etc.
- 2. Cross Stitch non-wearable item
- 3. Embroidery non-wearable item
- 4. Rug braided, crocheted, etc.
- 5. Holiday/Seasonal Item
- 6. Kitchen Item pot holder, etc.
- 7. Pillows
- 8. Quilted accessory
- 9. Any other item not listed, specify

DIVISION 134 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD DIVISION 135 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 136 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.0

- 1. Comforter Tied
- 2. Wall Hanging
- Quilt Hand
 Quilt Machine
- 5. My First Quilt

4-H PHOTOGRAPHY

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Limit: two entries per exhibitor per class.
- 2. Needs to be display ready.
- 3. Deliver entries to the Youth Exhibits Hall.
- 4. Photo size must be 4 x 6 or 5 x 7.
- 5. Matting and Mounting Instructions All photo entries must be secured on a mount board, foam core or in a mat using glue, mounting tissue, spray or tape. Only one photo on one mount board or matting per entry. Warning: Photos mounted (adhered) on foam core may come loose and be damaged. FYI: Mount Board and Matting can be purchased at any craft or hobby store. (i.e.: Michael's, Target, Stationary Stores or Frame Shops). Mounted photographs require an 8x10 mount no hole for the photograph. Matted photographs require an 8x10 mat mats have a hole for the photograph. If there is mount board behind the matt, securely bond both pieces together.

6. No frames of any kind with glass.

7. Label the back of each photo with exhibitor name, division and class.

DIVISION 137 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD DIVISION 138 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 139 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class

- 1. Film Black and White Single Photo
- 2. Film Color Single Photo
- 3. Digital Black and White Single Photo
- 4. Digital Color Single Photo
- 5. Film Set/Series of 5
- 6. Digital Set/Series of 5
- 7. Collection Book (any grouping of 6 or more photos. Include description of the theme.)

4-H PLANT SCIENCE

Special Awards: Best Produce, Best Monstrosity

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. The type of entry desired for exhibit will be the uniform commercial grade. The number of vegetables to exhibit and manner of exhibiting is described in "How to Prepare Vegetables for 4-H Exhibits" issued by Agricultural Extension Service, University of California. The scorecard that may be used for judging is in the leaflet.
- 2. Each exhibit must be labeled as a species and type.
- 3. Vegetable Entries Class 1 through 4 must be entered as a plate display. Plate Display: Limit 15 different exhibits on a plate. **Only one** per each type, each exhibit must be listed by species and type (i.e. beans snap, green; tomatoes Pearson; lettuce leaf, etc.).
- 4. All exhibits must be adequately and correctly labeled with common and botanical name and variety. Dead and damaged leaves on plants and bugs will be graded down.
- 5. Each member is responsible for his/her exhibit, watering, etc.

DIVISION 140 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD DIVISION 141 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 142 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Fruit and Pod Vegetables
- 2. Leafy and Stem Vegetables
- 3. Roots, Bulbs, Tubers
- 4. Vine Crops
- 5. Succulent/Cactus single plant in a clay or plastic container 8" maximum
- 6. Terrarium or Dish Garden 3 or more plants in a single container. Maximum 18" square.

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

- 7. Well established plant in a decorated 6" or 8" pot.
- 8. Dried arrangement
- 9. Any other not listed above, specify
- 10. Monstrosities. Will be judged on weight and size. Pumpkins must be a shade of orange.

4-H SCRAPBOOKING

<u>DIVISION 143 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD</u> <u>DIVISION 144 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD</u> <u>DIVISION 145 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$2.00

Class

- 1. 4-H Historian Book for Year 2017-2018 Minimum 20 pages *ENTER IN CLUB NAME ONLY*.
- 2. Personal Scrapbook No minimum on pages
- 3. 4-H Project or 4-H Event Scrapbook No minimum on pages
- 4. Card Making enter a group of 3 to 5 cards.
- 5. Records Books

4-H SUMMER CAMP PROJECTS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. One entry per exhibitor per class.
- 2. Items MUST have been completed at 2018 4-H summer camp.
- 3. No Best of Show Award.

<u>DIVISION 146 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD</u> <u>DIVISION 147 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD</u> <u>DIVISION 148 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

1. Any item made at summer camp

4-H TABLE SETTING

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. NOTE: Each exhibitor limited to one entry.
- 2. Exhibitor must furnish his own STANDARD CARD TABLE, 30 x 36-inch size, table covering, dishes, glassware, flatware and centerpiece or table decoration. NO monograms allowed. Include written menu on table. Flatware will be removed after the judging. The Fair will not be responsible for any loss.
- 3. NO PAPER PRODUCTS can be used as part of the place setting except centerpiece.
- 4. Unattractive card tables can be covered with paper fastened to the underside.
- 5. Tables are to be set between 10:00 A.M. and 3:00 P.M. on Sun, Sep 30, 2018 by the exhibitor.
- 6. A minimum two-person setting required.
- 7. Holiday entries to include: Christmas, Thanksgiving, Easter, 4 of July and St. Patrick's Day.

DIVISION 149 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 150 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 151 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.50

- 1. Fair Theme
- Formal
- 3. Informal
- 4. Holiday

4-H MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. THIS DIVISION IS SET UP FOR THOSE NOT PROVIDED FOR IN OTHER DIVISIONS,
- 2. These projects should be a learning experience for you and educational for fair goers.
- 3. Each exhibitor is limited to one entry per class. Each entry to be listed by name.
- 5. Each member is responsible for the care of his/her exhibit.

DIVISION 152 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD DIVISION 153 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD DIVISION 154 SENIOR 14 YEARS OLD & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Aerospace, Rocketry and Aviation (specify kit or non-kit)
- 2. Camping & Outdoor Adventure i.e.: fly fishing, fishing lures and campsite
- 3. Community Service/Citizenship
- 4. Shooting Sports/Archery
- 5. Welding, fabrication or wrought iron/Metal Works
- 6. Veterinary Science
- 7. Woodworking
- 8. Small Engines

4-H PRIMARY MEMBERS

PARTICIPATION RIBBONS ONLY

This division is only open to Primary 4-H members (less than 9 years old as of Jan. 1, 2018).

Each entry to be specified by name.

DIVISION 155 4-H PRIMARY MEMBERS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

- 1. Vegetables
- 2. Herb and Plant Gardens
- 3. Pumpkins/Monstrosities
- 4. Clothing (single item)
- 5. Table Setting
- 6. Home Arts & Furnishing Item
- 7. Any Baked Goods
- 8. Preserves, any
- 9. Recipe in a Jar/Tricks with a Mix
- 10. Summer Camp Project
- 11. Craft item
- 12. Art Item
- 13. Dress Your Teddy Bear
- 14. Collection
- 15. Photography
- 16. Woodwork
- 17. Scrapbook
- 18. Educational Display
- 19. Miscellaneous

Dept. 51 - FFA Still Exhibits

Chair: Kelly Bianchi (831) 801-7002

Important Dates and Times
Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018
Receiving: Sat Sep 29, 2018 and Sun Sep 30, 2018
10:00 to 3:00 p.m. in the Youth Exhibits Hall
Judging: Mon, Oct 1, 2018 10:00a.m.
Release: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.

All Junior Department Rules Apply

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

One Entry per Class

Danish System of Judging unless otherwise stated

BEST OF SHOW RIBBON in each Division except Div. 200

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Students competing in these divisions must be regularly enrolled in the high school Agriculture Program and must meet the requirements, rules and regulations set up by the C.A TA. and the State Association of $EE\Delta$
- 2. All entries in these divisions must be from projects carried as a part of the regular high school Agricultural Program and must be owned by the student. All entries in the following divisions must have been made, collected, grown or prepared within one year of the opening date of Fair. YOU MAY ENTER IN ANY DIVISION even if you are not enrolled in that project.
- 3. Open to all San Benito County FFA members. Open to Monterey & Santa Cruz County FFA members exhibiting market livestock, poultry or rabbits.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter a description in the Description field when you need to specify your entry.

New Event in Ag-Hort Department:

4-H & FFA VEGETABLE JUDGING CONTEST DEPT 15 DIV 101 VEGETABLE JUDGING CONTEST

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) None

- 1. Contest to be held on Friday, Oct 5 at 5:00 p.m. on the Ag-Hort Patio
- 2. Sign up in the Ag-Hort Patio by Friday, Oct 5 at 2:00 p.m.
- 3. The 2017-2018 FFA California Curricular Code will serve as the official study guide.
- 4. There is no limit to the number of contestants that may enter from any one team or club.
- 5. Individual members may compete, even if there are less than 3 individuals from any one team or club.
- 6. The highest 3 scores from each club/chapter team will be used to calculate team honors.
- 7. 4-H members will be divided into 2 categories (Sr. -9^{th} grade & above; Jr. -8^{th} grade and below) for individual score honors.
- 8. There will be no oral reasons given.
- 9. Official placing and I.D. answers will be given at the end of the contest.
- 10. Ties will be broken by Tie Breakers in the I.D. section.
- 11. Winners will be announced at the Ag-Hort Produce Auction on Sunday, Oct 7 at 4:00 p.m.

Awards:

- 1. 4-H & FFA High Team Award & 3 Blue Ribbons
- 2. 4-H & FFA Senior High Individual Award & Blue Ribbons
- 3. 4-H Junior High Individual Award & Blue Ribbon
- 4. 4-H & FFA 2nd Place Overall Ribbon
- 5. 4-H & FFA 3rd Place Overall Ribbon

FFA FEATURE BOOTH EXHIBITS

American System of Judging

RIBBONS ONLY - 1st through 3rd Place

Receive Feature Booths

Complete by Sun, Sep 30, 2018 at 8:00 p.m. Judging: Mon, Oct 1, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

Departmental Rules and Regulations:

- 1. The feature exhibit booth provides members an opportunity to acquaint the public with a specific phase of their chapter program. The booth can show what they have learned, the activities in which they have participated or the contributions of their organization to the community. Judges will insist upon a high quality of products and materials used in the exhibit.
- 2. Feature Exhibit Booths shall be limited to one entry by a chapter. A high scoring exhibit will be artistically arranged, colorful, attractive and well lighted.
- 3. Booths must be designed, constructed and installed by organization members. The Chapter President, Vice-President or Secretary must sign the entry form.
- 4. Exhibitors must plan to replace all fruits and vegetables that deteriorate during the Fair.

DIVISION 200 FEATURE EXHIBIT BOOTHS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

ENTER IN CLUB NAME ONLY.

Class

1. Any FFA Activity Theme

FFA FLORICULTURE

DIVISION 201 FLORICULTURE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Fresh Flower Arrangements
- 2. Dry Arrangements
- 3. Wreaths
- 4. Vine Crops
- 5. Succulent/Cactus single or dish garden
- 6. Well established in decorated pot/containers
- 7. Any other, specify

FFA FOOD & NUTRITION

Rules and Regulations:

- **1. Entry must specify type of foods** by name (i.e. Bar Cookie, Drop Cookie, etc.).
- 2. FOOD THAT NEEDS REFRIGERATION MAY BE ENTERED.
- 3. Deliver each exhibit displayed on a <u>disposable plate in a plastic bag</u>. A zippered bag is preferred. Deliver one plate for display and one for tasting (including Recipe in a Jar)
- 4. Minimum quantities:

Muffins, Biscuits, Rolls, Cookies and Candies - 4 each.

Cakes - 1/4 cake plus one slice.

Breads - half loaf plus one slice.

Pies - one standard 6" or larger.

- 5. Identify with a note if baked goods are cooked in a way other than conventional, (i.e. microwave, low salt, fat or sugar free, low cholesterol).
- 6. For Decorated Cakes Only: A Styrofoam or cardboard form MUST be used provided the shape is one which could be reasonably achieved through baking. NO REAL CAKES. Royal icing is recommended.
- 7. No food will be returned.

DIVISION 202 FOOD & NUTRITION

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

- 1. Bread
- 2. Cakes
- Candy
- 4. Cookies
- 5. Decorated Cakes
- 6. Cupcakes
- 7. Muffins
- 8. Pies
- 9. Recipe in a Jar
- 10. Tricks with a Mix
- 11. Trail Mix / Granola

FFA FOOD PRESERVATION

Rules and Regulations:

1. Entry must list type of product

- 2. All food preservation, packaging, and labeling must list the method of process used. Low acid foods must be canned under pressure. Dried products should be wrapped in clear plastic or sealed jars. New screw rings must be used. Jar labels should list type of product and process. Label with Canning date on bottom of jar.
- 3. Each entry to consist of two jars 1 jar to be judged and other jar for display of fruits, tomatoes, juices, vegetables, jellies, jams, pickles, etc.; jerky - six strips, and dried fruit - six to eight sections.
- 4. Jam: May contain crushed, uniformly chopped or very small fruit or pulp depending on the kind of jam. Jelly: Natural for fruit. Bright, not faded or discolored. Free from sediment, cloudiness, crystals, or fruit or foreign particles. Anything with vinegar solution is a pickled fruit or vegetable.
- 5. No paraffin.
- 6. Open "Judged" canned goods MUST be picked up on Tue, Oct 2, 2018 from 4:00 to 7:00 p.m.
- 7. Gift packs must be done by exhibitor consisting of homemade jams, jellies or other homemade preserved items. May include other items to carry out the theme of the gift pack

DIVISION 203 FOOD PRESERVATION

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

- 1. Canned Fruits or Vegetables
- 2. Jam
- 3. Jelly
- 4. Pickled Fruit, Vegetables or Relish
- 5. Jerky

FFA HOME ARTS

Wearable needlework item classes including no-sew fleece - please see 4-H Clothing Divisions 104 through 106.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Each entry to be listed separately and identified by name. An exhibit may consist of an item judged individually or a coordinated exhibit consisting of from three to five items not entered elsewhere. Emphasis to be on the coordination of colors, textures, patterns and shapes.
- 2. Items in this division are NON-WEARABLE or not an article of clothing. There may be knitted or crocheted, machine stitched, hand stitched, quilted, refinished, framed, drawn or woven, etc.
- 3. All pictures and plaques must be equipped for hanging.

DIVISION 204 HOME ARTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

- 1. Crochet Item blanket, pillow, etc.
- 2. Cross Stitch non-wearable item
- 3. Embroidery non-wearable item
- 4. Rug braided, crocheted, etc.
- 5. Kitchen Item pot holder, etc.
- 6. Pillows
- 7. Quilted accessory
- 8. Comforter, tied
- 9. Wall Hanging
- 10. Quilt Hand
- 11. Quilt Machine
- 12. My First Quilt
- 13. Any Other, specify

FFA ARTS & CRAFTS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. If a member is entering an item that is pre-cut or pre-stamped, the member must attach a note stating which portion of the item completed. Members should select articles to do within their ability and will be judged on the neatness and artistry of the exhibit.
- 2. Hand stamped leather craft items will be judged separately from hand tooled items.
- 3. Artwork should be mounted on foam board or a mat and ready to

DIVISION 205 ARTS & CRAFTS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Leather Craft
- 2. Decorated Picture Frame
- 3. Jewelry
- 4. Holiday Decoration
- 5. Drawings & Printmaking, all subjects
- 6. Any other not listed above, Specify

FFA AGRICULTURAL MECHANICS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Students entering exhibits in agricultural Mechanics must be regularly enrolled in a high school that is following the California State Plan for vocational agriculture.
- 2. All exhibits must be the products of students that are FFA members in good standing. The student exhibitor must have been at least the major contributor to the building or repairing of the exhibit. An article may not be entered in more than one class. Display cards must be filled out and attached to each exhibit in this department, correctly labeling the exhibit and giving a summary of the student exhibitor's project.

FFA CENTER EQUIPMENT CONSTRUCTED - SMALL **PROJECTS**

DIVISION 206 MASONRY

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

- 1. Stepping Stone
- 2. Planter
- 3. Any other like item, specify

DIVISION 207 COLD METAL

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Dustpan
- 2. Clipboard
- 3. Feed Scoop
- 4. Any other like item, specify

DIVISION 208 ELECTRICAL

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Electric Boards
- 2. Any other like item, specify

DIVISION 209 PLUMBING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Any item, metal, specify
- 2. Any item, plastic, specify
- 3. Sprinkler

DIVISION 210 ROPE WORK

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Adjustable Rope Halter
- 2. Knot Board
- 3. Any other like item, if knot type must be labeled, specify

DIVISION 211 YARD ART

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Horseshoe Cross
- 2. Planter
- 3. Any other like item, specify

DIVISION 212 WELDING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Hay Hooks
- 2. Jack Stands
- 3. Fireplace tool
- 4. BBQ tools
- 5. Shoe scraper
- 6. Any other like item, specify

DIVISION 213 WOOD WORKING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Cabinet (measuring up to 36" tall)
- 2. Footstool
- 3. Hanging Planter
- 4. Tool Box
- 5. Cutting Board
- 6. Small Wine Barrel Project (candle holder, bottle holder, etc.)
- 7. Picture Frame
- 8. Any other like item, specify

FFA CENTER EQUIPMENT CONSTRUCTED – MEDIUM/LARGE PROJECTS

DIVISION 214 WELDING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Barbecue
- 2. Engine Stand
- 3. Fireplace Tool Set
- 4. Truck Bumper
- 5. Welding Dolly6. Trailer
- 7. Any other like item, specify

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

DIVISION 215 WOODWORK

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Gate
- 2. Saw Horse
- Signs
- 4. Bench
- 5. Patio Table
- 6. Cabinet (measuring over 36 inches)
- 7. Chest
- 8. Wine Barrel Project (half barrel planter, cooler, table, chair, etc.
- 9. Planter
- 10. Any other like item, specify

FFA BASIC WELDING

DIVISION 216 ACETYLENE WELDING

Rule: Each pass must be 4" long. All pads must be 2 beads and 4" long.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Butt Weld
- 2. Corner Weld
- 3. Fillet Weld
- 4. Lap Weld
- 5. Pipe to Flat
- 6. Stinger beads with rod

DIVISION 217 ARC (ELECTRIC) WELDING

Rule: Each pass must be 4" long. All pads must be 2 beads and 4" long.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Bean Pod
- 2. Butt Weld
- 3. Corner Weld
- 4. Fillet Weld
- 5. Lap Weld
- 6. Pipe to Flat

DIVISION 218 MIG/TIG WELDING

Rule: Pads must include 2 beads that are 6" long.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

- 1. MIG Butt Weld
- 2. MIG Corner Weld
- 3. MIG Fillet Weld
- 4. MIG Weld
- 5. TIG Butt Weld
- 6. TIG Corner Weld
- 7. TIG Fillet Weld
- 8. TIG Weld

FFA EDUCATIONAL POSTERS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. See LOCAL RULES & REGULATIONS, Page 7, concerning the required Still Exhibit. Failure to comply will result in DISQUALIFICATION of all Market Entries for an exhibitor. 4-H EDUCATIONAL POSTERS DO NOT SATISFY THE STILL EXHIBIT RULE
- 2. Posters or Trifold.
- 3. No advertising allowed.
- 4. Livestock educational posters informs the public about Beef, Dairy, Goats, Sheep or Swine. Subject material limited to animal husbandry, health, feeds, breeding and breed types. They are to be displayed in the barn area after judging.
- 5. Poultry & Rabbit educational posters inform the public about Poultry or Rabbits. Subject material limited to animal husbandry, health, feeds, breeding and breed types. They are to be displayed in the Poultry Building after judging.

DIVISION 219 EDUCATIONAL POSTER

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. FFA Events or Project
- 2. Promotion of FFA
- 3. Livestock
- 4. Poultry or Rabbits
- 5. Any Other, specify

FFA PHOTOGRAPHY

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Limit: two entries per exhibitor per class.
- 2. Needs to be display ready.
- 3. Deliver entries to the Youth Exhibits Hall.
- 4. Photo size must be 4 x 6 or 5 x 7.
- 5. Matting and Mounting Instructions All photo entries must be secured on a mount board, foam core or in a mat using glue, mounting tissue, spray or tape with a 1 to 2-inch border around the photo. Only one photo on one mount board or matting per entry. Warning: Photos mounted (adhered) on foam core may come loose and be damaged. FYI: Mount Board and Matting can be purchased at any craft or hobby store. (i.e.: Michael's, Target, Stationary Stores or Frame Shops). Mounted photographs on mount board require a 1 to 2-inch border around the photo no hole for the photograph. Matted photographs require a 1 to 2-inch border around the photo mats have a hole for the photograph. If there is mount board behind the matt, securely bond both pieces together.

6. No frames of any kind with glass.

7. Label the back of each photo with exhibitor name, division and class.

DIVISION 220 PHOTOGRAPHY

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class

- 1. Film Black and White Single Photo
- 2. Film Color Single Photo
- 3. Digital Black and White Single Photo
- 4. Digital Color Single Photo
- 5. Film Set/Series of 5
- 6. Digital Set/Series of 5
- 7. Collection Book (any grouping of 6 or more photos. Include description of the theme.)

FFA SCRAPBOOKING

DIVISION 221 SCRAPBOOKS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

- FFA Chapter Scrapbook (current year) Minimum 20 pages *ENTER IN CLUB NAME ONLY*.
- 2. Personal Scrapbook No minimum on pages
- 3. FFA Project (SAR) Scrapbook No minimum on pages
- 4. FFA Event Scrapbook No minimum on pages

Dept. 55 - Senior Dog Obedience

Chair: Diane Clarkson (408) 580-4610

Important Dates and Times Check in: Oct 4 at 4:30 p.m. Judging: Oct 4 at 5:00 p.m. Release: At the end of show This will be a one-day show

Use Junior / Adult entry form

Show Area: Dog Show Arena near the U Barn

Awards and Ribbons

Departmental Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Open to ages 19 years old and older
- 2. Dogs may be of mixed breed or pure breed (No Pit Bulls)
- 3. Uncontrolled or aggressive dogs are not allowed
- 4. Dog owners are required to clean up after their own dogs
- 5. All dogs must be on leash when not in the show ring
- 6. Bitches in season will not be permitted to compete
- 7. One (1) entry per exhibitor
- 8. No pinch collars
- 9. All dogs should be trained by the exhibitor

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Enter the name of your dog.

DIVISION 100 - SENIOR OPEN DOG OBEDIENCE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

Class

- 1. Sub-Novice, all work done on leash (specify dog name)
- 2. Novice, half work on leash, half work off leash (specify dog name)

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

Dept. 56 - 4-H Dog Obedience

Chair: Diane Clarkson (408) 580-4610

Important Dates and Times
Check in: Oct 4 at 4:30 p.m.
Judging: Oct 4 after Senior Dog Obedience
Release: At the end of show
This will be a one-day show

Use Junior / Adult entry form

Show Area: Dog Show Arena near the U Barn

Awards and Ribbons

Departmental Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Obedience competition classes are open to any 4 H member enrolled in the 4 H Dog Care and Training Project.
- 2. Dog may be mixed breed or purebred. (No Pit Bulls)
- 3. Uncontrolled or aggressive dogs are not allowed.
- 4. 4-H uniform is required.
- 5. 4-H members are required to clean up after their own dogs.
- 6. All dogs must be on leash when not in the show ring.
- 7. Bitches in season will not be permitted to compete.
- 8. One (1) entry per exhibitor
- 9. No pinch collars
- 10. All dogs should be trained by the exhibitor
- 11. Primary members not to be judged participation only.
- 12. Must have attended 80% of your project meetings.

These classes are for 4-H Members who have trained the dog in obedience.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Enter the name of our dog.

DIVISION 100 PRIMARY under 9 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 101 JUNIOR 9 to 10 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 102 INTERMEDIATE 11 to 13 YEARS OLD
DIVISION 103 SENIOR 14 YEARS & UP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$3.00

- 1. Sub-Novice (specify dog name)
- 2. Novice (specify dog name)

Horse Show Department

Horse Show Local Rules

- **1. HORSE DRUGGING:** A fee of \$5.00 will be charged for each horse in the horse show classes that will be competing in an event that is covered by the California Horse Drugging Act. **NO HORSE SHOWS ARE EXEMPT FROM THIS REQUIREMENT.**
- **2. HORSE SHOW:** Unless other rules are specified, rules and definitions for conducting each class as contained in the rule book of <u>USA Equestrian (formerly AHSA)</u> will apply to this Horse Show provided they do not conflict with any of the rules and regulations prescribed by the Division of Fairs and Expositions of the California Department of Food and Agriculture.
- **3. FOR HORSE SHOW PURPOSES** the age of the individual on Jan. 1, 2018 will be maintained throughout the entire year for all Junior classes (see California State Rules, Section XI, rule 1).
- **4. THREE (3) ENTRIES BY TWO (2) OR MORE EXHIBITORS WILL CONSTITUTE A MINIMUM CLASS.** Where entries are less than for a minimum class at the close of entry, the class may be cancelled or combined. This decision will be made by management and department chairs. An exhibitor in a cancelled or combined class, will be notified one (1) week prior to the class. Cancelled class entry fees will be refunded. NOTE: Lead Line and Walk Trot classes will be held with less than five (5) entries.
- **5. LEATHER CURB STRAPS or FLAT CHAIN CURB STRAPS:** Horses in Western bridle classes in judged events, except walk-trot and cutting classes, must be shown in leather curb (1/2) strap. 4-H & FFA Junior Exhibitors may show in flat chain curb straps.
- **6. Each exhibitor will have one number** that must be worn when showing.
- 7. NO SHOW OR CONTEST OFFICIAL OR MEMBER OF THE IMMEDIATE FAMILY SHALL ENTER OR EXHIBIT HORSES IN ANY SHOW OR CONTEST AT WHICH HE/SHE IS

OFFICIATING, nor may any horse owned by such person be entered or exhibited. A show contest official shall be defined as any such person performing the duties of a show manager, judge steward, ring steward or show secretary. Duties include but are not limited to: a. Contacting or hiring of judges; and b. Acceptance of entries or entry fees. Immediate family means married persons and any children or other relatives living in the same household of either or both married persons.

- **8. EXHIBITORS OF HORSES ARE WARNED** that any subject of discourtesy or disobedience to officials on the part of the owner, exhibitor, trainer, groom or rider will disqualify horse/exhibitor combination and the owner forfeits his/her winnings. The San Benito County Fair and the Horse Show Department reserves the power to remove any owner, exhibitor, trainer, groom, horse/rider or horse/exhibitor combination from the horse show without being liable for compensation.
- **9. PAYMENTS TO WINNERS** will be made by check within two weeks of the event. Checks will be mailed to the address on the entry.

- 10. SAN BENITO COUNTY FAIR RANCH RODEO No Substitutions and no refunds will be allowed.
- **11. AN EXHIBITOR WILL BE DISQUALIFIED** from his/her class, if he/she fails to be present and ready to perform within three (3) minutes from the time his/her class or number is called.
- **12. POST ENTRIES**, if allowed by the Department, will only be accepted in-person, by phone, mail, fax or email. They must be received in the Entry Office by the date and time specified. Payment by credit card can be accepted over the phone.

Jackpot Team Roping

Chairs: Robert Litton - (831) 422-0021

Call office for more information (831) 628-3421

Show to be held Sat, Sep 29, 2018 Sign up at 2:00 p.m.

Rope immediately following Junior Rodeo Awards SPECIAL AWARDS

Award to overall high point winner.

#4.5 HANDICAP PICK 1, DRAW 1 3 FOR \$20 #5.5 HANDICAP PICK 1, DRAW 1 3 FOR \$20

Cutting Show

Co-Chairs: Tony Agredano & Paula Stapleton Show Secretary: Stephanie Churchill (831) 524-1005 Email: grooming95023@yahoo.com

ENTRIES CLOSE ON SEPT 25, 2018 at 5:00 p.m.

CONTACT SHOW SECRETARY TO ENTER.

Show to be held Fri, Sep 28, 2018 at 12:00 p.m.

Open to the State of California

Classes:

- 1. Open
- 2. Non-Pro
- 3. 35,000 Non-Pro
- 4. 250 Non-Pro
- 5. 5000 Novice
- 6. 2000 Any Horse, Any Rider
- 7. Ranch Cutting open to horses with no N.C.H.A. earnings, one or two-handed reining, open to any horse and rider except previous winner horse/rider combination.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. N.C.H.A. Rules and payout to apply.
- 2. Check in between 10 a.m. and 12 p.m. before you compete.
- 3. Will NOT show in this order.

Calf Branding

Entry Information - email: sbcfcalfbranding@gmail.com Call/text: Wyatt Bourdet 831-801-6166 or Lacy Bourdet 831-801-3483

Show to be held Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.

Open to all, Lever action Rifle to winners

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. 3 person teams, enter once
- 2. \$100 per person, \$300 per team
- 3. 90% Pay Back; 40% to 1st, 30% to 2nd, 20% to 3rd, 10% to 4th
- 4. No bridle restrictions, tie downs O.K, rubber is legal
- 5. Three calves per run. Everyone must head and heel.

Teams will run one round. Top 16 fastest times will advance. Top 16 teams will be seeded in a tournament bracket based on times from first round.

Tournament will be single elimination

There will be a Calcutta for Top 16 before the start of bracket competition

Dept. 61 - Stock Horse Show

Co-Chairs: Alethea Prewett & Brett Bonfantini

Entry Fees & Forms Due by Fri, Sep 7, 2018

NO Post entries allowed.

Show to be held Fri, Sep 28, 2018 at 3:00 p.m.

NEW TIME: WILL START AT 3 P.M.

Open to everyone.

Use Stock Horse Show entry form.

Please enter under the OWNER'S name. \$20.00 Stock Fee is included in most Entry Fees, do NOT add it yourself.

Awards to 1st Place. Ribbons 1st through 5th place.

N.R.C.H.A. payout schedule below will be used.

Horses		1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th
1-2	1 place	100%				
3-4	2 places	60%	40%			
5-6	3 places	50%	30%	20%		
7-9	4 places	40%	30%	20%	10%	
10-15	5 places	30%	25%	20%	15%	10%

READ RULES ON CLASS

A \$6.00 Office Fee and a \$6.00 Ground Fee must be paid once per exhibitor. A \$5.00 Drug Fee is required for each horse entered.

HORSE ELIGIBILITY FOR ALL DIVISIONS

Age 3-4- Snaffle Bit

Age 4-5-Hackmore

Age 5-6- Two Rein

Age 6 & over- Bridle Straight up

Classes may be combined or split by management as needed

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter the name of your horse in the Animal Name field and enter the riders' name in the Entry Comment field.

If you are entering more than one horse in this department, please select the <u>Drug Fees for > One Horse</u> on the preview screen and enter the number of additional horses so you pay the required fees for each horse beyond your first one.

Show will be run in Division, Class order

DIVISION 110 ADULT LIMITED (MODIFIED)

Entry Fee:.....\$40.00 per entry

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Not to have won 5 points in the N.R.C.H.A. or A.Q.H.A. in the last 5 years.
- 2. Riders may not have shown down the fence more than three (3) times in their lifetime.
- 3. Work to consist of a reining pattern and single cow work (boxing) on the end of the arena. Amount of time to be at the judge's discretion once the rider has shown control of the cow.
- 4. Horses must be shown in equipment approved by the N.R.C.H.A.

Class

1. Adult Limited, 18 & over

DIVISION 111 STOCK HORSE

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All horses must be shown in a straight up bridle
- 2. N.R.C.H.A. Rules to apply.
- 3. Ownership of horse is not required.
- 4. A horse entered in Division 111, class 3 will not be eligible to enter Division 114, class 7.

Class:

- 2. 18 & over, Open Work Cattle. (Horse 6 years & over)
- 3. 17 & under, Work Cattle.

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

DIVISION 112 HACKAMORE

Entry Fee: \$60.00 per entry

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. N.R.C.H.A. Rules to apply.
- 2. Ownership of horse is not required.

Class

4. Open (Horses 5 years & under)

DIVISION 113 STOCK HORSE (DRY WORK ONLY)

Entry Fees: \$15.00 per entry

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. N.R.C.H.A. Rules to apply.
- 2. NO PAYOUT.
- 3. Chain curb straps allowed in class 1.
- 4. Ownership of horse is not required.

Class:

- 5. 18 & over, Open, Dry Work Only
- 6. 17 & under, Dry Work Only

DIVISION 114 JUNIOR LIMITED (A MODIFIED CLASS)

Entry Fee: \$35.00 per entry

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Work to consist of a reining pattern and single cow work (boxing) on the end of the arena. Amount of time to be at the judge's discretion once the rider has shown control of the cow.
- 2. Riders may not have shown down the fence more than three (3) times in their lifetime.
- 3. Horses must be shown in equipment approved by the N.R.C.H.A. rules.
- 4. A horse entered in Division 111, Class 3 will not be eligible to enter Division 114, class 7.

Class:

7. Junior Limited, 17 & under

DIVISION 115 RANCH WORKING COW HORSE

Entry Fee: \$60.00 per entry

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Open to any horse and rider except previous winner horse/rider combination.
- 2. To work a cow as in the fence work part of an N.R.C.H.A. Class.
- 3. Horses MUST be shown in equipment approved by the N.R.C.H.A.

Class:

8. Ranch Working Cow Horse

DIVISION 116 RANCH WORKING COW HORSE AND ROPE

Entry Fee: \$60.00 per entry

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Open to any horse and rider except previous winner horse/rider combination.
- 2. To work a cow as in the fence work part of an N.R.C.H.A. Class.
- 3. Horses MUST be shown in equipment approved by the N.R.C.H.A.
- 4. Riders are not permitted to have their rope tied onto the horn of the saddle. There is to be no dragging of the cow in roping. The exhibitor is allowed only two throws. To be a legal catch, the loop must be in front of the shoulders.
- 5. Penalties will be assessed as follows: Three (3) points: two loops run or refusing to turn. Five (5) points: no catch run or any blatant disobedience for a circumstance not listed. No score -0: equipment failure, rope falls off the saddle or failure to compete cow work segment
- 6. If time and number of cattle permit, the judge may, at his discretion, award new cattle, to enable the contestant to show his horse's ability on the cow, based on the following criteria: the cow won't or can't run; the cow won't leave the end of the arena; the cow is blind or won't yield to the horse; or the cow leaves the arena.

Class:

9. Ranch Working Cow Horse and Rope

Dept. 62 - Ranch Rodeo

Chairs: Ken Griffin (831) 207-2095 J W Brewen (831) 386-9824

Entry Fees & Forms Due by Fri, Sep 7, 2018

Post entries allowed with \$20.00 penalty until Fri, Sep 24, 2018 at 5:00 p.m. They will only be accepted in-person, by phone, mail, fax or email. They must be received in the Entry Office by the date and time above. Payment by credit card can be accepted over the phone.

Show to be held Sun, Sep 30, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. Open to everyone.

Use Ranch Rodeo entry form

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All contestants must wear long sleeve shirts and cowboy hats.
- 2. No Substitutions and no refunds will be allowed.
- 3. Open Event and Ladies Calf Branding contestants must be 16 years of age as of Jan. 1, 2018.
- 4. Divisions 120, 121, 122 & 123 will all be considered open draw pot events
- 5. Teams will be drawn at least one week prior to the event but may be drawn any time after the closing of entries.
- 6. Management will draw at least five alternates from the list of entries to cover any no shows, draw outs, not enough participants or other participant complications that may arise.
- 7. There will be an all-around award given to the high point winner of the open draw pot events (classes 120, 121, 122 & 123). Women will also be eligible for this award.
- 8. There will be an all-around high point women's award given. All open events plus the women's calf branding count towards this award. (classes 120, 121, 122, 123 & 124).
- 9. Contestants must enter all four OPEN DRAW events to be eligible for the all-around award.
- 10. Points will be given as follows: 1st Place 5 points, 2nd 4 points, 3rd 3 points, 4th 2 points, 5th 1 point.
- 11. All ties will be broken by money won from open events only. Alternate money will not be counted in the event of a tie. If we still have a tie, a flip of the coin will decide.
- 12. Alternates can compete for prize money and event awards only. Alternates will not be eligible for all around points on alternate runs.
- 13. Each open event will have a five-qualified time cut off.

14. JUDGE'S DECISION IS FINAL.

15. A Ground Fee of \$6.00, an Office Fee of \$6.00 will be required of each contestant. A \$5.00 Drug Testing Fee will be required of each horse brought onto the grounds to compete.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: For Ladies Calf Branding, Kid's Calf Branding and Junior Calf Branding, enter your Partner's Name in the Entry Comment field.

DIVISION 120 OPEN DRAW CUT & ROPE

TOTAL FEE:\$40.00 per person

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. This event will take place in the arena. Within a two-minute time limit, until a cut off time is established, a team of two riders must cut out from the herd and rope one head with the assigned number. Fastest team wins.
- 2. Time is called when the steer has been headed, heeled, and ropers are facing each other. Regular team roping rules apply, three legal head catches, five second penalty for one hind foot. THREE loops any way. If stock are muleys or hornless, a front leg will be legal with a five (5) second penalty added.
- 3. No rope may be thrown until steer is completely across the line. Any steer across the line other than the assigned one will disqualify the team.
- 4. Management will have the power to make or change ground rules not specified here at any time they are deemed necessary.

Class:

1. Cut & Rope - Can Go Once

DIVISION 121 OPEN DRAW CATTLE SORTING

TOTAL FEE:.....\$40.00 per person

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. This is a 3-man team.
- 2. Time starts, and numbers will be given as 1 rider crosses line. There is a three (3) minute time limit until a cut off time limit is established.
- 3. Cattle MUST be sorted and pushed across the line in consecutive numerical order. This event will take place in the arena.
- 4. No extra cattle will be allowed to cross the line team will be flagged NO TIME.
- 5. Cattle crossing out of consecutive order will cause team to be flagged NO TIME.
- 6. When the third animal is completely across the line, time will stop.
- 7. Any equipment contact with the cattle or unnecessary roughness will be judged NO TIME.
- 8. Once committed to the cattle, the team is completely responsible for their animals. Before working the cattle, team members MUST pull up and call for an unusable animal ruling from the judge. Once cattle are worked, no excuses are accepted. If an animal leaves the track the team can be given NO TIME for unnecessary roughness or can be given another set of cattle at end of group depending on the judge's decision.

Class

2. Cattle Sorting.

DIVISION 122 OPEN DRAW RANCH DOCTORING

Total Fee:.....\$40.00 per person

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. This will consist of a four-man pre-drawn team.
- 2. At least three of the team members will be provided with a marking chalk.
- 3. Cattle will be numbered from 0-9.
- 4. Herd will be placed on one side of a designated line. Team will start from the other side.
- 5. Team will cross line and sort the designated animal from the herd. Designated animal must be driven completely across line before he can be roped.
- 6. Each member of the team will be allowed one loop each.
- 7. Steer must be headed before he can be heeled. Legal head catches will be: Horned Cattle: A) 2 Horns, B) Half Head, 1 horn, C) Around the Neck

Front legs are not legal but will be allowed to be fished out granted if cut off time

- permits. Muleys: A) Around the neck, B) Around the neck and 1 front foot 8. Steer will be heeled and then must be laid down. Rope will be put cleanly on both front feet and both back feet.
- 9. After ropes are switched and steer is stretched, ground crew will mark the animals head with chalk marker and lift hands to declare time
- 10. No unnecessary roughness.

Class:

3. Ranch Doctoring

DIVISION 123 OPEN DRAW CALF BRANDING

TOTAL FEE:......\$40.00 per person

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Teams will consist of four (4) members two ropers and two ground men. Each team will brand four calves. Two ropers roping catch half the calves, they will then change places with the ground men who will rope the balance of the
- At the discretion of the judges, a team will be disqualified for unnecessary roughness or choking.
- 3. Both ropers must have calf stretched before ground crew goes to work.
- 4. Before iron is removed from pot, rope must be on two front feet and two hind feet and stretched out. Stretching calf hard enough to raise off the ground can be basis for disqualification.
- 5. Time starts with flag and will stop when last calf is branded, and iron is returned to pot.
- 6. Once the branding iron is removed from the pot it cannot change hands or be laid down until the calf is branded and the iron is replaced in the pot.

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

entryoffice.SanBenitoCountyFair.com

- 7. Wrong side or wrong place branding will be disqualification.
- 8. A person can rope only once and ground crew only once.
- 9. Each calf will be roped only once.
- 10. There will be a five (5) minute time limit per team until a cut off time is established.

Class:

4. Calf Branding

DIVISION 124 LADIES CALF BRANDING

TOTAL FEE:\$35.00 per person

Enter as a Team (partner of your choice)

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Team consists of two (2) ladies. Both must be entered and paid at closing date of entries.
- 2. May choose ground crew of two (2) persons.
- 3. At the discretion of the judges, a team will be disqualified for unnecessary roughness or choking.
- 4. Before iron is removed from pot, rope must be on two front feet and two hind feet and stretched out. Stretching calf hard enough to raise off the ground can be basis for disqualification.
- 5. Time starts with flag and will stop when last calf is branded, and iron is returned to pot.
- 6. Once the branding iron is removed from the pot it cannot change hands or be laid down until the calf is branded and the iron is replaced in the pot.
- 7. Wrong side or wrong place branding will be disqualification.
- 8. Four (4) minute time limit until cut off time is established.

Class:

5. Ladies Calf Branding (May only enter once)

DIVISION 125 JUNIOR CALF BRANDING

TOTAL FEE:\$30.00 per person

ENTER AS A TEAM 2 (PARTNER OF YOUR CHOICE)

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Age as of Jan. 1, 2018.
- 2. Team consists of two (2) kids on horseback and assisted by two (2) adults to work ground.
- 3. Both team members must be entered and paid at closing date of entry.
- 4. Riders MUST wear long sleeve shirt and hat.
- 5. Each team receives one (1) calf.
- $6.\ Four\ (4)\ MINUTE\ TIME\ LIMIT\ UNTIL\ CUT\ OFF\ TIME\ IS\ ESTABLISHED.$
- 7. Ground crew change rope and brand.
- 8. At the discretion of the judges, a team will be disqualified for unnecessary roughness or choking.
- 9. Both ropers must have calf caught before ground crew goes to work. Before calf is branded, rope must be on two front feet and two hind feet and stretched out. Stretching calf hard enough to raise off ground can be basis for disqualification.
- 10. Time starts with flag and will stop when calf is branded, and iron is returned to pot.
- 11. Once the branding iron is removed from the pot it cannot change hands or be laid down until the calf is branded and the iron is replaced in the pot.
- 12. Wrong side or wrong place branding will be disqualification.
- 13. If entered on horseback in this division the contestant is NOT allowed to enter on foot in Division 126- Kids Calf Branding.

Class:

6. 8 years old to 15 years old

PAYOUT WILL BE AS FOLLOWS FOR DIVISIONS 120 through 125

Fair will keep 40% of entry fees for stock

Teams		1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th
1-5	1 place	100%					
6-10	2 places	60%	40%				
11-20	3 places	43%	33%	24%			
21-50	4 places	40%	30%	20%	10%		
51-75	5 places	30%	25%	20%	15%	10%	
76+	6 places	29%	24%	19%	14%	9%	5%

Match will pay out (2) two places. First place 100% of Pot minus entries back to second place.

DIVISION 126 KIDS CALF BRANDING

Total Fee:......\$15.00 per person

San Benito County Residents ONLY

ENTER AS A TEAM 2 (PARTNER OF YOUR CHOICE)

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Age as of Jan. 1, 2018.
- 2. TWO MINUTE TIME LIMIT.
- 3. NO HORSES.
- 4. Adult assistance will be provided by management
- 5. Time starts when kids cross a starting line. Calf to be head and heeled in any manner. Adults help hold calf after it is roped. Brand to be placed anywhere kids want it or may be specified by adults. Then brand calf and return brand to bucket. Time is stopped when brand is returned to bucket after second calf. When 2-minute time limit expires, helpers will be allowed to assist competitors in catching animal to successfully brand and complete the event.
- 6. All contestants will receive a prize.
- 7. No payback.

Class:

7. 5 years old to 10 years old (two team members)

Dept. 64 – 4-H/FFA and Open Horse Show

Chair: t.b.d.

Entry Fees & Forms Due by Fri, Sep 7, 2018

NO Post entries allowed.

Show to be held Sun, Sep 30, 2018, 9:00 A.M. Open to everyone (4-H/FFA limited, see below)

Postmarks will be accepted / NO metered mail accepted

Use 4-H / FFA and Open Horse Show entry form

HARD HATS OR HELMETS TO BE WORN BY ALL 4-H/FFA EXHIBITORS IN ALL CLASSES (MUST BE ASTM/SEI APPROVED)

ENTRY FEES

4-H / FFA Showmanship	\$5.00
4-H / FFA Classes	\$4.00
Open Leadline Class	\$6.00
Open Classes	
-	

A \$6.00 Office Fee and a \$6.00 Ground Fee must be paid once per exhibitor. A \$5.00 Drug Fee is required for each horse entered.

Awards to 1st Place. Ribbons 1st through 5th place.

Four High Point Awards by Age Group (classes 10 - 13) One 4-H High Point Award (classes 14 & 15)

One FFA High Point Award (classes 14 & 15)
Per exhibitor combination calculated as follows:

1st: 5pts 2nd: 4pts 3rd: 3pts 4th: 2pts 5th: 1pt Ties are broken by most firsts (if necessary 2^{nds}, then 3^{rds})

4-H /FFA Specific Rules and Regulations: (Please read carefully)

Open to San Benito, Monterey, Santa Clara and Santa Cruz Counties only. This is a State Qualifying Show.

HARD HATS OR HELMETS TO BE WORN BY ALL 4-H / FFA EXHIBITORS IN ALL CLASSES (MUST BE ASTM/SEI APPROVED)

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All horses owned or leased, must be in exhibitors' name at least 45 days prior to San Benito County Fair. See State Rules regarding ownership.
- 2. Exhibitor must be a member in good standing of a 4-H or FFA Horse Pony Project.
- 3. The official 4-H and FFA show uniform to be worn by all exhibitors while showing at the Horse Show. Uniform consists of hard hat or helmet, white shirt or blouse (long or short sleeve), and white or black pants which are to the ankles. FFA uniform to include the FFA Jacket. ABSOLUTELY NO MIDRIFF OR SLEEVELESS SHIRTS OR ACID WASH PANTS. Only exception: English classes may wear English attire if pants are white or black in color. If pants have belt loop, belt must be worn. No other equipment necessary except appropriate clean saddle and bridle.
- 3. First and Second Place in Division 141: Classes 1, 2 and 4 MAY advance to next Showmanship level.
- 4. First Place in Division 141: Classes 2, 3 and 5 are eligible to participate in the Fair's Round Robin on Sun. Oct 7. These winners MUST sign up immediately at the Sign in Desk. Should First place winner decide NOT to participate, second place will be given the opportunity.
- 5. While at the Fair, 4-H and FFA members are expected to groom their animals themselves. Adult help in handling, preparing or caring for the animal, except for safety reasons, may cause the member and/or animal to be disqualified. (Disqualification consists of withholding ribbons,

elimination from further competition, and/or removal from the grounds.)

- 6. Pre-entry of Showmanship is MANDATORY. NO entry fees.
- 7. Stallions are not eligible for any 4-H / FFA class.

Rules and Regulations applicable to everyone.

- 1. Exhibitor's age as of Jan. 1, 2018.
- 2. State Rules I through V, State Horse Show Rules X1 through 26, Equine Health Rules and All Local Rules apply to this Department.
- 3. One exhibitor per entry form. Please print unless stated otherwise. Forms may be photocopied. Exhibitor must have required releases signed before participation.
- 4. Show MANAGER reserves the right to combine or cancel classes. Show MANAGER reserves the right to cancel a class if there are 3 or less entries.
- 5. Show Manager reserves the right to disqualify or excuse any exhibitor, rider, groom or horse showing discourtesy, disobedience or dangerous actions without being liable for compensation. Disqualification forfeits all awards. This rule includes junior entries exhibiting unsafe or incompetent actions.
- 6. SHOW MANAGER AND JUDGES' DECISION FINAL!!
- 7. Vet certificate required if substituting any horse for any class.
- 8. Protest refer to State Rules.
- 9. NUMBER MUST BE WORN ON EXHIBITOR'S BACK.
- 11. Show to follow AQHA RULES unless otherwise stated.
- 11. No stallions to be handled or shown by anyone under the age of 18.
- 12. Registered breed class entries must include a photocopy of current registration papers with entry forms. Only major breed associations/clubs will be recognized (AQHA, APHA, AMHA, IAHA, APHC, etc.). The horse does NOT have to be owned by the exhibitor. The listed registered owner will be noted.
- 13. Grade/purebred breeds are animals that are NOT currently registered and CANNOT be registered with a major breed association/club.
- 14. There will be a 10-minute break to tack up between the end of Division 142 and the start of Division 143.
- 15. Helmets are encouraged to be worn by all participants, required for 4-H / FFA participants.
- 16. Leadline entries may NOT show in any other riding class. Exhibitor must be led by a competent adult. Safety is a priority.
- 17. <u>10 and under entrants</u> (class 10) may NOT enter any <u>13 and under</u> events (class 11) or any riding classes that required a CANTER or LOPE. ANY class for <u>14 and over</u> MAY BE required to Lope or Canter.
- 18. Exhibitors MUST be at the gate when their class is called. Judge will not hold the gate for a participant who is not there. Please be ready.
- 19. Warm-up area will be available. NO Arena warm-up will be permitted
- 20. Obstacles and courses set up for use during show are OFF-LIMITS until the division/class has been judged.
- 21. Classes can be combined or cancelled at Show Manager's discretion.
- 22. No Dogs except Service Dogs allowed on the fairgrounds. No exceptions.

4-H & FFA SHOWMANSHIP

Please enter your ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION as follows:

Name of your horse in Animal Name box

Date of Birth of your horse in Animal Birthdate box

Gender of your horse in Gender box (male, female, neutered)

Breed of your horse in the Breeder box.

If you are entering a Registered Class:

Registration # of your horse in the Registry Number box.

If you are entering a Colored or Non-Colored Class

Color of your horse in the Entry Comment box.

If you are entering more than one horse in this department, please select the <u>Drug Fees for > One Horse</u> on the preview screen and enter the number of additional horses so you pay the required fees for each horse beyond your first one.

Show will be run in Division, Class order

DIVISION 140 HALTER

Class:

- 1. Yearlings and younger
- 2. Registered Breeds 2 & over (see Rule #13)
- 3. Grade Horses 2 & over (see Rule #14)
- 4. Non-Color Horses (bay, black, sorrel)
- 5. Color Horses (albino, paint, pinto, roan, dun, buckskin, appaloosa, grulla, gray, palomino)

First place winners from classes 1- 5 to compete for overall Halter Champion Award

DIVISION 141 4-H & FFA SHOWMANSHIP

For Rules: refer to 4-H/FFA SHOWMANSHIP DIVISION

No Premiums Offered. Classes may be combined but are judged 4-H and FFA separately. Showmanship Shown at halter.

Class:

- 1. Showmanship 4-H Novice
- 2. Showmanship 4-H Junior
- 3. Showmanship 4-H Senior
- 4. Showmanship FFA Novice
- 5. Showmanship FFA Advanced

DIVISION 142 SHOWMANSHIP

Class:

- 10. 10 & under (Exhibitor may NOT enter any 13 & under class)
- 11. 13 & under (Exhibitor may NOT enter any 10 & under class)
- 12. 14 through 17
- 13. 18 & over

10-minute break for tacking up.

DIVISION 143 WESTERN/ENGLISH TRAIL

Class.

- 10. 10 & Under Walk/Jog (entrant not to enter any walk/jog open class)
- 11. 13 and under
- 12. 14 through 17
- 13. 18 & Over
- 14. 4-H / FFA Exhibitors 9-12 years
- 15. 4-H / FFA Exhibitors 13-19 years

DIVISION 144 ENGLISH/WESTERN LEADLINE

Individual test may be required

Class

9. 8 years and under (Entrant may not enter any other riding class

DIVISION 145 ENGLISH PLEASURE

Class

- 10. 10 & under -Walk/Trot (entrant not to enter any walk/trot/canter class)
- $11.\ 13\ \&\ under-Walk/Trot/Canter$
- 12. 14 through 17
- 13. 18 & over

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

DIVISION 146 ENGLISH EQUITATION

Individual test may be required

Class:

- 10. 10 & under Walk/Trot (entrant not to enter any walk/trot/canter class)
- $11.\ 13\ \&\ under-Walt/Trot/Canter$
- 12. 14 through 17
- 13. 18 & over
- 14. 4-H / FFA Exhibitors 9-12 years
- 15. 4-H / FFA Exhibitors 13-19 years

DIVISION 147 HORSEMANSHIP

Patterns to be posted

Class:

- 14. 4-H / FFA Exhibitors 9-12 years
- 15. 4-H / FFA Exhibitors 13-19 years
- 16. Open, all ages

30 Minute tack change break

DIVISION 148 WESTERN EQUITATION

Individual tests may be required

Class

- 10. 10 & under Walk/Jog (entrant not to enter any walk/trot/canter class)
- 11. 13 & under Walk/Jog/Lope
- 12. 14 through 17
- 13. 18 & over
- 14. 4-H / FFA Exhibitors 9-12 years
- 15. 4-H / FFA Exhibitors 13-19 years

DIVISION 149 WESTERN PLEASURE

- 10. 10 & under Walk/Jog (Entrant not to enter any walk/jog/lope classes)
- 11. 13 & under Walk/Trot/Lope
- 12. 14 through 17
- 13. 18 & over

Dept. 65 thru 68 Junior Rodeo

For more information: Sheanna DeForest (831) 809-5641 Or BlaireTaliaferro (831) 235-3618

Mail in entry Fees & forms must be postmarked by Fri, Sep 7, 2018 (no metered mail)

Online entries close Thu, Sep 6, 2018

To be held Sat, Sep 29, 2018 at 8:00 a.m.

Online entries: <u>www.sanbenitocountyfair.com</u>. Online entries are open until midnight on Sep 6.

Use Junior Rodeo entry form. <u>One exhibitor per entry form.</u> One entry per event unless otherwise noted.

NO POST ENTRIES ARE PERMITTED IN THE JUNIOR RODEO. Rules:

- 1. National high school rodeo association rules are only used as a guide; the San Benito County Fair Rodeo committee reserves the right to apply rules accordingly to circumstances.
- 2. All around points are awarded 1st thru 10th place only. No all-around points for Junior/Senior team roping, Mutton Busting & Pee Wee events.
- 3. Ties: in the event of a tie for any awards including all-around and reserve all-around, a flip of the coin will decide the winner.

4. Mandatory grounds rule meeting at 7:45 by track entrance (north end).

- 5. Arena starts at 8:00am with Barrel Race 14-18; Track starts at 8:30 with Pole Bending 14-18; Pee Wee events start at 8:00am at south end track.
- 6. DRESS CODE: Western attire: cowboy hat or protective headgear; long-sleeve, buttoned-up, collared shirt; cowboy boots and belt are required in all events, including Pee Wee. Bare midriffs, shorts and/or similar attire will not be tolerated. Dress code in effect to pick-up awards.
- 7. Contestants caught drinking alcohol, using drugs, using inappropriate language or abusive treatment of livestock will be disqualified. This is a drug and alcohol-free area; smoking is not permitted.
- 8. Contestants and parents are not allowed to talk to the arena or track judges, unless requested by the judge. If a problem arises please see the arena or track director.
- 9. Helpers are not allowed past the gate for ages 9-18 in all events. 8 & under contestants can have a helper to enter the track or arena. If helper crosses the start/finish line it will result in a no-time. If a helper chooses to lead an 8 & under contestant thru the event, they may, but the result will be a no-time.

10. All contestants in all events (excluding rough stock) have 60 seconds to enter the gate from the first time they are called to report.

- 11. All events are open to all counties.
- 12. Arena takes precedence over the track.
- 13. Age you are as of Jan. 1, 2018 determines the age category you will compete in.
- 14. Only siblings can ride the same horse as another rider in the same division except barrels & pole bending. 8 & under siblings can share in all events.
- 15. Unless specified, both boys and girls can participate all events.
- 16. Any contestants needing to draw out of the rodeo must show written verification by a qualified Veterinary or Licensed Doctor, stating the date of inspection and nature of disqualification and must be filed at the fairgrounds 24 hours before the start of the rodeo, to have entry fees refunded. The office, grounds, ambulance and any stock fee will not be refunded. Any draw outs without written verification by a qualified Veterinary or Licensed Doctor will not be refunded.

Association management (Horse Show Department) reserves the right to stop any contestant from competing when in their judgment, anyone's personal safety is in jeopardy. In general, committee will specify conditions of competition at start of each event. Their judgment and any supplemental rules, in all cases will be FINAL!!

Track and Arena events may be switched to track and/or to accommodate time schedule. ARENA JUDGES DECISION IS FINAL.

MANDATORY OFFICE fee of \$6.00 and GROUND fee of \$6.00, SELECTIVELY DRUG fee of \$5.00 and AMBULANCE fee of \$10.00 PER EXHIBITOR – see Department Titles for exceptions. A DRUG FEE of \$5.00 will be charged if entering an event on horse.

AWARDS & PAYOUTS

BUCKLES TO ALL EVENT CHAMPIONS AWARDS TO 3RD PLACE, POSSIBLY 4^{TH} & 5^{TH}

* * ALL-AROUND AWARDS **

8 & UNDER	BOYS	CH	AMPION	SADDLE
8 & UNDER	GIRLS	СН	AMPION	SADDLE
9-13 BOYS	СНАМР	ION SADD	LE CERTI	FICATE
9-13 GIRLS.	СНАМР	ION SADD	LE CERTI	FICATE
14-18 BOYS.	СНАМР	ION SADD	LE CERTI	FICATE
14-18 GIRLS	SCHAMP	ION SADD	LE CERTI	FICATE

PREMIUMS OFFERED PER CLASS

80% of Entry Fee Payback except Pee Wee events. \$500 payout added to Bronc Riders

FOR AWARD DONOR OPPORTUNITIES CALL LACY BOURDET (831) 801-3483

Any donations received will be awarded as specified by the

Junior Rodeo Rules and Regulations:

- 1. To qualify for ALL-AROUND AWARD, an exhibitor MUST place in more than one event.
- 2. Three (3) entries by three (3) or more exhibitors will constitute a minimum class. Where entries are less than for a minimum class at the close of entry, the class may be cancelled or combined. This decision will be made by management and department chairs.
- 3. For all roping events, the catch pen is closed.
- 4. All partners must be named on entry form before closing date of entries. Boy & Girl partners allowed in all team events.
- 5. Year and date of birth must be listed on entry form.
- 6. PARENT or LEGAL GUARDIAN SIGNATURE REQUIRED ON ALL ENTRIES BY CLOSING DATE OF ENTRY OR ENTRY WILL BE REJECTED.

ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION: Please enter your Partner's Name in the Entry Comment box and if they are the roper or the runner.

Multiple Department numbers are only used to make sure that correct fees are charged to each contestant. Depending on which events are entered Drug and Ambulance fees may or may not have to be paid.

Dept. 65 – Pee Wee Junior Rodeo

All Pee Wee's must follow dress code. Only cowboy boots allowed. Ambulance and Drug Fees are waived.

DIVISION 160 PEE WEE STICK HORSE RACE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class).....\$10.00

Kids to line up with stick horse between legs and run around a cone and across the finish line. Judges will determine 1st thru 4th places. Judge's decision is final. Must supply own stick horse. **Does not count towards all around.** No payout.

Class:

1. Age 3 & under

2. Age 4 & 5

DIVISION 161 PEE WEE BOOT RACE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)......\$10.00

Kids will take off one cowboy boot. Cowboy boots will be lined up on line. Kids will run to their boot, put it on and run back to starting line. Judges will determine 1st thru 4th places. **Does not count towards all around.** No payout.

Class:

1. Age 3 & under

2. Age 4 & 5

DIVISION 162 PEE WEE GOAT TAIL UNTYING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class).....\$10.00

Kids will run across a chalk line, one at a time & pull a ribbon from a goat's tail. Fastest time wins. **Does not count towards all around. No payout.**

Class:

1. Age 3 & under

2. Age 4 & 5

DIVISION 163 DUMMY STEER ROPING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class).....\$10.00

Each contestant is allowed three (3) consecutive throws from behind a point designated by the judge. Three (3) legal catches allowed: A) horn catch is worth three (3) points, B) half-head catch is worth two (2) points, C) full-head catch is worth one (1) point. After first go-round, contestants may rope off in a second go-round. Points are progressive.

Does not count towards all around. No payout.

Class:

1. Age 6 & under

2. Age 7 - 10

Dept. 66 - Pee Wee Junior Rodeo

All Pee Wee's must follow dress code. Only cowboy boots allowed. Drug Fee is waived, Ambulance fee is required

DIVISION 164 MUTTON BUSTING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class).....\$10.00

Longest ride wins, time stops when rider makes any contact with the ground. Must face forward on animal. Protective gear is required. Spurs prohibited. **Does not count towards all around.**

Class

1. Age 6 & under

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

Dept. 67 – Junior Rodeo

Ambulance and Drug Fees are required

DIVISION 165 GOAT TAIL UNTYING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$25.00 (includes \$5.00 Stock Fee)

Rider must dismount (horse required) and remove the ribbon from Goat's tail, 60 second time limit.

Class:

1. Age 8 & under

DIVISION 166 GIRL'S GOAT TYING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$25.00 (includes \$5.00 Stock Fee)

Rider must dismount, tie any three legs. Contestant must furnish own piggin' string. Animal must remain tied for 6 seconds, 60-second time limit.

Class:

1. Age 9 - 13

2. Age 14 - 18

DIVISION 167 BOY'S GOAT TYING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$25.00 (includes \$5.00 Stock Fee)

Rider must dismount, tie any three legs. Contestants must furnish own piggin' string. Animal must remain tied for six seconds, 60 second time limit

Class:

1. Age 9 – 13

DIVISION 168 SINGLE STAKE RACE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)\$20.00

Rider must ride horse around a single stake and back across the start line. 5 second penalty for knocked pole. 60 second time limit.

Class

1. Age 8 & under

2. Age 9 - 13

3. Age 14 – 18

DIVISION 169 POLE BENDING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)\$20.00

60 second time limit. 5 second penalty for knocked pole. Standard pole bending pattern.

Class:

1. Age 8 & under

2. Age 9 - 13

3. Age 14 – 18

DIVISION 170 BARREL RACE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)\$20.00

Clover leaf pattern, 5-second penalty for each barrel knocked over, 60 second time limit.

Class:

1. Age 8 & under

2. Age 9 - 13

3. Age 14 - 18

DIVISION 171 KEYHOLE RACE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)\$20.00

Ride horse down to keyhole from starting line, turn horse around in keyhole and run back across finish line. You are disqualified if you step OVER or ON the lines of the keyhole. 60 second time limit.

Class

1. Age 8 & under

2. Age 9 - 13

3. Age 14 - 18

DIVISION 172 GIRL'S BREAK-AWAY ROPING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$30.00 (includes \$10.00 Stock Fee)

Ropes to be checked by committee in barrier. Two loops, 30 second time limit. 10 second penalty for broken barrier.

Class:

1. Age 9 – 13

2. Age 14 - 18

DIVISION 173 BOY'S BREAK-AWAY ROPING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$30.00 (includes \$10.00 Stock Fee)

Ropes to be checked by committee in barrier. Two loops, 30 second time limit. 10 second penalty for broken barrier.

Class:

1. Age 9 - 13

DIVISION 174 BOY'S CALF TIE DOWN ROPING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class).. \$30.00 (includes \$10.00 Stock Fee)

Two loops, 30 second time limit. 10 second penalty for broken barrier. Calf must remain tied for 6 seconds.

Class:

1. Age 14 – 18

DIVISION 175 BOY'S CHUTE DOGGING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) ..\$30.00 (includes \$10.00 Stock Fee)

Time will start when the steers inside front shoulder passes the planes of the bucking chute. There will be line 10 feet from the chute. Steers nose must cross line before steer can be thrown. Contestant must change direction or bring steer to a stop and twist it down. Steer will be considered down when it is lying flat on its side with all 4 feet and head facing the same direction.

Class:

1. Age 9-13

2. Age 14 - 18

DIVISION 176 STEER STOPPING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$30.00 (includes \$10.00 Stock Fee)

Two loops, 30 second time limit. 10 second penalty for broken barrier. Steer must face horse and rider.

Class:

1. Age 9 – 13

2. Age 14-18

DIVISION 177 RESCUE RACE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class).....\$20.00

Horse and single rider travel to designated point at end of arena where partner mounts horse. Cannot use barrel, rider must mount from the ground. Tandem riders return to starting point for time. Rider must be mounted before crossing plane of designated point. Both riders must have one leg on each side of horse. Both pay, split money, enter only once. Mixed teams not required.

Class:

1. Age 9 - 18

DIVISION 178 RIBBON ROPING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)\$25.00 (includes \$5.00 Stock Fee)

Calf leaves chute with ribbon, roper to catch by neck only. No ropes to be tied hard and fast. Runner gets time when he pulls ribbon from calf and taken to flagger. 60 second time limit, 10 second penalty for breaking barrier. Enter only once. Both pay, split money. Mixed teams not required.

Class:

1. Age 18 & under

DIVISION 179 JUNIOR/JUNIOR TEAM ROPING

Junior partners must be 118 & under

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$25.00 (includes \$5.00 Stock Fee)

Three loops any way, three legal head catches (horns, half head or neck); 10 second penalty for breaking barrier, 5 seconds for one hind leg. 60 second time limit.

Class

1. Age 18 & under

DIVISION 180 JUNIOR/SENIOR TEAM ROPING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$25.00 (includes \$5.00 Stock Fee)

Senior member can rope once unless roping with own children; three loops any way, three legal head catches (horns, half-head or neck); 10 second penalty for breaking barrier, 5 second penalty for one back leg. 60 second time limit. **Does not count towards all around.**

Class:

1. Junior Partner age 18 & under and Senior partner age 19 & over

Dept. 68 - Junior Rodeo

Ambulance Fee is Required, Drug Fee is Waived

DIVISION 181 SADDLE BRONC STEER RIDING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$60.00 (includes \$20.00 Stock Fee)

Riders must provide their own saddle. To qualify rider must stay on for 6 seconds. Will follow high school rodeo guidelines. Buckle award to first place (no other awards),

Class:

1. Age 9-13

DIVISION 182 SADDLE BRONC RIDING

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$60.00 (includes \$20.00 Stock Fee)

Riders must provide their own saddle. To qualify rider must stay on for 8 seconds. Will follow high school rodeo guidelines. Buckle award to first place (no other awards) \$500.00 added to payout.

Class:

1. Age 14-18

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

Junior Livestock Department

OPEN TO 4-H, FFA, GRANGE MEMBERS and INDEPENDENT JUNIORS RESIDING IN SAN BENITO, SANTA CRUZ & MONTEREY COUNTIES. MERCED COUNTY OPEN TO JUNIOR DAIRY CATTLE ONLY. ALL JUNIOR DEPARTMENT RULES & INSTRUCTIONS APPLY.

Livestock Local Rules

- 1. BILL OF SALE MUST BE MADE OUT TO INDIVIDUAL EXHIBITOR FOR BEEF ENTRIES ONLY.
- **2. LOSS OF EAR TAG:** In case of lost ear tag exhibitor must notify Fair management within 24 hours. Species Chairperson will be notified, and arrangements made to retag animal.
- 3. NO PAINT ON HOGS, GLITTER ON STEERS, writing of any kind on any animal will result in forfeiture of awards and or monies.
- **4. WEIGHING OF LIVESTOCK:** All market livestock (beef, goats, lambs and swine) will be IN PLACE by 3:30 p.m. Weigh in will be Tue, Oct 2, 2018 from 4:00 to 7:00 p.m. Livestock not in place by 3:30 p.m. will be last to weigh in. NO EXCEPTIONS. Animals will not be weighed off trailer!! EXHIBITOR MUST BE PRESENT WHEN THEIR ANIMAL IS WEIGHED IN. For market animals, see Junior Livestock Auction Rules
- **5. STALLS AND PENS MUST BE NEATLY KEPT** and supplied with necessary clean bedding. Pathways approaches and aisles between barns MUST be kept clean for the convenience of spectators. This work must be completed by 7:30 a.m. each day. NO EXCEPTIONS.
- **6. RECEIVING TIME for JUNIOR BREEDING ANIMALS** is Tue, Oct 2, 2018 for swine, sheep, dairy goats and commercial meat does, beef, and dairy cattle by 7:00 PM.
- **7. ENTRIES RELEASED ON SUN, Oct 7, 2018 AT 7:00 P.M.** TACK MAY BE WALKED OUT ON SUN. BETWEEN 7:00 A.M. AND 9:00 A.M. AND BETWEEN 4:00 P.M. AND 5:00 P.M. TACK MAY BE DRIVEN OUT BETWEEN 5:00 P.M. AND 6:00 P.M. ON SUN. EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS AND DECORATIONS MUST STAY IN PLACE UNTIL 4:00 P.M.
- **8. BREEDING ANIMALS** (beef cattle, dairy cattle, sheep and goats) in the Junior Divisions are open to Monterey, San Benito and Santa Cruz County residents, on a LIMITED SPACE AVAILABLE BASIS.
- **9. SAN BENITO COUNTY MARKET EXHIBITORS** will be limited to: TWO (2) animals per below:
 - If selling a Beef, may also sell 1 Goat or 1 Lamb or 1 small animal.
 - If selling a Hog, may also sell 1 small animal.
 - If selling a Lamb, may also sell 1 small animal.
 - If selling a Goat, may also sell 1 small animal.
 - If selling only small animals, may sell 2 small animals.

Small Animal is defined as rabbit meat pen, turkey and poultry meat pen that places in the top 5.

- 10. SANTA CRUZ AND MONTEREY COUNTY MARKET EXHIBITORS are limited to ONE (1) entry per exhibitor. MARKET BEEF, GOATS, SHEEP, SWINE, TURKEY, POULTRY MEAT PEN AND RABBIT MEAT PEN.
- 11. NO MORE THAN ONE OWNERSHIP ON EACH ENTRY FORM. Livestock must be solely owned by and under exhibitor's care and management. Project must be under supervision of an organization to be eligible to show. Exception horses and dairy cattle can be leased.
- 12. PROTEST refer to State Rule V, rules 1 through 15. Decision of Livestock Superintendent cannot be protested and is final. All protests must be presented to the management of the Fair within 24 hours of the alleged violation, or 24 hours after the results are available to the public of exhibits judged pre-fair. Protest must be accompanied by a \$100 deposit (cash, money order or certified check) which will be returned only if the protest is determined valid. Protest and appropriate action are decided by the Fair's Board of Directors or designees in a timely manner.
- **13. AN EXHIBITOR WILL BE DISQUALIFIED** from his/her class, if he/she fails to be present and ready to perform within three (3) minutes from the time his/her class or number is called.
- 14. CHAMPION AND RESERVE CHAMPION for all market species

will return for Overall Grand Champion. Doesn't include Rabbits and Poultry.

15. BEDDING STRAW may be used for Dairy Cattle Only. SHAVINGS

- 15. BEDDING STRAW may be used for Dairy Cattle Only. SHAVINGS ONLY for all other livestock. <u>NO BEDDING WILL BE FURNISHED BY THE FAIR.</u>
- 16. **NO HANDS-ON POLICY** (All Junior Livestock Exhibitors): All projects must be under the exhibitor's care and management. Junior exhibitors (the owner of the exhibit) are required to groom their own animals, however they may be assisted in grooming, clipping or blocking by another junior livestock exhibitor of the San Benito County Fair. Anyone who is determined by management to require help from an adult, shall be granted such, in writing prior to the Fair. The use of professional groomers will be cause for disqualification of the exhibitor and/or animal. Disqualification consists of the withholding of premium money and ribbons, elimination from further competition and/or removal from the auction.
- 17. LIVESTOCK SHOW RING CODE OF ETHICS: The member fairs of the Western Fairs Association are uniting to support ethical and humane treatment of all animals exhibited at our fairs and expositions, as well as reinforcing the educational emphasis of competitive programs for animals and maintaining the highest integrity standard of all participants. Henceforth, the member fairs of the Western Fairs Association have adopted drafts of the National Show Ring Code of Ethics as proposed by the American Livestock Show and Rodeo Managers Association in Jun. 1995 and the Code for Show Ring Ethics drafted by the International Association of Fairs and Expositions as working guidelines for member fairs. The Show Ring code of ethics expresses the belief that we should exhibit animals on their own merits and each animal should be handled properly with attention towards its needs.
- **18. ANIMAL OWNERSHIP:** 120 consecutive days for Beef (on or before May 28, 2018). 60 consecutive days for swine, sheep and goats (on or before Jul 28, 2018).
- 19. See LOCAL RULES & REGULATIONS, Page 7, concerning the required Still Exhibit. Failure to comply will result in DISQUALIFICATION of all Market Entries for an exhibitor.
- 20. <u>PARKING:</u> All vehicles and trailers must be parked in designated areas. Vehicles parked in other areas of the fairgrounds will be towed away at the owner's expense.
- **21.** <u>Award recipient Thank You</u> letters are due to the Awards Chair, Jiana Escobar, Sun, Oct 7 between 12pm and 2pm in the main arena. <u>Envelope must be addressed, stamped and unsealed. Please write the name of the award on the upper left-hand corner of envelope.</u>
- 22. WATER CONSERVATION RULES: All hoses at wash racks will be required to use a shut-off nozzle. Non-use of nozzle will ban member from washing animal on the fairgrounds. NO WASHING OF ANIMALS AFTER 3:00 P.M. ON FRI. OR ANYTIME ON SAT. OR SUN. In addition, an exhibitor may be subject to a \$50.00 fine for noncompliance. The San Benito County Fair appreciates your assistance in conserving water. Thank you.
- 23. PARTNER FOR A SAFE FAIR: The goal of the Fair Board is to present a fair that is not only fun, but safe for exhibitors and other guests. We ask that all fair livestock exhibitors and their families observe safe practices in the barns. This year, thanks to the partnership of our youth, we will debut new livestock pens. For the protection of our exhibitors and the preservation of the pens, there is to be no climbing on the bars of the pens. Only proper electrical outlets should be used with no overloading or hazardous placement of cords. Reducing the risk of food contamination is critical. Observing the 'no food or beverage' policy in the barns is important. New signage will be posted to remind both exhibitors and fair guests that food consumption is prohibited in barns. Additionally, signage will stress the policy of guests not touching livestock. Hand washing is an essential protective practice for our exhibitors and guests alike. New postings will also be placed in and around the barns and hand washing stations. We thank our livestock exhibitors for their partnership in reducing potential risks.
- 24. A \$5.00 Security Fee is included in the Entry Fee for large animals.

Junior Livestock Special Rules

SPECIAL 4-H CLUB Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All eligibility and age limitations as per county 4-H participation Requirements (See Local Rules).
- 2. The 4-H show uniform to be worn by all 4-H exhibitors and by helpers in individual and club groups while showing at the horse show and livestock shows shall consist of: 4-H cap (must be worn on head or be visible tucked in belt loop or pocket), white shirt or blouse (short or long sleeve). Absolutely no midriffs or sleeveless shirts are to be worn. Pants may be white or black (no acid wash) must be long enough to cover the ankles. If pants have belt loops, belt must be worn.

SPECIAL FFA CHAPTER RULES:

- 1. The official FFA Show Uniform to be worn by all FFA exhibitors and by helpers in individual and chapter groups while showing at fairs and livestock shows shall consist of white trousers, white dress shirt (short or long sleeves) with FFA emblem attached to the left pocket and the official FFA four-in-hand necktie. The official FFA jacket is optional; if worn, the shirt emblem is not required. Hats or headgear (except if showing in light horse classes) of any kind shall not be worn with the official show uniform while showing.
- 2. Students competing in this division must be regularly enrolled in the high school vocational agriculture program and must meet the requirements, rules and regulations set up by the C.A.T.A. and the State Association of FFA.
- 3. All entries in this division must be from projects carried as a part of the regular high school agricultural program and must be owned by the student.

SPECIAL INDEPENDENT & GRANGE JUNIOR EXHIBITOR RULES:

- 1. Exhibitors not affiliated with any organization can enter appropriate FFA or 4-H classes, if they meet the following requirements: Independent exhibitors must be at least 9 years old or in the 4th Grade by Jan. 1, 2018. Exhibitors are eligible to compete/exhibit through Dec. 31st of the year in which they turn 19 years of age.
- 2. Independent Juniors must not have been in a junior organization within one (1) year of the Fair to be eligible to participate.
- 3. Dress code for Independent Juniors for showing livestock:
 - a. White or solid black jeans No acid wash
 - b. White shirt, long or short sleeves
 - c. Belt
 - d. Clean & polished boots or shoes No pant legs tucked in boots
 - e. ABSOLUTELY NO MIDRIFFS OR SLEEVELESS SHIRTS.

FAILURE TO FOLLOW RULES BELOW WILL RESULT IN FORFEITURE OF AWARDS AND/OR MONIES.

NEW IN 2018: ALL Exhibitors of Market Livestock, Poultry or Rabbits must attend Livestock Exhibitor Training in person or complete the YQCA Program online.

Training can be completed at these local fairs:

Sat, July 14th @ Monterey County Fair 10am – 12:30pm

<u>www.MontereyCountyFair.com</u> or 831–372–5863

Sat, Aug 18th @ Santa Cruz County Fair

<u>www.SantaCruzCountyFair.com</u> or 831–724–5671

Sat, Aug 25th @ San Benito County Fair

<u>www.SanBenitoCountyFair.com</u> or 831–628–3421

In 2019 only YQCA Program Certification will be accepted.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. <u>Leader/Advisor Signature Procedure:</u> Due to the online entry program our process to obtain 4-H leader and FFA advisor signatures is as follows: after entry closing date a list of all entries (livestock and non-livestock) for each club and chapter will be emailed to the 4-H Community Leader/FFA Advisor/Grange Leader. There will be a one-page sheet for each leader/advisor to certify that all entries are valid projects and eligible to exhibit at the 2018 fair. This signed sheet MUST be mailed, faxed or mailed back to the fair by Oct 1, 2018.
- 2. EAR TAG NUMBER(S) MUST BE LISTED CORRECTLY ON ENTRY FORM. Animal will not be permitted to enter the Fair if ear tag number does not match entry form. **NO EXCEPTIONS**.
- 3. ALL LIVESTOCK MUST ARRIVE CLEAN AND IN SHOW CONDITION.
- 4. All sheep and goats MUST have a scrapie tag to show.
- 5. Certificate of Drug Medication MUST be filled out, properly signed and turned in at Receiving.
- 6. If a market animal is considered not market ready by the judge, then the animal is not eligible for sale.
- 7. The exhibitor of any animal considered wild by the livestock committee will be asked to remove the animal from the fair.
- 8. All animals must be able to be led by the exhibitor while at the fair.
- 9. Release time of livestock on Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. or at a time designated by the Livestock Department. Any livestock leaving prior to release time may result in forfeiture of all awards and monies. Exhibitor will not be allowed to show at future San Benito County Fairs.
- 10. ALL EXHIBITORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR CLEANING, FEEDING AND WATERING THEIR LIVESTOCK UNTIL RELEASE ON SUN, Oct 7, 2018. Exhibitors not feeding or watering animals on Sun. will forfeit all award and auction monies.
- 11. All market animals must be pre-tagged on specified dates. Parent & Exhibitor must be present day of tagging. In the event exhibitor and parent cannot be present, a leader or designated representative may fill in providing this change is approved by Fair management in writing two weeks prior to the tagging date. **Pre-tagging of an animal is NOT an automatic entry in the San Benito County Fair.** Exhibitors must enter pre-tagged animals and pay all fees by the entry deadline to be eligible to participate in the fair (see page 1).
- 12. Three (3) entries will constitute a minimum class. Where entries are less than for a minimum class at the close of entry, the class may be cancelled or combined. This decision will be made by management and department chairs.
- 13. Animals not sold through the auction MUST be removed from fair-grounds at exhibitor's expense on Sun, Oct 7, 2018.
- 14. No practice roping in livestock area.

POSTMORTEM EXAMINATIONS

The San Benito County Fair reserves the right to perform a postmortem examination of any animal which dies at the San Benito County Fair. If required, this must be performed by an official veterinarian at the expense of the exhibitor.



4-H/FFA Showmanship

Contact Department Chair:

Poultry - Donald Barger

Rabbits – Charla Allen

Market Goats – Bryan Colman & Justin Wilkinson

Dairy Goats - Bryan Colman & Justin Wilkinson

Sheep - Kristine Hudson & Katy Dorrance

Swine - Joseph Huntley & John Garner

Beef – Becky Doty & Mark Lema

Dairy - Becky Doty & Mark Lema

4-H/FFA Horse Show – t.b.d.

American System of Judging

Pre-entry required.

Rules & Regulations:

- 1. All 4-H and FFA market & livestock animal exhibitors in goat, sheep, swine & cattle divisions are required to enter livestock showmanship. Exhibitor must show their own market animal if they are exhibiting a market animal. Exhibitor can only show a breeding animal if this is the only animal they are exhibiting.
- 2. All 4-H and FFA Horse Show exhibitors are required to enter Horse Showmanship. Please see Dept 64 for more rules.
- 2. Exhibitors shall be on hand and ready to exhibit at the time called for judging. After one call if exhibitor is not present then he/she will be dismissed from the class. No exceptions.
- Exhibitors may compete in only one class for each species of livestock.
- 4. First and second-class winners of 4-H Novice, 4-H Junior and FFA Novice are eligible to advance to the next level of showmanship.
- 5. All exhibitors are required to wear the show uniform of the organization they represent. (Girls may wear slacks instead of skirts.) See uniform regulations under Junior Livestock Special Rules.
- 6. Only animals owned, fitted and shown by the exhibitor in the Junior Department Livestock divisions are eligible. Horses in the Horse Show are also eligible. Bulls, stallions, rams, boars and Billy goats are not eligible for showmanship.
- 7. Rabbit Showmanship participants must wear long sleeve shirts or blouses.
- 8. Age based on age as of Jan. 1, 2018.
- 9. Definitions:
- **4-H PRIMARY**: Open to 4-H member from 5 years old to 9 years old and can show in the class every year until they become official 4-H age of 9 years old and in the 4th grade.
- **4-H NOVICE**: Open to 4-H members 9 years old through 10 years old who have never shown this species of animal at any fair. Note: First and second place winners may advance to 4-H Junior Showmanship. Any member who has shown in Novice Showmanship at any fair will advance to Junior Showmanship.
- **4-H JUNIOR:** Open to 4-H members 11 years old through 13 years old regardless of experience and number of years in 4-H, and 9 through 10-year olds who have already shown in Novice Showmanship at any fair. First and second place winners may advance to 4-H Senior Showmanship.
- **4-H SENIOR:** Open to any 4-H member 14 years old through 19 years of age regardless of the number of years in 4-H.
- **FFA NOVICE**: Exhibitors showing this species for the first time and that have never shown this species previously in this or any other organization. Note: First and second place winners may advance to FFA Advanced Showmanship.

FFA ADVANCED: Open to any FFA member regardless of the number of years showing.

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

DEPT. 64 - DIVISION 141 4-H/FFA HORSE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00, pre-entry required

Class:

- 1. 4-H Novice
- 2. 4-H Junior 3. 4-H Senior
- 3. 4-H Semor
- FFA Novice
 FFA Advanced
- DEPT. 71 DIVISION 179 4-H/FFA POULTRY

DEPT. 72 - DIVISION 340 4-H/FFA RABBIT

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00, pre-entry required

Class:

- 1. 4-H Primary
- 2. 4-H Novice
- 3. 4-H Junior
- 4. 4-H Senior
- 5. FFA Novice
- 6. FFA Advanced

DEPT. 73 - DIVISION 119 4-H/FFA MARKET GOAT &

COMMERCIAL MEAT DOE

DEPT. 74 - DIVISION 129 4-H/FFA DAIRY GOAT

DEPT. 75 - DIVISION 139 4-H/FFA SHEEP

DEPT. 77 - DIVISION 159 4-H/FFA SWINE

DEPT. 78 - DIVISION 169 4-H/FFA BEEF

DEPT. 79 - DIVISION 179 4-H/FFA DAIRY CATTLE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00, pre-entry required

- 1. 4-H Novice Showmanship
- 2. 4-H Junior Showmanship
- 3. 4-H Senior Showmanship
- 4. FFA Novice Showmanship
- 5. FFA Advanced Showmanship

AUCTION BUYER DONATION CARDS Attention all 4-H and FFA Members

Donate to the San Benito County Fair Heritage Foundation in the name of your animal buyer, and support capital improvements at the Fair. Donation cards will be available in the Heritage Hospitality Area during the week, as well as by the auction ring on Saturday. The amount of the donation is up to you.

Junior Livestock Auction Rules

The San Benito County Fair Junior Livestock Auction is a Terminal Sale – No Live Pickups

Chair: Mark Tobias email: Mark@TobiasFarms.com Sat, Oct 6, 2018 9 a.m., Buyer Check-in at 8 a.m.

- 1. The San Benito County Fair, to encourage the boys and girls of San Benito, Monterey and Santa Cruz Counties in their livestock feed projects, will hold a terminal auction sale of market livestock starting at 9:00 A.M. Sat, Oct 6, 2018.
- 2. All beef, sheep, swine and market goats that are market ready will be sold at auction. Overall Champion & Reserve Champion, Third, Fourth and Fifth place meat pens of rabbits & poultry and turkeys, if market ready, will be sold.
- 3. When an entry is made in the market divisions, it is automatically consigned to the San Benito County Fair Junior Livestock Auction. This pertains to market ready animals only.
- 4. EXHIBITORS AND THEIR INSTRUCTORS OR LEADERS MUST BE PRESENT AT THE TIME OF THE SALE. If owner is not present, the animal will not be sold in auction, but it will be sold at market price established for resale animals. Owner must be in official uniform per Junior Livestock Special Rules.
- 5. All livestock will be weighed Tue, Oct 2, 2018 between 4:00 and 7:00 p.m. Swine will be weighed starting at 1:00 p.m. Each entry will be weighed only once. Substitutions will not be permitted.

- 6. A sales fee of 8% will be charged by the Auction Committee on all animals sold, to cover hauling and other expenses, including condemnation by Federal inspection. The following will be deducted from auction check: \$1.00 from all Market Beef for Beef Promotion, \$0.40 per \$100.00 gross market value (0.4%) Selling Charge from all Swine for Pork Promotion, and \$.007 per pound on lambs for sheep promotion.
- 7. A \$13.00 charge will be withheld from each auction check for all market animals to cover cost of two (2) 5" x 7" color pictures taken of each exhibitor and animal.
- 8. Livestock will be sold in the order determined by the auction committee. The order for the 2018 San Benito County Fair Junior Livestock auction is as follows: RABBITS, TURKEYS, CHICKENS, SHEEP, BEEF, GOATS, SWINE. AUCTION WILL START AT 9:00 A.M. HERITAGE ANIMALS WILL BE SOLD AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE SALE.
- 9. SELLERS WILL BE PAID BY CHECK TO BE RELEASED TO 4-H LEADERS, FFA ADVISORS, GRANGE LEADERS AND/OR THEIR DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES AT THE San Benito COUNTY FAIR ENTRY OFFICE ON TUE, Nov 14, 2018 BETWEEN 9 A.M. AND 4:30 P.M. INDEPENDENT JUNIORS CAN PICKUP THEIR CHECKS AT THAT TIME.

10. Thank You Letters: Exhibitors are responsible for providing their own stamps, stationery and envelopes.

Auction and Add-on Thank you letters must be turned in on Sun. Oct 7, 2018 to the table near the Livestock Office between 12 noon and 2:00pm from the Club leaders only - ONLY COMPLETE PACKETS WILL BE ACCEPTED. Auction Thank you envelopes must be large enough to hold a 5" x 7" photograph. Envelopes must be addressed, sealed and include postage. Please write lot # in upper left-hand corner of envelope.

- 11. ANIMAL OWNERSHIP: See Livestock Local Rule #18 on Page 61.
- 12. To streamline the Junior Livestock Auction at the San Benito County Fair we will be accepting credit cards. Payment must be made the day of the Auction by check, cash or credit card.
- 13. ANIMALS MUST BE SOLD THROUGH THE JUNIOR LIVESTOCK AUCTION TO BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE ANY ADD-ON PAYMENTS.

Dept. 70 - Adult Poultry

Chair: Donald Barger (831) 915-8918

Important Dates and Times

Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018

Receiving: Wed, Oct 3, 2018, 4:00-7:00 p.m. in the Poultry Building Exhibits must be in place by 7:00 p.m.

Judging: Fri, Oct 5, 2018 10:00a.m.

Release: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 5:00 p.m. Must be picked up by 5:30 p.m.

Open to San Benito, Santa Cruz and Monterey County

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

STANDARD BRED POULTRY

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Rules, definitions and judging procedures as prescribed in the latest edition of the Official Show Rules and the Standard of Perfection of the American Poultry Association, Inc, shall apply to all district and county fair poultry shows, except in such instances where they conflict with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Department of Food and Agriculture.
- **2.** The exhibitor will be responsible for feeding, watering and cleaning their pens for the duration of the Fair.
- 3. Birds will be shown and judged in the proper division and class for breed, variety, age and sex only. If no class is offered, no awards may be made. Disqualified birds and those absent at the time of judging do not count when computing the number of exhibitors in the class.
- 4. A judge may excuse a bird from competition if it appears to be fatigued or out of condition, but the bird shall be counted as an entry.
- 5. For all classes of Standard Bred chickens, ducks, geese and turkeys, all birds must be identified by leg bands with a number and conforming to the entry form on arrival at the show.
- 6. Birds with wing feathers or any other feathers that have been clipped or trimmed will be disqualified.
- 7. It is not mandatory that a first-place award be given if there is no entry in the class or division worthy of such placing.
- 8. All birds are entered at the owner's risk. The Fairgrounds and its management are not responsible for any thefts or injuries that may occur to the birds.

9. NOTE: After entries are closed, they will be screened down to the number the Fair can provide housing for.

10. Disqualifications: A) Any animal exhibiting vicious or uncontrollable aggression which endangers the safety of the judge or the public. B) Any dying, plucking, trimming or clipping to alter appearance.

11. DEFINITIONS: A.O.S.: All Other Standard Breed Classifications

Please enter your POULTRY ONLINE ENTRY as follows: Specific Breed in the Animal Name box Gender in the Gender box (male, female) Leg Band Number in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box.

LARGE FOWL

NOTE: American, Asiatic, English, Mediterranean, Continental and All Other Standard Breeds are all division of Large Fowl.

DIVISION 100 AMERICAN

Specify – Plymouth Rock, Rhode Island Red, Rhode Island, White, Dominquez, Wyandotte, Java, Buckeye, Jersey Giant, Chanticleer, Holland, New Hampshire, Delaware & Lamona

DIVISION 101 ASIATIC

Specify - Brahma, Cochin and Langshan

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

DIVISION 102 ENGLISH

Specify – Dorking, Redcap, Cornish, Orpington, Sussex and Australop

DIVISION 103 MEDITERRANEAN

Specify – Leghorn, Minorca, Spanish, Andalusian, Anacona, Sicilian, Buttercup and Catalana

DIVISION 104 CONTINENTAL

Specify – Hamburg, Campine, Lakenvelder, Polish, Houdan,

Crevecoeur, Le Fleche and Faverolle

DIVISION 105 ALL OTHER STANDARD BREEDS

Specify – Modern Game, Old English Game, Sumatra, Malay, Cubalaya, Phoenix, Yokohama, Aseel, Shamo, Sultan, Frizzle, Naked Neck, Araucana and Ameraucana

DIVISION 106 UTILITY LARGE FOWL

Mixed Breeds & Pets

Entry Fees: Division 100-106, per entry per class\$1.75

Classes for Divisions 100 through 106:

- 1. Cock 1 year of age and older
- 2. Hen 1 year of age and older
- 3. Cockerel under 1 year of age
- 4. Pullet under 1 year of age

BANTAMS

<u>DIVISION 107 MODERN GAME</u> <u>DIVISION 108 OLD ENGLISH GAME</u> DIVISION 109 SINGLE COMB CLEAN LEG

Specify – Ancona, Andalusian, Australop, Campine, Catalana, Delaware, Dorking, Frizzle, Holland, Japanese, Java, Jersey Giant, Lakenvelder, Lamona, Minorca, Naked Neck, New Hampshire, Orpington, Phoenix, Plymouth Rock, Rhode Island Red, Spanish, Sussex & Leghorn

DIVISION 110 ROSE COMB CLEAN LEG

Specify – Sebright, Ancona, Belgian Bearded D'Anvers, Dominique, Dorking, Hamburg, Leghorn, Minorca, Redcap, Rhode Island Red, Rhode Island White, Rosecomb and Wyandotte

DIVISION 111 ALL OTHER COMB CLEAN LEG

Specify – Ameraucana, Araucana, Buckeye, Chanticleer, Cornish, Crevecoeur, Cubalaya, Houdan, Le Fleche, Malay, Polish, Shamo, Sicilian Buttercup, Sumatra, and Yokohama

DIVISION 112 FEATHER LEG

Specify – Brahma, Cochin, Faverolle, Frizzle, Sultan, Silkie, Booted, Belgian Bearded d'Uccle and Langshan

DIVISION 113 UTILITY BANTAM

Mixed Breeds & Pets

Entry Fees: Divisions 107-113, per entry per class\$1.75

Classes for Division 107 through 113:

- 1. Cock 1 year of age and older
- 2. Hen 1 year of age and older
- 3. Cockerel under 1 year of age
- 4. Pullet under 1 year of age

DUCKS

DIVISION 114 HEAVY WEIGHT

Specify - Pekin, Aylesbury, Rouen and Muscovy

DIVISION 115 MEDIUM WEIGHT

Specify – Cayuga, Crested, Swedish and Buff

DIVISION 116 LIGHT WEIGHT

Specify - Runner, Campbell and Magpie

DIVISION 117 BANTAM

Specify – East Indie, Mallard and Call

Entry Fees: Divisions 114-117, per entry per class\$1.75

Classes for Division 114 through 117:

- 1. Old Drake, 1 year & over
- 2. Old Duck, 1 year & over
- 3. Young Drake, under 1 year
- 4. Young Duck, under 1 year

GEESE - SINGLE BIRDS

Specify variety and color.

DIVISION 118 ALL STANDARD BREEDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.75

Class:

- 1. Old Gander, 1 year & over
- 2. Old Goose, 1 year & over
- 3. Young Gander, under 1 year
- 4. Young Goose, under 1 year

TURKEYS - SINGLE BIRDS

Specify variety and color.

DIVISION 119 ANY STANDARD BREED

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.75

(Note: After entries are closed, they will be screened down to the number the Fair can provide housing for)

- 1. Yearling Tom, 1 year & under 2 years
- 2. Yearling Hen, 1 year & under 2 years
- 3. Young Tom, less than 1 year old
- 4. Young Hen, less than 1 year old

Dept. 71 - Junior Poultry

Chair: Donald Barger (831) 915-8918

Important Dates and Times Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018

Receiving: Wed, Oct 3, 2018, 4:00-7:00 p.m. in the Poultry Building Exhibits must be in place by 7:00 p.m.

Judging of Market Turkeys & Market Meat Pens will be at 7:00 p.m. on day of receiving.

Judging: Fri, Oct 5, 2018 following Adult Poultry Judging Release: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 5:00 p.m. Must be picked up by 5:30 p.m.

Open to San Benito, Santa Cruz and Monterey County Residents Open to All Juniors 18 years old and younger as of Jan. 1, 2018

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

American System of Judging

All Exhibitors are Encouraged to be Present for Judging

STANDARD BRED POULTRY

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Rules, definitions and judging procedure as prescribed in the latest edition of the Official Show Rules and the Standard of Perfection of the American Poultry Association, Inc, shall apply to all district and county fair poultry shows, except in such instances where they conflict with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Department of Food and Agriculture.
- **2.** The exhibitor will be responsible for feeding, watering and cleaning their pens for the duration of the Fair.
- 3. Birds will be shown and judged in the proper division and class for breed, variety, age and sex only. If no class is offered, no awards may be made. Disqualified birds and those absent at the time of judging do not count when computing the number of exhibitors in the class.
- 4. A judge may excuse a bird from competition if it appears to be fatigued or out of condition, but the bird shall be counted as an entry.
- 5. For all classes of chickens, turkeys, ducks and geese, all birds must be identified by leg bands with a number and conforming to the entry form on arrival at the show.
- 6. Birds with wing feathers or any other feathers that have been clipped or trimmed will be disqualified.
- 7. It is not mandatory that a first-place award be given if there is no entry in the class, or division, worthy of such placing.
- 8. All birds are entered at the owner's risk. The Fairgrounds and its management are not responsible for any thefts or injuries that may occur to the birds.
- 9. NOTE: After entries are closed, they will be screened down to the number the Fair can provide housing for.
- 10. Disqualifications: a) Any animal exhibiting vicious or uncontrollable aggression which endangers the safety of the Judge or the public. b) Any dying, plucking, trimming or clipping to alter appearance.
- 11. Definitions: A.O.S. Any Other Standard Breed Classifications

Please enter your POULTRY ONLINE ENTRY as follows: Specific Breed in the Animal Name box Gender in the Gender box (male, female) Leg Band Number in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box.

LARGE FOWL

DIVISION 150 AMERICAN

Specify – Plymouth Rock, Rhode Island Red, Rhode Island White, Dominique, Wyandotte, Java, Buckeye, Jersey Giant, Chanticleer, Holland, New Hampshire, Delaware & Lamona

DIVISION 151 ASIATIC

Specify – Brahma, Cochin and Langshan

DIVISION 152 ENGLISH

Specify - Dorking, Redcap, Cornish, Orpington, Sussex and Australop

DIVISION 153 MEDITERRANEAN

Specify – Leghorn, Minorca, Spanish, Andalusian, Ancona, Sicilian, Buttercup & Catalana

DIVISION 154 CONTINENTAL

Specify - Hamburg, Campine, Lakenvelder, Polish, Houdan,

Crevecoeur, La Fleche & Faverolle

DIVISION 155 ALL OTHER STANDARD BREEDS

Specify - Modern Game, Old English Game, Sumatra, Malay, Cubalaya, Phoenix, Yokohama, Aseel, Shamo, Sultan, Frizzle, Naked Neck, Araucana & Ameraucana

DIVISION 156 UTILITY LARGE FOWL - PETS

Large Fowl, Mixed Breeds & Pet

Entry Fees: Divisions 150-156, per entry per class\$1.00

Classes for Divisions 150 through 156:

- 1. Cock 1 year of aged and older
- 2. Hen 1 year of aged and older
- 3. Cockerel under 1 year of age
- 4. Pullet under 1 year of age

BANTAMS

<u>DIVISION 157 MODERN GAME</u> <u>DIVISION 158 OLD ENGLISH GAME</u> DIVISION 159 SINGLE COMB CLEAN LEG

Specify – Ancona, Andalusian, Australop, Campine, Catalana, Delaware, Dorking, Frizzle, Holland, Japanese, Java, Jersey Giant, Lakenvelder, Lamona, Minorca, Naked Neck, New Hampshire, Orpington, Phoenix, Plymouth Rock, Rhode Island Red, Spanish, Sussex & Leghorn

DIVISION 160 ROSE COMB CLEAN LEG

Specify – Sebright, Ancona, Belgian Bearded D'Anvers, Dominique, Dorking, Hamburg, Leghorn, Minorca, Redcap, Rhode Island Red, Rhode Island White, Rosecomb & Wyandotte

DIVISION 161 ALL OTHER COMB CLEAN LEG

Specify – Ameraucana, Araucana, Buckeye, Chanticleer, Cornish, Crevecoeur, Cubalaya, Houdan, Le Fleche, Malay, Polish, Shamo, Sicilian Buttercup, Sumatra & Yokohama

DIVISION 162 FEATHER LEG

Specify – Brahma, Cochin, Faverolle, Frizzle, Sultan, Silkie, Booted, Belgian Bearded d'Uccle and Langshan

DIVISION 163 UTILITY BANTAM- PETS

Mixed Breeds & Pets

Entry Fees: Divisions 157-163, per entry per class \$1.00

Classes for Divisions 157 through 163:

- 1. Cock 1 year of age and older
- 2. Hen 1 year of aged and older
- 3. Cockerel under 1 year of age
- 4. Pullet under 1 year of age

DUCKS

DIVISION 164 HEAVY WEIGHT

Specify – Pekin, Aylesbury, Rouen and Muscovy

DIVISION 165 MEDIUM WEIGHT

Specify - Cayuga, Crested, Swedish and Buff

DIVISION 166 LIGHT WEIGHT

Specify – Runner, Campbell and Magpie

DIVISION 167 BANTAM

Specify – East Indie, Mallard and Call

Entry Fees: Divisions 164-167 (per entry per class) \$1.00

Classes for Division 164 through 167:

- 1. Old Drake, 1 year & over
- 2. Old Duck, 1 year & over
- 3. Young Drake, under 1 year
- 4. Young Duck, under 1 year

GEESE - SINGLE BIRDS

Specify variety and color.

DIVISION 168 ALL STANDARD BREEDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class:

- 1. Old Gander, 1 year & over
- 2. Old Goose, 1 year & over
- 3. Young Gander, under 1 year
- 4. Young Goose, under 1 year

TURKEYS - SINGLE BIRDS

Specify variety and color.

DIVISION 169 ANY STANDARD BREED

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

(Note: After entries are closed, they will be screened down to the number the Fair can provide housing for)

Class

- 1. Yearling Tom, 1 year & under 2 years
- 2. Yearling Hen, 1 year & under 2 years
- 3. Young Tom, less than 1 year old
- 4. Young Hen, less than 1 year old

4-H & FFA POULTRY MEAT PEN & MARKET TURKEY

Market Poultry will be a ONE day carrying cage show. Top 5 Market Ready will be remain for display. Those birds not judged in the Top 5 will be taken home. Department Chair will be in touch with Poultry Market exhibitors.

See LOCAL RULES & REGULATIONS, Page 7, concerning the required Still Exhibit. Failure to comply will result in DISQUALIFICATION of all Market Entries for an exhibitor.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All breeds judged together.
- 2. Disqualifications: a) Any animal exhibiting vicious or uncontrollable aggression which endangers the safety of the Judge or the public.
- 3. You must be entered in Division and Class to be judged.
- 4. Judging will take place on Wed, Oct 3, 2018 at 7 p.m.

6. The leg band numbers must correspond with the number you listed on your entry form.

- 7. 4-H and FFA meat pens will show together.
- 8. Fair will facilitate processing for animals sold in auction.
- 9. ANIMAL OWNERSHIP JUNIOR POULTRY, MEAT PENS AND BREED SHOW TURKEYS: Must be owned for 30 consecutive days before the fair opening date. MARKET TURKEYS: Must be owned for 60 consecutive days before the fair opening date.

10. OVERALL CHAMPION, RESERVE CHAMPION, THIRD, FOURTH AND FIFTH PLACES IN MEAT PENS AND MARKET TURKEYS WILL BE SOLD AT THE AUCTION <u>IF MARKET</u>

READY. Livestock Auction Rules apply (See rules for Santa Cruz & Monterey County exhibitors). San Benito County Exhibitors will be allowed to only auction two (2) animals at the Fair. Poultry Meat Pen or Market Turkey will count as ONE small animal. Exhibitor must be present Sat. of Auction for sale. **Delivery of meat pen chickens and turkeys that go through auction is the responsibility of the exhibitor.**

Please enter your ONLINE ENTRY INFORMATION as follows: Gender in the Gender box (male, female)

Leg Band Number in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box.

<u>DIVISION 170 4-H & FFA POULTRY MEAT PEN</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$10.00

4-H & FFA members only. Not open to Primary 4-H members.

Class

1. 4-H & FFA Meat Pen - 2 Birds market ready weighing 4 - 9 pounds each

DIVISION 171 SINGLE MARKET TURKEY

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$10.00

4-H & FFA members only. Not open to Primary 4-H members.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Ownership: Market turkeys must be owned by exhibitor at least 60 days prior to fair, i.e. bill of sale or invoice.
- 2. Proof of ownership signed proof from 4-H and FFA Leader required, this will be turned in at time of check in.
- 3. Delivery of single market turkey is the responsibility of the exhibitor Class:
- 1. Young Tom 16 weeks max
- 2. Young Hen 16 weeks max

EGGS

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Each entry will include six (6) eggs.
- 2. Entries will be judged on uniformity and size, weight, cleanliness, yolk color, consistency of white/albumen and overall appearance.
- 3. Egg cartons must have a 3" x 5" card taped to outside of lid with the following information: Exhibitor's Name, Club, Color, Size of Eggs, Division and Class.
- Carton must be secured with a rubber band around the middle of the carton.

DIVISION 172 EGGS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$1.00

Class

- 1. White Eggs size: medium, large, extra large
- 2. Brown Eggs size: medium, large, extra large
- 3. Bantam Eggs
- 4. Araucana Eggs
- 5. Any other, same variety

4-H & FFA POULTRY SHOWMANSHIP

Dept. 72 - Junior Rabbits

Chair: Charla Allen (831) 206-3241

 $Send\ questions\ to\ Rabbits@SanBenitoCountyFair.com$

Important Dates and Times

One Day Carry Cage Show Judging: Sun, Sep 30, 2018 9:00 a.m. at the Main Show Ring Release: Sun, Sep 30, 2018 at end of show

OFFICIAL ARBA SANCTIONED SHOW

One Day Carry Cage Show

Double Youth Rabbit show open to the State of California.

Open to All Juniors 18 years old and younger as of Sep 30, 2018 (day of the show).

ONLY PAPER ENTRIES ACCEPTED

A Show: NYA3555 B Show: NYA3556

Must show in the A Show, the B Show is optional.

Showmanship and Meat Pens limited to San Benito, Monterey and Santa Cruz County residents.

Official American Rabbit Breeders Association Sanctioned Show PO Box 5667 Bloomington, IL 61702

- Membership Dues: Adult \$20.00 or \$50.00 for 3 years Youth \$12.00 or \$30.00 for 3 years
- Combination Husband/Wife \$30.00 or \$75.00 for 3 Years
- Single Adult Family: \$20.00 plus \$5.00 per youth per year, 3 years \$50.00 plus \$10.00 per youth
- Husband/Wife Family: \$30.00 plus \$5.00 per youth per year, 3 years \$75.00 plus \$10.00 per youth

RULES AND REGULATIONS

- 1. Entries are NOT limited to two entries per class per division except where specified.
- 2. Rules, definitions and judging procedures as prescribed in the latest edition of the Guide Book and Standard of the American Rabbit Breeders Association, Inc. shall apply to all District and County Fair rabbit shows, provided they do not conflict with any rules and regulations prescribed by the Department of Food and Agriculture.
- 3. Rabbits must have a legible, permanent number, letter or series of either, or both, tattooed in its left ear, which MUST correspond with those on the entry form. RABBITS NOT LEGIBLY EARMARKED ARE TO BE ELIMINATED FROM THE CLASS.
- 4. Any duplication of ear markings, by one exhibitor in same Breed and Class will not be allowed. Entries with duplicate ear numbers will have one of those rabbits eliminated. The entry fee will not be returned.
- 5. Animals will be shown and judged in show room divisions recognized by the ARBA. Divisions will be established by the number of rabbits entered in any given breed and any given variety with in that breed.
- 6. The judge will eliminate from the show those animals which have disqualifications from competition. They will count when computing the number of rabbits shown in the class.
- 7. It is the responsibility of the exhibitor to take the rabbit to the show table when the class is called for it to be judged. Those rabbits absent at the time of judging do not count when computing the number of rabbits in the class.
- 8. Rabbits entered in a class that are the wrong sex, breed, or variety are to be eliminated from the class and the number in the class corrected accordingly.
- 9. The exhibitor is to check the show cards at the beginning of the Rabbit Show and report any discrepancies to the Show Secretary immediately.

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

NO CHANGES WILL BE ALLOWED DURING THE SHOW. Substitutions can only be made within the same division, sex variety and class. This must be received in writing five days prior to the show date.

- 10. Pedigree papers or a Bill of Sale showing the required ownership period (30 days) may be used instead of a pedigree if ear number and other required entry information are shown on the Bill of Sale. This should be available upon request the day of the show.
- 11. The date of birth must be entered on the entry form for each animal entered, however, rabbits are to be entered by weight and for that breed per the *Standard of Perfection*.
- 12. Pre-entry for Showmanship is Mandatory. Animal used in showmanship MUST belong to exhibitor and be entered in one of the rabbit divisions. Exhibitor must enter on entry form. No Late Sign Ups allowed. Highest placing. 4-H Intermediate, 4-H Senior and FFA Senior winners may advance to Round Robin competition. (Round Robin only 4-H and FFA exhibitors are eligible)
- 13. Primary 4-H members may show in the rabbit department if the exhibitor is in kindergarten or five years old by Jan. 1, 2018. Ribbons only.
- 14. Junior exhibitors are expected to groom and care for their animals when at the Fair. Adults should refrain from assisting the junior member. Local Fair rules will determine enforcement.
- 15. No rabbits less than three months allowed in regular classes. No pregnant does or does with litters will be allowed.

STANDARD OF PERFECTION SINGLE AND FUR ANIMALS

American System of Judging

ALL RECOGNIZED LIGHTWEIGHT RABBITS DIVISION 200 – LIGHTWEIGHT RABBITS – SHOW A

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$4.00

Class:

- 1. Senior Buck, 6 months of age and older, or over maximum junior weight
- 2. Senior Doe, 6 months of age and older or over maximum junior weight
- 3. Junior Buck, under 6 months of age
- 4. Junior Doe, under 6 months of age

ALL RECOGNIZED HEAVYWEIGHT RABBITS DIVISION 210 – HEAVYWEIGHT RABBITS – SHOW A

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$4.00

Class

- 1. Senior Buck, 8 months of age and older or over maximum junior weight
- 2. Senior Doe, 8 months of age and older or over maximum junior weight
- 3. Intermediate Buck, 6 months and under 8 months or over maximum junior weight
- 4. Intermediate Doe, 6 months and under 8 months or over maximum junior weight
- 5. Junior Buck, under 6 months of age
- 6. Junior Doe, under 6 months of age

FUR ANIMALS

DIVISIONS 220 FUR & WOOL ANIMALS - SHOW A

RULES AND REGULATIONS

- 1. All fur and wool classes to be separate paid entries, and all rabbits entered in fur and wool classes must be entered, shown and qualified in regular breed classes.
- 2. Be sure to enter breed variety and tattoo number.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$4.00

Class:

- 1. Normal White
- 2. Normal Colors
- 3. Rex, all Colors
- 4. Satin Fur, all colors
- 5. Angora Wool
- 6. Fuzzy Wool

ALL RECOGNIZED LIGHTWEIGHT RABBITS

DIVISION 300 - LIGHTWEIGHT RABBITS - SHOW B

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$4.00

Class:

- 1. Senior Buck, 6 months of age and older, or over maximum junior weight
- 2. Senior Doe, 6 months of age and older or over maximum junior weight
- 3. Junior Buck, under 6 months of age
- 4. Junior Doe, under 6 months of age

ALL RECOGNIZED HEAVYWEIGHT RABBITS

<u>DIVISION 310 – HEAVYWEIGHT RABBITS – SHOW B</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$4.00

Class:

- 1. Senior Buck, 8 months of age and older or over maximum junior weight
- 2. Senior Doe, 8 months of age and older or over maximum junior weight
- 3. Intermediate Buck, 6 months and under 8 months or over maximum junior weight
- 4. Intermediate Doe, 6 months and under 8 months or over maximum junior weight
- 5. Junior Buck, under 6 months of age
- 6. Junior Doe, under 6 months of age

FUR ANIMALS

DIVISIONS 320 FUR & WOOL ANIMALS - SHOW B

RULES AND REGULATIONS

- 1. All fur and wool classes to be separate paid entries, and all rabbits entered in fur and wool classes must be entered, shown and qualified in regular breed classes.
- 2. Be sure to enter breed variety and tattoo number.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$4.00

Class:

- 1. Normal White
- 2. Normal Colors
- 3. Rex. all Colors
- 4. Satin Fur, all colors
- 5. Angora Wool
- 6. Fuzzy Wool

4-H & FFA UTILITY RABBITS

Not open to Primary 4-H members.

DIVISION 330 MEAT PEN

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$10.00 Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018

American System of Judging

Animals may not be entered in any other class.

Limit: One entry per exhibitor

REMINDER: Meat Pen Entry counts as a livestock auction animal.

OPEN TO: San Benito, Monterey and Santa Cruz County residents

A SHOW ONLY

See LOCAL RULES & REGULATIONS, Page 7, concerning the required Still Exhibit. Failure to comply will result in DISQUALIFICATION of all Market Entries for an exhibitor.

1. OVERALL CHAMPION, RESERVE CHAMPION, THIRD, FOURTH AND FIFTH PLACE MEAT PENS SHALL REMAIN ON THE FAIRGROUNDS AND BE SOLD AT THE AUCTION IF

MARKET READY. Livestock Auction Rules apply (See rules for Santa Cruz & Monterey County exhibitors). San Benito County Exhibitors will be allowed to only auction two (2) animals at the Fair. Rabbit Meat Pen will count as ONE small animal. Exhibitor must be present Sat. of Auction for sale. The fair will handle the processing of the animals. It is the exhibitor's responsibility thereafter to deliver the processed animal to the buyer. This is a terminal sale.

The fair will supply pens for the market ready 1-5 place meat pens remaining on the grounds. It will be the exhibitor's responsibility to care for and feed the rabbits during the remainder of the fair, unless prior arrangements are made with the Department Chair. Exhibitors must be present Saturday at the Auction for sale.

- 2. 4-H and FFA meat pens will be judged together. 4-H & FFA members only. Not open to Primary 4-H members.
- 3. Minimum weight 3 1/2 lbs. each, maximum weight 5 ½ lbs. each and born on or after Jul 22, 2018. May not be older. All breeds judged together. Each entry to be one breed and color. Rabbits must be owned for a minimum of 30 consecutive days prior to the fair proof of ownership required (pedigree or bill of sale). At or before 30 days a pedigree or Bill of Sale must be turned into the Office.

Class:

1. Three Rabbits

4-H & FFA RABBIT SHOWMANSHIP

Dept. 73 - Junior Market Goats

Chair: Bryan Colman (209) 605-5046

Co-Chair: Justin Wilkinson

Important Dates and Times

Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018 Receiving: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 8:00 a.m.-3:30 p.m. Judging: Wed, Oct 3, 2018 1:00 p.m. in the Main Show Ring Release: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. or at time designated by the Livestock Department

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

All Market Goats are eligible to show.

All Junior Dept. & Jr. Livestock Rules Apply

See LOCAL RULES & REGULATIONS, Page 7, concerning the required Still Exhibit. Failure to comply will result in DISQUALIFICATION of all Market Entries for an exhibitor.

Rules and Regulations:

1. MINIMUM WEIGHT FOR MARKET GOATS IS 65 POUNDS. ANIMALS WEIGHING OVER THE MAXIMUM WEIGHT OF 105 POUNDS WILL ONLY BE PAID TO 105 POUNDS.

- 2. Market animals must be clipped and bathed and arrive in show condition
- 3. After weighing, market goats may be divided into weight lots desired by management for convenience in judging.
- 4. No force feeding or watering.
- 5. No artificial coloring of body of animal will be allowed. Hooves are OK. Infraction of this rule will result in disqualification.
- 6. Wethers and does, any breed or crossbred goat less than 12 months of age showing milk teeth. All breeds judged together. Goats must be dehorned. Scurs will be allowed up to one half inch.
- 7. ANIMAL OWNERSHIP See Livestock Local Rule #18 on Page 61.
- 8. ALL GOATS MUST HAVE SCRAPIE TAGS.

Please enter your MARKET ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Ear Tag Number in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box Scrapie Number in the Scrapie ID box

Gender in the Gender box (male or female).

SINGLE MARKET GOATS

DIVISION 109 INDEPENDENT SINGLE MARKET GOAT DIVISION 110 4-H SINGLE MARKET GOAT DIVISION 111 FFA SINGLE MARKET GOAT

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

1. Market Goats, 65 pounds and up

SINGLE FEEDER GOATS

Danish System of Judging

Please enter your LIVESTOCK ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Ear Tag Number in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box Scrapie Number in the Entry Comment box Gender in the Gender box (male, female).

<u>DIVISION 112 4-H SINGLE FEEDER GOAT</u> <u>DIVISION 113 FFA SINGLE FEEDER GOAT</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

1. Feeder Goats, under 65 pounds

4-H/FFA CLUB & CHAPTER GROUPS

DIVISION 114 4-H & FFA CLUB/CHAPTER GROUPS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) Ring Side Entry Only

Each group must be owned by members of one club/chapter. No more than two animals may be owned by one exhibitor. Each club limited to one group. ENTER IN CLUB NAME ONLY.

Award for 1st Place Group- Ribbons to 3rd place

Class:

1. Three Market Goats, previously shown as individuals.

SAN BENITO COUNTY BREEDERS SHOWCASE MEAT GOAT

4-H and FFA judged together

<u>DIVISION 115 SAN BENITO COUNTY BREEDER'S</u> SHOWCASE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$10.00

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Must be entered and shown in market, breeding or feeder class.
- 2. Goat must be bred and kidded in San Benito County. They must be raised by local meat goat producer prior to exhibitor purchase.
- 3. Bill of Sale must be from San Benito County Breeder.
- 4. Each goat owned by exhibitor must have individual entry.
- 5. Must enter breeder's name on entry form.
- 6. All State and Local Rules apply.
- After judging of appropriate market classes, goats entered will be judged together and placing will be by section of judge.

Class:

1. San Benito County Breeder's Showcase Market Goat.

COMMERCIAL & PUREBRED MEAT GOAT BREEDING SHOW

This Class consists of any doe which is used to produce meat, quality kids. This will be the mainly purebred Boer goats and Boer x Does, but could also include does of other meat breeds. (NO DAIRY GOATS). To be judged aftermarket goats. All purebred stock must be registered in the herd book of a recognized association. Recognized associations include: International Boer Goat Association, American Boer Goat Association and the Canadian Boer Goat Association. Registration papers must be checked by the show management upon check-in. All goats must have legible tattoos consistent with the registration certificate or the animal will be disqualified due to illegible or inconsistent tattoos. All goats must have a scrappies tag in place.

Management reserves the right to add, delete, combine or change classes to benefit the show.

Goats shown in the Market Show are not eligible for the Breeding Show.

Please enter your LIVESTOCK ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Specific breed in the Animal Name box

Registry Number (if required) in the Registry Number box

Date of Birth in the Animal Birthdate box

Gender in the Gender box (male, female)

Ear Tag # in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box

Sire registration number in the Sire No. box

Dam registration number in the Dam No. box

Scrapie # in the Entry Comments box.

If entering Breeders Showcase:

enter the name of the breeder in the Breeder box.

<u>DIVISION 116 PUREBRED/FULL BLOOD DOES</u> DIVISION 117 COMMERCIAL MEAT DOES

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

Females Date of Kidding

1. Junior Kid Apr. 16 through Jul. 31, 2018 2. Senior Kid Jan. 1 through Apr. 15, 2018

3. Yearling Dry and Milker born in 2017

4. Two years of age and older Prior to Jan. 1, 2017

4-H/FFA MARKET GOAT & COMMERCIAL MEAT DOE SHOWMANSHIP

Dept. 74 - Junior Dairy Goats

Chair: Bryan Colman (209) 605-5046

Co-Chair: Justin Wilkinson

Important Dates and Times

Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018 Receiving: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 by 7:00 p.m.

Judging: Wed, Oct 3, 2018 following the Goat Show in the Main Show Ring Release: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. or

at time designated by the Livestock Department

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

American System of Judging

REGISTERED PUREBRED BREEDING ANIMALS

All owned by one exhibitor, entered as individuals

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. All goats arriving at the fair MUST be disease free. Any goat showing evidence of any disease will be removed from the fairgrounds immediately.
- 2. Muzzling of any animal is prohibited.
- 3. Fair will not accept goats from scrappies "non-compliant" flocks, or animals that are scrapie-positive or scrapie suspects.
- 4. May enter more than one per class.
- 5. The Junior/Adult shows are not separately sanctioned.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Animals with a "Certificate of Registry" (Blue Border) issued by the American Dairy Goat Association are eligible.
- 2. Animals with a "Certificate of Pedigree" (Brown Border) issued by the American Dairy Goat Association are NOT eligible.
- 3. The American Dairy Goat Society issues registration certificates for purebred animals only.

Please enter your LIVESTOCK ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Specific breed in the Animal Name box

Registry Number (if required) in the Registry Number box

Date of Birth in the Animal Birthdate box

Gender in the Gender box (male, female)

Ear Tag # in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box

Sire registration number in the Sire No. box

Dam registration number in the Dam No. box

Scrapie # in the Entry Comments box.

If entering Breeders Showcase:

enter the name of the breeder in the Breeder box.

DAIRY GOATS

<u>DIVISION 120 ALPINES</u> DIVISION 121 NUBIANS

DIVISION 122 LA MANCHAS

DIVISION 123 ALL OTHER PUREBREDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

Females Date of Kidding

1. Junior KidApr. 16 through Sep. 1, 20182. Intermediate KidMar. 1 through Apr. 15, 20183. Senior KidJan. 1 through Feb. 28, 20184. Dry Yearlingborn in 2017

4. Dry Yearling born in 2017
5. Yearling Milker born in 2017
6. Two years and under three born in 2016
7. Three years and under five born in 2015 or 2014
8. Five years and over born prior to 2014

Groups: All owned by one exhibitor and entered as individuals. One entry per exhibitor per class, unless divisions are combined.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

9. Dam & her Daughter

10. Get of Sire – Three does, the get of one sire. Sire to be named.

11. Dairy Herd - Three does in milk.

GRADE OR UNREGISTERED PUREBRED ANIMALS BY REGISTERED OR PUREBRED SIRE

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. By his/her signature as the owner or agent on an entry form, the exhibitor also certifies that the sire of each animal entered in the following classes for grade animals was either registered or purebred.
- 2. All animals registered (Blue Border Certificate) or recorded (Brown Border Certificate) as Experimental must show in the Recorded Grade Class.
- 3. Animals with a "Certificate of Pedigree" (Brown Border) issued by the American Dairy Goat Association are eligible.
- 4. Must be owned by exhibitor.

DIVISION 124 RECORDED GRADE

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

Females Date of Kidding

1. Junior Kid Apr. 16 through Sep. 1, 2018 2. Intermediate Kid Mar. 1 through Apr. 15, 2018 3. Senior Kid Jan. 1 through Feb. 28, 2018

4. Dry Yearling born in 2017
5. Yearling Milker born in 2017
6. Two years and under three born in 2016
7. Three years and under five born in 2015 or 2014
8. Five years and over born prior to 2014

Groups: All owned by one exhibitor and entered as individuals. One entry per exhibitor per class, unless divisions are combined.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

9. Dam & her Daughter

10. Get of Sire – Three does, the get of one sire. Sire to be named.

11. Dairy Herd – Three does in milk.

4-H/FFA DAIRY GOAT SHOWMANSHIP

Dept. 75 - Junior Market Sheep

Chair: Kristine Hudson & Katy Dorrance

Important Dates and Times

Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018
Receiving: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 8:00a.m.-3:30 p.m.
Judging: Wed, Oct 3, 2018 9:00 a.m. in the Main Show Ring
Release: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. or
at time designated by the Livestock Department

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

ALL JUNIOR DEPT. & JR. LIVESTOCK RULES APPLY

All Breeds Judged Together

See LOCAL RULES & REGULATIONS, Page 7, concerning the required Still Exhibit. Failure to comply will result in DISQUALIFICATION of all Market Entries for an exhibitor.

Rules and Regulations:

1. MINIMUM WEIGHT FOR MARKET SHEEP IS 110 POUNDS. ANIMALS WEIGHING OVER THE MAXIMUM WEIGHT OF 150 POUNDS WILL ONLY BE PAID TO 150 POUNDS.

- 2. WEIGH-IN: ALL MARKET SHEEP MUST BE WEIGHED between 4:00 and 7:00 P.M. Tue, Oct 2, 2018.
- 3. After weighing, market lambs may be divided into weight lots as desired by management for convenience in judging. Note: 4-H and FFA will be judged separately.
- 4. Lambs exhibiting callipyge (Heavy Muscled) in their conformation will NOT be allowed in Market classes at the San Benito County Fair. Any lamb showing these traits (callipyge) will be sifted by the judge and returned to the owner. These lambs will NOT be allowed to show in any class at the Fair. The judge's decision will be FINAL.
- 5. ANIMAL OWNERSHIP See Livestock Local Rule #18 on Page 61. Member must be in good standing with affiliated organizations.
- 6. Market lambs may not carry more than one inch of stretched fleece at any point on their bodies.
- 7. Market lambs may not be shown on halter or tether.
- 8. Washing of sheep in designated wash racks ONLY.

SINGLE MARKET LAMBS

Please enter your MARKET ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Ear Tag Number in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box Scrapie Number in the Scrapie ID box Gender in the Gender box (male, female).

<u>DIVISION 129 INDEPENDENT SINGLE MARKET LAMB</u> <u>DIVISION 130 4-H SINGLE MARKET LAMB</u> <u>DIVISION 131 FFA SINGLE MARKET LAMB</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

1. Wether or Ewe Lambs, 110 pounds and up

SINGLE FEEDER LAMBS

Danish System of Judging

Please enter your LIVESTOCK ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Ear Tag Number in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box Scrapie Number in the Entry Comment box Gender in the Gender box (male, female).

<u>DIVISION 132 4-H SINGLE FEEDER LAMB</u> <u>DIVISION 133 FFA SINGLE FEEDER LAMB</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

1. Feeder Lambs, 75 to 109 pounds

4-H/FFA CLUB & CHAPTER GROUPS

DIVISION 134 4-H & FFA CLUB/CHAPTER GROUPS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) Ring Side Entry Only

Each group must be owned by members of one club/chapter. No more than two animals may be owned by one exhibitor. Each club limited to one group.

Class:

1. Three Market Lambs, previously shown as individuals

SAN BENITO COUNTY BREEDERS SHOWCASE SHEEP

4-H & FFA Judged Together

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Must be entered and shown in market, breeding or feeder classes.
- 2. Lamb must be bred and lambed in San Benito County. They must be raised by a local sheep producer prior to exhibitor purchase.
- 3. Bill of Sale must be from a San Benito County Breeder and must be presented at Weigh-In.
- 4. Each lamb owned by exhibitor must have individual entry.
- 5. Must enter breeder's name on entry form.
- 6. All State and Local Rules apply.
- 7. After judging of appropriate market classes, lambs entered will all be judged together and placing will be by selection of judge.

<u>DIVISION 135 SAN BENITO COUNTY BREEDERS</u> SHOWCASE - SHEEP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$10.00

Class:

1. San Benito County Breeder's Showcase Sheep

4-H/FFA SHEEP SHOWMANSHIP

Dept. 76 - Junior Breeding Sheep

Chairs: Kristine Hudson & Katy Dorrance

Important Dates and Times Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018 Receiving: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 8:00a.m.-3:30 p.m. Judging: Wed, Sep 26, 2018 9:00 a.m. following Market Sheep in the Main Show Ring Release: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. or at time designated by the Livestock Department

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

REGISTERED PUREBRED BREEDING ANIMALS

American System of Judging

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Lambs and Sheep arriving at the Fair will be inspected at a designated check point prior to weigh-in. Lambs will be thoroughly checked for fungus and any health related problems. Lambs with health issues will not be allowed to show and must be removed from the fairgrounds immediately.
- 2. Muzzling of any animal is prohibited.
- 3. All market animals and breeding lambs must be docked such that the tail (dock) can be lifted. Lambs that have been re-docked or have complete tail removal will not be eligible.

Additional Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Flock numbers shall be used to identify all entries. Numbers shall be on regular and practical tags attached to the ear or tattooed in the ear.
- 2. An exhibitor may not use the same flock number on more than one animal during any two consecutive calendar years.
- 3. Registration numbers may not be used in flock numbers. Flock numbers and breeder's initials, name or association prefix shall be on regular and practical tags attached to the ear or tattooed in the ear for yearlings and lambs bred by the exhibitor.
- 4. Lambs must show lambs teeth.
- 5. Market animals are not eligible for breeding show.

Please enter your LIVESTOCK ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Specific breed in the Animal Name box Registry Number (if required) in the Registry Number box Date of Birth in the Animal Birthdate box Gender in the Gender box (male, female) Ear Tag # in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box Sire registration number in the Sire No. box Dam registration number in the Dam No. box Scrapie # in the Entry Comments box.

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book

DIVISION 140 ALL REGISTERED BREEDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

Rams **Date of Lambing** 1. Yearlings

Sep. 2016 through Aug. 2017 2. Fall Lamb Sep. 2017 through Dec. 2017 3. Spring Lamb Jan. 2018 through Jun. 2018

Ewes

4. Yearlings Sep. 2016 through Aug. 2017 5. Fall Lamb Sep. 2017 through Dec. 2017 Jan. 2018 through Jun. 2018 6. Spring Lamb

Groups: All owned by one exhibitor and entered as individuals. One entry per exhibitor per class, unless divisions are combined.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

7. Flock: One yearling or lamb ram, two yearling ewes and two ewe lambs.

8. Get of Sire: Four sheep sired by same ram; bred by exhibitor.

9. Young Flock: One ram lamb and two ewe lambs; bred by exhibitor.

10. Pair of Ram Lambs: bred by exhibitor. 11. Pair of Ewe Lambs: bred by exhibitor.

12. Pair of Yearling Lambs: bred by exhibitor.

DIVISION 141 GRADE OR UNREGISTERED EWES

American System of Judging

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

Ewes **Date of Lambing**

1. Yearling Sep. 2016 through Aug. 2017 2. Fall Lamb Sep. 2017 through Dec. 2017 3. Spring Lamb Jan. 2018 through Jun. 2018

Groups: All owned by one exhibitor and entered as individuals. One entry

per exhibitor per class, unless divisions are combined.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00 4. Pair of Ewe Lambs: bred by exhibitor. Pair of Yearling Ewes: bred by exhibitor.

Dept. 77 - Junior Swine

Chair: Joseph Huntley (831) 207-9430 & John Garner

Important Dates and Times

Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018
Receiving: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 8:00a.m. - 3:30 p.m.
Judging: Thu, Oct 4, 2018 8:00 a.m. in the Main Show Ring
Release: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. or
at time designated by the Livestock Department

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

See LOCAL RULES & REGULATIONS, Page 7, concerning the required Still Exhibit. Failure to comply will result in DISQUALIFICATION of all Market Entries for an exhibitor.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. MINIMUM WEIGHT FOR MARKET HOGS IS 215 POUNDS. ANIMALS WEIGHING OVER THE MAXIMUM WEIGHT OF 275 POUNDS WILL ONLY BE SHOWN IN SHOWMANSHIP.
- 2. WEIGH-IN: ALL ANIMALS MUST BE IN PLACE BY 3:30 P.M. ALL MARKET SWINE WILL BE WEIGHED IN **BETWEEN 1:00 P.M. AND 7:00 P.M. TUE, Oct 2, 2018**. Exhibitors must be present when their animal is weighed in. No exceptions. Animals brought in after 3:30 will not be unloaded until weigh in is over.
- 3. After weighing, market hogs may be divided into weight lots as desired by management for convenience in judging. Note: 4-H and FFA will be judged separately.
- 4. ANIMAL OWNERSHIP See Livestock Local Rule #18 on Page 61. Member must be in good standing with affiliated organization.

Please enter your MARKET ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Ear Tag Number in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box Gender in the Gender box (male, female).

Please enter your LIVESTOCK ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Specific breed in the Animal Name box
Registry Number (if required) in the Registry Number box
Date of Birth in the Animal Birthdate box
Gender in the Gender box (male, female)
Ear Tag # in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box
Sire registration number in the Sire No. box
Dam registration number in the Dam No. box
If entering Breeders Showcase:
enter the name of the breeder in the Breeder box.

SINGLE MARKET HOGS

<u>DIVISION 149 INDEPENDENT SINGLE MARKET HOG</u> <u>DIVISION 150 4-H SINGLE MARKET HOG</u> <u>DIVISION 151 FFA SINGLE MARKET HOG</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

- 1. Market Hogs, 215 to 275 pounds Barrows
- 2. Market Hogs, 215 to 275 pounds Gilts

SINGLE FEEDER HOGS

Danish System of Judging

<u>DIVISION 152 4-H SINGLE FEEDER HOG</u> DIVISION 153 FFA SINGLE FEEDER HOG

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

- 1. Feeder Pig, 60 to 214 pounds Barrows
- 2. Feeder Pig, 60 to 214 pounds Gilts

4-H/FFA CLUB & CHAPTER GROUPS DIVISION 154 4-H & FFA CLUB/CHAPTER GROUPS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) Ring Side Entry Only

Each group must be owned by members of one club/chapter. No more than two animals may be owned by one exhibitor. Each club limited to one group. ENTER IN CLUB NAME ONLY.

Class

1. Three Market Hogs, previously shown as individuals

SAN BENITO COUNTY BREEDERS SHOWCASE SWINE

4-H & FFA Judged Together

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Must be entered and shown in market, breeding or feeder class.
- 2. Hog must be bred and farrowed in San Benito County. They must be raised by a local swine producer prior to exhibitor purchase.
- 3. Breeder must document litter with Swine Chair to be eligible for class by Apr. 15, 2018.
- 4. Breeder must designate eligible for SBC Breeder's Showcase on Bill of Sale.
- 5. Each hog owned by exhibitor must have individual entry.
- 6. Must enter breeder's name on entry form.
- 7. All State and Local Rules apply.
- 8. After judging of appropriate classes, hogs entered will all be judged together and placing will be by selection of judge.

<u>DIVISION 155 SAN BENITO COUNTY BREEDERS</u> <u>SHOWCASE SWINE</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$10.00

Class:

1. San Benito County Breeder's Showcase Swine

4-H/FFA SWINE SHOWMANSHIP

BREEDING SWINE

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

American System of Judging

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. 4-H and FFA will be judged together.
- 2. Junior yearling sows or older must have raised a litter of pigs to be eligible.
- 3. Gilts entered in market or feeder classes may not be entered in breeding classes or vice versa.
- 4. All swine pens must be bedded throughout the fair. No bare boards.

REGISTERED PUREBRED BREEDING SWINE

DIVISION 156 4-H & FFA ALL BREEDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

 Boar Classes

 1. Spring Pigs
 Jan. 1, 2018 to Apr 31, 2018

 2. Fall Pig or Jr. Yearling.
 Jan. 1, 2017 to Dec 31, 2017

 Female Classes

 3. Spring Pigs
 Jan. 1, 2018 to Apr 31, 2018

4. Fall Pig or Jr. Yearling. Jan. 1, 2017 to Dec 31, 2017 5. Aged Sow Prior to Jan. 1, 2017

GRADE & UNREGISTERED BREEDING

DIVISION 157 4-H & FFA ALL BREEDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Boar Classes

1. Spring Pigs Jan. 1, 2018 to Apr. 31, 2018 2. Fall Pig or Jr. Yearling. Jan. 1, 2017 to Dec. 31, 2017

Female Classes

 3. Spring Pigs
 Jan. 1, 2018 to Apr.31, 2018

 4. Fall Pig or Jr. Yearling.
 Jan. 1, 2017 to Dec. 31, 2017

 5. Aged Sow
 Prior to Jan.1, 2017

Dept. 78 - Junior Market Beef

Chair: Becky Doty (831) 801-3891 and Mark Lema

Important Dates and Times

Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018

Mandatory Tagging and Initial Weigh-In will be done on Jun 4, 2018 from 4:00 to 7:00 p.m. at Bolado Park.

Receiving of Market Animals: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 8:00a.m.-3:30 p.m.
Receiving of Breeding Animals: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 by 7:00 p.m.
Judging of All Animals: Fri, Oct 5, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.
Market Animals followed by Breeding Animals
in the Main Show Ring
Release: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. or

at time designated by the Livestock Department

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

ALL JUNIOR DEPARTMENT & JUNIOR LIVESTOCK RULES APPLY

All Breeds Judged Together

See LOCAL RULES & REGULATIONS, Page 7, concerning the required Still Exhibit. Failure to comply will result in DISQUALIFI-CATION of all Market Entries for an exhibitor.

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. MINIMUM WEIGHT FOR MARKET BEEF IS 1000 POUNDS. ANIMALS WEIGHING OVER THE MAXIMUM WEIGHT OF 1375 POUNDS WILL ONLY BE PAID TO 1375 POUNDS.
- 2. WEIGH-IN: All market beef must be weighed in between 4:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. Tue, Oct 2, 2018.
- 3. After weighing, market steers and market heifers may be divided into weight lots as desired by management for convenience in judging. NOTE: 4-H & FFA will be judged separately.
- 4. ANIMAL OWNERSHIP See Livestock Local Rule #18 on Page 61.
- 5. All cattle must be bedded on shavings. NO STRAW!

Please enter your MARKET ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Ear Tag Number in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box Gender in the Gender box (male, female).

Please enter your LIVESTOCK ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Specific breed in the Animal Name box
Registry Number (if required) in the Registry Number box
Date of Birth in the Animal Birthdate box
Gender in the Gender box (male, female)
Ear Tag # in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box
Sire registration number in the Sire No. box
Dam registration number in the Dam No. box
If entering Breeders Showcase:
enter the name of the breeder in the Breeder box.

SINGLE MARKET BEEF (STEERS OR HEIFERS)

<u>DIVISION 159 INDEPENDENT SINGLE MARKET BEEF</u> <u>DIVISION 160 4-H SINGLE MARKET BEEF</u> <u>DIVISION 161 FFA SINGLE MARKET BEEF</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

1. Steer or Heifer, 1000 and up.

SINGLE FEEDER BEEF (STEERS OR HEIFERS)

<u>DIVISION 162 4-H SINGLE FEEDER BEEF</u> DIVISION 163 FFA SINGLE FEEDER BEEF

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.0

Class:

- 1. Feeder Beef. 521 to 690 pounds
- 2. Feeder Beef, 691 to 999 pounds

4-H/FFA CLUB & CHAPTER GROUPS

DIVISION 164 4-H & FFA CLUB/CHAPTER GROUPS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) Ring Side Entry Only

Each group must be owned by members of one club/chapter. No more than one animal may be owned by one exhibitor. Each club limited to one group. ENTER IN CLUB NAME ONLY.

Class:

1. Three Market Beef, previously shown as individuals

SAN BENITO COUNTY BREEDERS SHOWCASE BEEF

4-H & FFA Judged Together

Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Must be entered and shown in market, feeder or breeding classes. Open to steers, heifers and feeders.
- 2. Steers, heifers and feeders must have been bred and calved in San Benito County. They must be raised by a local cattle producer prior to exhibitor purchase.
- 3. Breeder must designate eligible for SBC Breeder's Showcase on Bill of Sale.
- 4. Each steer or heifer owned by exhibitor must have individual entry.
- 5. Must enter breeder's name on entry form.
- 6. All State and Local Rules apply.
- 7. After judging of appropriate classes, steers, feeders and heifers will be judged separately and placing will be by selection of judge.

<u>DIVISION 165 SAN BENITO COUNTY BREEDERS</u> <u>SHOWCASE BEEF</u>

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$10.00

Class:

- 1. Local bred steers and feeders
- 2. Local bred Heifers

4-H/FFA BEEF SHOWMANSHIP

JUNIOR BEEF CATTLE/BREEDING REGISTERED PUREBRED BREEDING ANIMALS

American System of Judging

Registered Breeding Animals must check ORIGINAL registration papers with Chair/office by Tue, Oct 2, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. If papers are not checked in, then those animals will not be allowed to exhibit in the breeding show on Fri, Oct 5, 2018.

NURSE COWS WILL NOT BE PERMITTED AT THE FAIR **DIVISION 166 ENGLISH BREEDS DIVISION 167 ALL OTHER BREEDS**

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

Class:

Females 1. Junior Calves 2. Senior Calves 3. Summer Yearlings 4. Junior Yearlings 5. Senior Yearlings 6. Aged Females

Date of Calving On or after Jan. 1, 2018 Sep. 1, 2017 through Dec 31, 2017

May 1, 2017 through Aug. 31, 2017 Jan. 1, 2017 through Apr. 30, 2017 Mar. 1, 2016 through Dec. 31, 2016 Prior to Mar. 1, 2016

7. Cow / Calf (Must have calf at side)

Groups: All owned by one exhibitor and entered as individuals. One entry per exhibitor per class, unless divisions are combined.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

8. Pair of Females

GRADE OR UNREGISTERED PUREBRED ANIMALS BY REGISTERED SIRE

American System of Judging

By his signature as the owner or agent on an entry form, the exhibitor also certifies that the sire of each animal entered in the following division for grade animals was registered.

DIVISION 168 ALL BREEDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

Females

Date of Calving 1. Junior Calves On or after Jan. 1, 2018 Sep. 1, 2017 through Dec. 31, 2016 2. Senior Calves 3. Summer Yearlings May 1, 2017 through Aug. 31, 2017 Jan. 1, 2017 through Apr. 31, 2017 4. Junior Yearlings 5. Senior Yearlings Mar. 1, 2016 through Dec. 31, 2017 6. Aged Females Prior to Mar. 1, 2016

7. Cow / Calf (Must have calf at side)

Groups: All owned by one exhibitor and entered as individuals. One entry per exhibitor per class, unless divisions are combined.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

8. Pair of Females

Beef Carcass Contest Rules

Sponsored by San Benito County Cattlemen's Association and San Benito County Cattlewomen's Association

The purpose of this contest is to provide added incentive for the students to continually strive to raise better quality market beef that will meet industry standards. This contest will provide the student with a carcass evaluation only.

NOTE: THERE WILL BE NO ENTRY FOR THIS CONTEST. 4-H AND FFA BEEF WILL BE AUTOMATICALLY ENTERED

The San Benito County Cattlemen's Association has donated awards of \$200.00 for 1st place, \$100.00 for 2nd place and \$50.00 for 3rd place. Other award money will be divided and paid to 4th through 10th place.

- 1. All market beef are entered in the Carcass Contest. No live pickups.
- 2. All animals entered in the Carcass Contest must be shown in the market beef classes of the exhibitor's respective division. 4-H and FFA will be judged together.
- 3. The animals will be sold in the Junior Livestock Auction.
- 4. Entry in the Carcass Contest will be automatic for all animals sold through the Junior Livestock Auction.
- 5. All animals entered in this contest will be consigned to a packing house designated by the Fair.
- 6. Carcasses will be graded at the packing house by USDA graders and results compiled by department chairs assisted by Hollister FFA Depart-
- 7. All carcasses must grade USDA Top Select or higher to be eligible for cash awards. Results will be calculated for all market beef entered.
- 8. Placing will be based on grid placing; ties will be broken by yield grade and quality grade.
- 9. The Carcass Evaluations /Awards Presentation will be held on November 14th at 6:00 p.m. in the Oak room.
- 10. The Carcass Contest will include a "Rate of Gain." Rate of Gain will be calculated by using the following formula. All Rate of Gain Steers will be weighed at the same time. Fair scale weight minus starting weight (at weigh-in & tag) divided by the number of days on feed equals average weight gain. Rate of gain will be ranked by the animal that highest average daily gain to the lowest.

Dept. 79 - Junior Dairy Cattle

Chair: Becky Doty (831) 801-3891 and Mark Lema

Important Dates and Times Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018

Receiving: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 by 7:00 p.m.
Judging: Fri, Oct 5, 2018 immediately
after Market & Breeding Beef in the Main Show Ring
Release: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. or
at time designated by the Livestock Department

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)
American System of Judging

LIMITED TO 20 OUT OF COUNTY ANIMALS

JUNIOR DAIRY CATTLE/BREEDING

REGISTERED PUREBRED BREEDING ANIMALS Straw or Shaving Bedding will be allowed for Dairy ONLY

Please enter your LIVESTOCK ONLINE ENTRY as follows:

Specific breed in the Animal Name box

Registry Number (if required) in the Registry Number box

Date of Birth in the Animal Birthdate box

Gender in the Gender box (male, female)

Ear Tag # in the Tattoo/Ear Notch box

Sire registration number in the Sire No. box

Dam registration number in the Dam No. box

<u>DIVISION 170 HOLSTEIN</u> DIVISION 171 ALL OTHER BREEDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

Dulis	Date of Curving
1. Junior Calves	Mar. 1, 2018 through Aug. 31, 2018
2. Senior Calves	Sep. 1, 2017 through Feb. 28, 2018
3. Junior Yearling	Sep. 1, 2017 through Aug. 31,2017
Females	
4. Junior calf	Mar. 1, 2018 through Aug 31, 2018
5. Senior calf	Sep. 1, 2017 through Feb. 28, 2018
6. Junior yearlings not in milk	Mar. 1, 2017 through Aug. 31, 2017

Date of Calving

6. Junior yearlings not in milk
7. Senior yearlings not in milk
8. Two years and under three
9. Three years and under four
10. Four years or over

Mar. 1, 2017 through Aug. 31, 2017
Sep. 1, 2016 through Feb. 28, 2017
Sep. 1, 2015 through Aug. 31, 2016
Sep. 1, 2014 through Aug. 31, 2015
Prior to Sep. 1, 2014

Groups: All owned by one exhibitor and entered as individuals. One entry per exhibitor per class, unless divisions are combined.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

11. Pair of Females

- 12. Produce of Dam To consist of two animals, any age, either sex, the produce of one cow. The dam must be identified by registration number.
- 13. Young Herd One bull and Two females, all senior years or younger.

GRADE OR UNREGISTERED PUREBRED ANIMALS BY REGISTERED SIRE

By his/her signature as the owner on an entry form, the exhibitor also certifies that the sire of each animal entered in the following division for grade animals was registered. Animals which have been registered by a purebred breed association cannot be entered in this division.

DIVISION 172 ALL BREEDS

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$15.00

Class:

Females	Date of Calving
1. Junior calf	Mar. 1, 2018 through Aug. 31, 2018
2. Senior calf	Sep. 1, 2017 through Feb. 28, 2018
3. Junior yearlings not in milk	Mar. 1, 2017 through Aug. 31, 2017
4. Senior yearlings not in milk	Sep. 1, 2016 through Feb. 28, 2017
5. Two years and under three	Sep. 1, 2015 through Aug. 31, 2016
6. Three years and under four	Sep. 1, 2014 through Aug. 31,2015
7. Four years or over	Prior to Sep. 1, 2014

Groups: All owned by one exhibitor and entered as individuals. One entry per exhibitor per class, unless divisions are combined.

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

8. Pair of Females

9. Produce of Dam - To consist of two animals, any age, either sex, the produce of one cow. The dam must be identified by registration number.

4-H/FFA CLUB & CHAPTER GROUPS

DIVISION 173 4-H/FFA DAIRY GROUP

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) Ring Side Entry Only

Three animals shown as individuals in the Registered or Grade Divisions, owned by member of one club or chapter, not more than two to be owned by one member per group. Three entries per club or chapter. ENTER IN CLUB NAME ONLY.

Class:

1. Three Dairy Cattle

4-H/FFA DAIRY CATTLE SHOWMANSHIP

Dept. 80 - Round Robin

Chair: Joe Martin, Hollister FFA Rules and Regulations:

- 1. Showmanship class winners of 4-H Intermediate, 4-H Senior and FFA Advanced Showmanship in each livestock division (Market Goats, Dairy Goats, Sheep, Swine, Beef, Dairy Cattle, Horses, Rabbits & Poultry) have the opportunity to show in the Round Robin Class in which they won.
- 2. Exhibitors, who should win more than one species of Showmanship, must designate the species they will represent during Round Robin prior to leaving the show ring. They will need to notify the species Chair at that time. The second-place winner of a class NOT CHOSEN BY THE WINNER will then be eligible to compete. If the second-place winner chooses not to show, we will contact the following placings in order until a designated delegate for that species is secured to ensure a full class for Round Robin.
- 3. If an exhibitor wins both Intermediate and Advanced Showmanship for the same species, they have the option to pick which Round Robin class to participate in. The next placed exhibitor in the class not chosen will have the opportunity to participate until the delegate for the class is secured.
- 4. Animals to be shown for Round Robin will be chosen by the species Chair.
- 5. Exhibitors will be assigned numbers for animals to be shown.
- 6. State Fair Large Animal Master Showmanship Only exhibitors winning Advanced level Round Robin in livestock competition at their County or District Fair between Aug. 4, 2017 and Aug. 3, 2018 are eligible to compete. Fairs occurring after Aug. 3, 2018 shall be eligible for entry in the **2019** California State Fair Master Showmanship competition
- 7. If a defect or injury is found by exhibitor on animal it must be mentioned to judge or Chair.
- 8. Species shown will be Market Goats, Dairy Goats, Sheep, Swine, Beef & Dairy Cattle. No Horses, Rabbits or Poultry will be shown in the Round Robin competition; however, the winners of those species are still eligible to compete. If there are not enough animals of a species to complete a round, then that species will be eliminated from the Round Robin competition. The showmanship winner of that species is still eligible to compete in Round Robin.
- 9. If an exhibitor chooses not to show a species for any reason, that person can sit out of the class and receive the highest score relative to the number of exhibitors in the class. For example, nine exhibitors = 9 score for that species not shown.
- 10. Judge's decision will be final.
- 11. It will be at the Judges' discretion to have an animal removed if they deem necessary for any reason.
- 12. In the event of a tie score, the exhibitor who won the most classes for the species shown will be placed first for the competition.

DIVISION 180 ROUND ROBIN

Class:

- 1. Senior 4-H Round Robin
- 2. Advanced FFA Round Robin
- 3. Intermediate 4-H Round Robin

2018 San Benito County Fair Entry Guide Book **Dept. 81 - Lamb Lead**

Chair: Kristine Hudson & Katy Dorrance

Open to San Benito, Monterey and Santa Cruz Counties

Entry Fees & Forms Due by Fri, Sep 7, 2018

Commentaries are to be submitted with the Entry Form

Judging: Fri, Oct 5, 2018, 6:00 p.m. in the Small Show Ring

Commentaries must be printed or typed on 3-hole binder paper (8 1/2" x 11"), with NAME, ADDRESS, PHONE NUMBER & AGE AS OF JAN. 1, 2018 on the top right-hand corner. One page/one side. To be turned in with Entry Form. If you enter ONLINE please mail the commentary to San Benito County Fair, Attn: Entry Office, P.O. Box 780, Tres Pinos, CA 95075 as soon as possible. ABSOLUTELY NO EXCEPTIONS.

Classes will be arranged for judging purposes depending on the number of applicant's age as of Jan. 1, 2018.

- 1. Exhibitor must use market lamb, feeder lamb or breeding ewe (no rams) entered at the San Benito County Fair. The exhibitor does not have to be the owner of the lamb.
- 2. Type of garment is your choice. However, it must have been made by the exhibitor after Jan. 1, 2018. It must be made of fabric or yarn containing at least 60% wool.
- 3. Your lamb must be fitted in showmanship condition and must be shown on a halter. Any type of halter will do. Your lamb must be attired in a coordinating manner.
- 4. You will be judged on your attire, poise and appearance (like a fashion show) and at the same time, on control, condition and presentation of your animal.
- 5. The objective of this class is to enhance the beauty of the sheep show and to give spectators an opportunity to view sheep and a product they produce in an attractive manner.
- 6. Awards to 1st, 2nd & 3rd place in each class.

DIVISION 181 LAMB LEAD

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

Class:

- 1. Group 1 enter this class only
- 2. Group 2
- 3. Group 3
- 4. Group 4

Classes will be rearranged for judging purposes depending on the number of applicants and years of age.

Dept. 82 - Pee Wee Showmanship

Chair: Bolado Park Event Center Youth Ambassador Program Call the Fair Office for information (831) 628-3421

> **Important Dates and Times** Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018 Judging: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 12:00 p.m. in the Small Show Ring

Open to San Benito, Santa Cruz and Monterey County

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

Rules & Regulations:

- 1. Open to Juniors between 4 years and 9 years old as of Jan. 1, 2018.
- 2. Novice only. No prior showmanship experiences. Exhibitors shall be on hand and ready to exhibit at the time called for judging. After one call if exhibitor is not present then he/she will be dismissed from the class.

DIVISION 182 PEE WEE SHOWMANSHIP, AGES 4 - 6

Pre-Entry Required

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

Class:

- 1. Goats
- 2. Sheep
- 3. Swine

DIVISION 183 PEE WEE SHOWMANSHIP, AGES 7 - 9

Pre-Entry Required

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

Class: 1. Goats

- 2. Sheep
- 3. Swine

Dept. 83 - Challenger Showmanship

Chairs: Lindsay Daigle (831) 537-6577 Anthony & Jonathan

> **Important Dates and Times** Online Entries Due: Thu, Sep 6, 2018 Judging: Sun, Oct 7, 2018 2:00 p.m. in the Small Show Ring

Open to San Benito, Santa Cruz and Monterey County

Use online entry system (no paper entries accepted)

Rules & Regulations:

1. Challenger Showmanship is for gifted children ages 5-25. Children will be able to experience livestock Showmanship with a buddy. Animals and buddies will be provided. We will use the Danish method of judging and all participants will receive a small prize. This runs very similar to Pee Wee Showmanship.

DIV 184 CHALLENGER SHOWMANSHIP, AGES 5 - 25

Pre-Entry Required

Entry Fees: (per entry per class) \$5.00

Class:

1. A animal appropriate to the child

Dept. 99 - Heritage Animals

Important Dates and Times Entries Due: Fri, Sep 7, 2018

Receiving of Animals: Tue, Oct 2, 2018 8:00a.m.-3:30 p.m. Auction will be on Sat, Oct 6, 2018 starting at 10:00 a.m. Heritage animals will be sold at the end of the show.

Entries will only be accepted by phone or in person at the Fair Entry Office. There are no forms to be filled out by Exhibitor.

All animals must adhere to weight rules in respective Market Divisions.

- 1. When an entry is made in the Heritage divisions, it is automatically consigned to the San Benito County Fair Junior Livestock Auction.
- 2. Exhibitors must be present at the time of the sale. Exhibitors must be in official uniform per Junior Livestock Special Rules.
- 3. All livestock will be weighed Tue, Oct 2, 2018 between 1:00 and 7:00 p.m. Each entry will be weighed only once. Substitutions will not be permitted.
- 4. No fees will be charged by the Auction Committee on any Heritage animal sold.
- 5. Heritage animals will be sold at the end of the sale.
- 6. All payments will be made directly to the Heritage Foundation.

For DIVISIONS 001 THROUGH 007

Entry Fees: (per entry per class)

DIVISION 001 Heritage Poultry Meat Pen

1. Single Market Ready Poultry Meat Pen

DIVISION 002 Heritage Turkey

1. Single Market Ready Turkey

DIVISION 003 Heritage Rabbit Meat Pen

1. Single Market Ready Rabbit Meat Pen

DIVISION 004 Heritage Goat

Class:

1. Single Market Ready Goat

DIVISION 005 Heritage Lamb

Class:

1. Single Market Ready Lamb

DIVISION 006 Heritage Hog

Class:

1. Single Market Ready Hog

DIVISION 007 Heritage Beef

1. Single Market Ready Beef







Special Events:

- __ Decorations
- __ Helper/ticket taker
- __ Alcohol server with State required training

VOLUNTEER INTEREST FORM	Fair time: Art/Photography Pavilion				
Name:	Runner				
Telephone Numbers:	Information Ambassador				
Home:	Specific department:				
Cell:					
Other:					
Best time of day to reach you:	you would like to share:				
MorningAfternoonEvening					
Email					
Address:					
Availability: Fair time: Year round:					
Please indicate interests and skills: Buildings and Grounds:					
Carpentry Landscaping					
Painting					
Cleaning					
Hauling _					
Special Equipment:					
Office:					
Handling Telephones/walk-ins Bookkeeping					
Filing					
Mailings					
Special Projects					
Social media Graphic Design					
Graphic Design Fundraising support					
Please turn in this form at the					
Fair Office or mail to PO Box					
780 Tres Pinos CA 95075					